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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
Eligibility Requirements for Use of Form CB

A. Use tl:-i§ Form to furnish information pursuant to Rules 13e-4(h)(8), 14d-1{c) and 14e-2(d) under the
Sccurities Exchange Act of 1834 {“Exchange Act”), and Rulcs 801 and 802 under the Securities Act of
1933 (“Securities Act™). :

Instructions

1. For the purposes of this Form, the term “subject company” means the issuer of the securities in a rights
offering and the company whose securitics are sought in a tender offer.

()

For the purposes of this Form, the term “tender offer” includes both cash and securities tender offers.

B. The information and documents furnished on this Form are not deemed “filed” with the Commission or
otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

Instructions for Submitting Form

A. ¢1) 1f the party filing or submitting the Form CB has reporting obligations under Exchange Act Section

13 or 15(d), Regulation S-T Rule 101(a)(1)(vi) (17 CFR 232.101(a)(1)(vi)) requires the submission
of the Form CB in electronic format via the Commission’s Electronic Data Gathering and Retrieval
System (EDGAR) in accordance with the EDGAR rules set forth in Regulation S-T (17 CFR Part
232). For assistance with technical questions about EDGAR ar to request an access code. call the
EDGAR Filer Support Office at (202) 942-8900. For assistance with the EDGAR rules, call the
Office of EDGAR and Information Analysis at (202) 942-2940.

(]
~

[f the party filing or submitting the Form CB is not an Exchange Act reporting company, Regulation
S-T Rule 101(b)(8) (17 CFR 232.101(b)(8)) permits the submission of the Form CB cither via
EDGAR or in paper. When filing or submitting the Form CB in electronic format, either voluntarily
or as a mandated EDGAR filer, a party must also file or submit on EDGAR all home jurisdiction
documents required by Parts | and 11 of this Form, except as provided by the Note following
paragraph (2) of Part I1.

13) A party may also file a Form CB in paper under a hardship exemption provided by Regulation S-T
Rule 201 or 202 (17 CFR 232.201 or 232.202), When submitting a Form CB in paper under a
hardship exemption, a party must provide the legend required by Regulation S-T Rule 201(a)(2) or
202(c) (17 CFR 232.201(a}2) or 232.202(c)) on the cover page of the Form CB.

~—

If filing the Form CB in paper in accordance with Rule 101(b)(8) or a hardship exemption, you must
furnish five copies of this Form and any amendment to thc Form (see Part I, Item 1.(b)), including
all exhibits and any other paper or document furnished as part of the Form, to the Commission at its
principal office. You must hind, staple or otherwise compile each copy in one or more parts without
stiff covers You must make the binding on the side or stitching margin in 2 manner that leaves the
reading matter legible.

4

B. When submitting the Form CB in electronic formar, the persons specificd in Part IV must provide
signatures in accordance with Regulation S-T Rule 302 (17 CFR 232.302). When submitting the Form
(‘B in paper, the persons specified in Part [V must sign the original and at least one copy of the Form
and any amendments. You must canform any unsigned copies. The specificd persons may provide typed
or facsimile signatures in accordance with Securities Act Rule 402(e) (17 CFR 230.402(e)) or Exchange
Act Rule 12b-11(d) (17 CFR 240.12b-11(d)) as long as the filer retains copies of signatures manually
signed by cach of the specified persons for five years.
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C. You must furnisl? this Form to the Commission no later than the next business day after the disclosure
docum.cn_ts submitted with this Form are published or otherwise disseminated in the subject company’s
home jurisdiction.

D. If filing ip paper, in addition to any interpal aumbering you may include, sequentia}l number the si N
T At o R AL T ek el i e g T T e ST, ~-»’4,8ned
originad of the.Form asd sny amendments by handwrit .-sxre.éaem,qd‘qa%ihu mfble formof.

 last page of-the document and any exhibits or *

he fi¥st page of the document ihrangh thy
5 must set forth the total number of pages contained in a numbered original on ¥
ment. -

L1, Special Instructions for Complying with Form CB

Under Sections 3(b), 7. 8, 10, 19 and 28 of the Securities Act of 1933, and Sections 12,13, 14, 23 and 36
of the Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules and regulations adopted under those Sections, the Commission is
autharized to solicit the information required to be supplied by this form by certain entities conducting a tender
offer. rights offer or business combination for the securities of certain issuers.

Dysclosure of the information specified in this form is mandatory. We will use the information for the
primary purposes of assuring that the offeror is entitled to use the Form and that investors have information
abuul the transaction to enable them tu make informed investment decisions. We will make this Form a matter of
public record. Therefore, any information given will be available for inspection by any member of the public.

Because of the public nature of the information, the Commission can use it for a variety of purposes. These
purposes include referral to other governmental authorities or securities self-regulatory organizations for
investigatory purposcs or in connection with litigation involving the Federal securities laws or other civil,
criminal or regulatory statutes or provisions.

PART 1 - INFORMATION SENT TO SECURITY HOLDERS
ltem 1. Home Jurisdiction Documents
(a) You must attach to this Form the entire disclosure document or documents, including any amendments
thereto, in English, that you have delivered 1o holders of securities or published in the subject
company's home jurisdiction that are required to be disseminated to U.S. security holders or published

i the United States. The Form need not include any documents incorporated by reference into those
disclosure document(s) and not published or distributed to holders of securities.

(b) Furnish any amendment to a furnished document or documents to the Commission under cover of this
Form. Indicate on the cover page the number of the amendment.

[tem 2. Informational Legends

You may need to include tegends on the outside cover page of any offering document(s) used in the
transaction. See Rules 801(b) and 802(b).

Note to [tem 2. If you deliver the home jurisdiction document(s) through an electronic medium, the required
legends must be presented in a manner reasonably calculated to draw attention to them.
PART Il - INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED TO BE SENT TO SECURITY HOLDERS

The exhibits specified below must be furnished as part of the Form, but need not be sent to security holders
unless sent to security holders in the home jurisdiction. Letter or number all exhibits for canvenient reference.
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1B-JUN-2084 ®3:@B  FROM GUINNESS GHRNR LTD

TO @B442076854397

111 Furnish to the Commission either an English translation or English summary of any reports or iaformation
that, in dccordance with the requirements of the home jurisdiction, must be made publicly availabls in
cimnectien with the transaction but need not be disseminated to security holders. Any English summary
submiticd must meet the requirements of Regulation S-T Rule 306{a) (17 CFR 232,306(a)) if submitted
electronically or of Securities Act Rule 4034¢){3) (17 CFR 230.803(c)(2)) or Exchange Aer Rule 12b-
121d){3) (17 CFR 240.125-12(d)3)) i submitted in paper.

(2) Fornish copies of any documents incorpornted by reference into the home jurisdiction document{s). -

Nute to paragraphs (1) and (2) of Part 1: In dccordance with Regulation 5-T Rule 31 1{f) (17 CFR

232 1 4(N). 2 party may submit n paper copy under cover of Form SE (17 CFR 239,64, 249.444, 259.603,
269 8, 2nd 274.403) oF an unabridged foreign language document when submitting 8n English summary in
clectranic format under parugreph ¢1) of this Pyrt or when furnishing a foreign lengusge document chat has
been incorporaled by reference uader paragraph (2) af this Part,

If uny of the persuns specified 1 Pact IV hay signed the Form CB under a power of attarnsy, s party
submitting the Form CB in electronic format must include a copy of the power of atterney signed in
acyirdance with Regulation §-T Rule 302 (17 CFR 232.302) A party submitting the Form CB in pap<r must
ulso include a copy af the signed power uf attorney.

PART Il - CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

When this Form is furnished 1o the Commission. the persan furnishing this Form (if a non-U.S. person) must
alxo file with the Commiscion a written irrevocuble consent and power of sttorney on Form F.X

-

¢!

(¥

Premptly communicate any change in 1he name or address of an sgant for service to the Commission by
amsndment of the Form F. X,

PART IV - SIGNATURES

{1} Each person (or its authorized representative) on whose behalf the Form i3 submittcd must sign the Form, [f
1 purson's authorized representative sigas, end the authorized representative is someone other than an
cxecutive officer or gencral partner, provide evidense of the representative’s authority with the Form,

(2} Type or prine the name and any tivie of cach person who signs the Form bencath his or her signature.
Afler due inguiry and (o thf best uLamyXnowledge and beliefy( ce

statement is true, complete and korrEel

o

Qﬂﬁmrc)

ARLAEWERY T VRI® HLLL L O\RBCTYOR
(Name gnd Title)

L8 ITuowk oo\
(Dste)

fy that the informetion set forth in this

P.B2,37
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Financial highlights

P AN

year ended year ended movement
- * 30 June 2003 30 June 2002 - .

’ ¢000 ¢000 %

Turnover 362,080,199 256,921,901 %
Profit before Taxation 65,188,228 48,172,841 35%'
Taxation 14,557,320 12,983,292 12%
Profit after Taxation 50,630,908 35,189,549 . 44%
Dividends 29,370,000 20,559,000 43%
Retained Profit 21,260,908 14,630,549 45%
Capital Expenditure 88,096,838 26,422,138 233%
Depreciation 15,263,488 13,589,317 12%
Shareholders Fund 106,495,986 85,235,078 25%
Earnings per Share (¢) 430.97 299.54 44%
Dividend per Share (¢) 250.00 175.00 43%
Net Assets per S 906.50 725.53 25%

Net Assets per Share (¢)

(S e
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Have you had your
Malta 6uwwess today?
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Board of directors, ofﬂclals

and registered office -

Board of directors

David Herbert Campbell Hampshire (Chalrman)
Devlin Hainsworth {(Managing)

Prof Joseph Woahen Acheampong

Paul Victor Obeng

David James Armstrong

John Wheelhouse

Robert Njoya Kinuthia

Pamela Djamson-Teltey

Frank Cudjoe Damali {(Retired 31/12/02)
Augustine Kwame Addo (Resigned 14/06/03)

Secretaries

Sena Chartered Secretaries Limited
25 Liberia Road

P. 0. Box 5520

Accra

Registered office
Guinness Brewery
Industrial Area, Kaasi
P. O. Box 1536
Kumasi

Auditors

KPMG

Chartered Accountants
25 Liberia Road

Accra

Registrars

Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited
57 Examination Loop

North Ridge

Accra

Solicitors

Sam Okudzeto & Associates
25 Liberia Road

P. 0. Box 5520

Accra

Bankers

Barclays Bank of Ghana Limited
Ecobank Ghana Limited

Ghana Commercial Bank Limited

SSB Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited
Stanbic Bank Ghana Limited
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Notice of annual general meeting

Notice is hereby given that the next Annual General Meeting of Guinness Ghana Limited will be held at
Prempeh Assembly Hall, Kumasi on 25 November 2003 at 10 o'clock in the forenoon for the following

purposes:

Agenda

1.

To receive the Report of the Directors, Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2003 together with the Profit
and Loss and income Surplus Accounts for the year ended on that date and the Report of the
Auditors thereon. ’

To declare a Dividend
To elect Directors in place of those retiring .
To approve Non-Executive Directors’ Fees

To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors

A Member of the company entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of them. A proxy need not also be a Member.

A form of proxy is attached and for it to be valid for the purpose of the Meeting it muét be completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

Dated 15 October 2003

By order of the Board Registered Office:

Sena Chartered Secretaries Ltd Guinness Brewery
Kaasi Industrial Area
P.O. Box 1536
Kumasi

Dividend warrants

If the dividend recommended is approved, payment will be made on 2 December 2003 to the holders of
shares whose names are registered in the Register of Members on 22 October 2003.

GUINNESS
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Chairman’s statement =~ = .

Distinguished shareholders, Nananom, ladies and gentlemen, it is my pleasure to welcome you to
the 31st Annual General Meeting of your Company and present to you the Annual Report and
Financial Statements for the period 1 July 2002 to 30 June 2003.

‘The business environment

Prior to February month-on-month inflation had been relatively stable. However February's 90%
increase in the ex-pump price of petrol and the period adjustments made for water and electricity
saw inflation surge, peaking at 30% in March 2003. Since then domestic price inflation has resulted
in.a very challenging business environment. Operating costs, margins and business profitability have
been under pressure. In this context your Company's results are very good.

The Beer and Malt drinks market

Both the Beer and Malt drink markets have recorded strong growth, up 20.6% and 7.7% respectively
on the prior year. | am delighted to record your Company has grown volume and share ahead of the
market. Guinness Foreign Extra Stout and Gordon's Spark combined to achieve volume growth of
35.1%, gaining over 3 percentage points of the Beer market. Malta Guinness aiso continues to
dominate the Malt drinks sector with a share of 81.4%. Cur advertising and promations, particularly
the movie "Critical Assignment”, as well as the guality of our Brands has fuelled this growth.

| am also pleased to report that in August 2003 your Company launched a fourth premium brand
“Guinness Extra Smooth”. Ghana is the first market globally to launch Guinness Extra Smooth and,
was chosen because of the track record of successful delivery and the discerning taste of the
Ghanaian consumer, This is part of your Company's ongoing commitment to identify new consumer
opportunities and to invest behind its Brands to drive value.

Our performance

Net turnover has grown 41% year-on-year from ¢257 biflion to ¢362 billion, while profit after taxation
is up 44%. While the macro-economic environment has continued to put pressure on margins, this
has been astutely managed by driving top-line growth combined with effective cost and working
capital control, and investment in more efficient processes. Please join me in congratulating the
Executive team, management and staff on delivering yet another set of impressive results in a very
challenging and competitive operating environment.

Dividend

Reflecting the strong resuits recorded for the year, a final dividend of ¢192 per share before tax is
proposed bringing the total for the year to ¢250 per share, up 43% on the previous year. The total
dividend pay out for the year under review is ¢29.37 billion. We are also pleased to note that during
the 2003 calendar year our share price has been the number one performer on the Ghana Stock

_ Exchange, further increasing value creation for our Shareholders.

- Sacial responsibility

Your Company continues to support programmes that improve the quality of fife in the communities
we operate in. Our focus areas are community health, education, sports and culture. In response to
the very important health issue of HIV/AIDS we are pleased to announce the launch, with the support
of our parent company Diageo, of a major new initiative to provide al! our employees with access to
free anti-retroviral drugs. Other important health initiatives include support for the Cardiothoracic
Centre and the provision of clean drinking water in a number of communities.

We also continue to honour our commitment to the Otumfuo Education Fund, the Chevening

Scholarship Programme, the national team the "Black Stars™ and a range of socio-cultural events
across Ghana.
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Chairman’s statement

Future prospects

Your Company has the Brands, the Peopie and the Strategy to deliver superior performance. We
continue to focus on the four Strategic initiatives of brand building including innovation, trade
development, greater operational efficiency and inspiring exceptiona! people performance. It is the .
consistent focus and strong implementation of these strategic initiatives that has driven our success.

Your Company is now entering a period of significant investment fo increase capacity. A world class

packaging line will be commissioned in November which will double capacity and enable us to fully

meet consumer demand over the years to come. Given supportive macro-economic conditions, your

Company is ideally positioned to deliver strong sustainable growth and good returns to our’

Shareholders. ‘ .

Thank you for your continued support.

f—

David Hampshire
Chairman

David Armstrong, Commarcial Dirsctor Diageo Africa confirma
Guinness Ghana Limiied's support to tha Cadiothoracic Centre,

C i ‘AL
ASSIGN. AENT

The movie Critical Assignment continues ta thril Ghanaian viewers and
cansumers alike.

Trust.

Michae! Powsr presenting the chaque for £100,000,000 to
Gordon Mambo, Country Representative Water Ald Ghana
during the premier of Criticat Assignment.

class 8, to be 55k
increasing capacity to 40,000 bottles per haur
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Report of the directors

The Directors present their report and the financial
statements of the Company for the penod 1 July 2002 to
30 June 2003.

Financial statements

The results for the year are set out in the financial
statements on pages 13 to 22. The Directors consider the
state of the Company's affairs to be satisfactory.

Nature of business

There was no change in the nature of the business of the
Company during the year.

Our performance

Turnover

Sales performance for the year was impressive,
especially when considered against the competitive
environment in which we operated.

Net turnover grew by 41% to ¢362 billion, fuelled
principally by a 16% increase in volume. This was also
the first full year for Gardon's Spark.

Taxation

A total of ¢164 billion in Excise Duty and VAT was
collected on behalf of the Government during the year,
an increase of 46% over the previous year.
Additionally, ¢15 billion in Corporation Tax including
National Reconstruction Levy was charged, totaliing
¢179 billion in Government Revenues.

Profit

Profit after taxation increased from 44% to ¢51 billion.
The increase in profit was due to the improved
performance of our Brands, which recorded a 16%
volume growth, combined with their premium price
positioning. While the macro-economic environment
continues to put pressure on margins, these have
been offset by effective cost and working capital
control, and investment in more efficient processes.

Shareholder value creation

it is proposed to recommend to Members the payment
of a final dividend of ¢192 per share before the
deduction of tax at source at an appropriate rate. This
added to the interim dividend paid in May 2003 would .
make a total dividend of ¢29.37 billion or ¢250 per
share, representing a 43% increase over the previous
year.

MD Deviin Hainsworth presents Guinness Ghana Limited's

“Facts behind the figures” for the year ending 2003 fo the
Ghana Stock Exchange.

Net tumover (¢ billions)

ERE RN NN

Government revenue (¢billion)

1999 2000 200t 2002 2003

Profit after taxation (¢ bitlions)

Dividend per share {¢)
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Report of the directors

The other very important component of shareholder
value creation is driving the growth of our share price
through the consistent delivery of strong financial
performance. We are especially proud of our -~
performance on the Ghana Stock Exchange where our
shares have been the number one performer during
2003, recording an increase of 290% up to the week
ending 26 September.

Our people

We continue to invest in the growth and development of
our People as they contribute directly to the
performance and results of our business. We are
committed to inspiring exceptional people performance.

Social Responsibility
We believe that the communities in which we operate,
should benefit from our presence.

Health

As noted previously we have just announced an exciting
new HIV/AIDS initiative. Support also continues for
Cardiothoracic unit at the Korle-bu Teaching Hospital
and the provision of clean drinking water to communities
nation-wide.

Education

A major component of our activity is channelled through
the Otumfuc's Education Fund. Additionally through the
Chevening Scholarship Programme we have supported
two Ghanaians to pursue postgraduate studies in the
United Kingdom.

Sports

We continue to play a central role in sports development
in Ghana, maintaining our support for the naticnal
soccer team the “Black Stars", Guinness Golf Open and
Guinness National Challenge Cup.

Culture

Our Ghanaian cutture is unique. It defines our People
and is central to the success of our Brands. As a result
we recognise the important role that we have to play in
-supporting cultural festivals and community related
actjvities.

Environment

We recognise that our operations can impinge on the
natural world and take our environmental responsibility
seriously. During the year we received the “Continuous
Environmental Improvement” award for 2002 from the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). ‘

2003 share price evolution (¢) -

Jan  Feb Mar Axr  May “Jun  Jul  Amg  Sep

The Guinness Ghana Limited Management Team at the 2003
Conference, Eimina.

MD Deviin Hainsworth presents the prizes at The Guinness
Golf Open, 2003.

The Elders of the Oguaa Traditiona! Council thank Marketing

Director, Francis Vorgbe for Guinness Ghana Limited's
support of Fetu Afahye Festival 2003

GUINNESS
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Report of the directors

Future growth :
Guinness Ghana Limited is now entering the next phase
of its growth, which is to be fuelled through our

. commitment to invest in the capital expenditure
necessary to increase capacity in line with demand. We
will be continuing to focus on our four strategic initiatives
that have been central to our success: brand building
including innovation; trade development; greater
operational efficiency and inspiring exceptional peaple

performance. kY \m

. MD Deviin Hainsworth launches the new addition to
We believe that, given the macro-economic stability of the  the Guinness family, Guinness Extra Smooth.
Ghanaian economy, we have the Brands, the People and

. the Strategy to deliver strong, sustainable growth and
thus returns to our Shareholders.

Board changes

Since the Annual General Meeting held on 19 November
2002 Messrs F C Damali and A K Addo resigned from
the office of Director of the Company. Mr K. Sarfo-
Mensah was appointed to fill the vacancy arising out of
the resignation of Mr A K Addo.

In accordance with the Regulations of the Company
Messrs K. Sarfo-Mensah, D J Armstrong and Prof J W ’ R
Acheampong retire at the Annual General Meeting and KETTNER Contipac e
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The - B
names of the Directors who were in office during the year
under review are as published in this Annual Report

Holding company
The company is a subsidiary of Guinness Overseas
Limited, a company incorpcrated in the United Kingdom.

i

o The new packaging line that will support
Auditors Guinness Ghana Limited's next phase of growth.

in accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies
Code 1963, the Auditors, KPMG continue as Auditors of

P the Company.
b 4
Nt By the order of the board
g
amf .. -
PN 1) S Al
) D/ /[/M
F .
J) Director Direct
D. M . Hainsworth P. Digmsoen-Tettey
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Corporate governance

Introduction

Guinness Ghana Limited recognises the importance of achieving the hnghest standards of
corporate governance, corporate responsibility and risk management in controlhng the
business. It is also committed to conducting its business responsibly and in accordance with all
laws and regulations to which our business activities are subject.

Board of directors

It is the responsibility of the board of directors and the management team to ensure that the
highest standards of corporate governance are achieved in directing and controlling the
business.

The audit sub-committee

The audit sub-committee is responsible for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's system of internal controls through its review and follow-up of the recommendations
of the internal audit function and the external auditors.

Risk management and internal control _

Arisk assessment is performed at least annually as part of the strategic ptanning process. The
risk assessment and the activities planned to manage those risks are reviewed by management
on a quarterly basis.

Additionally, a control self-assessment is completed annually against control objectives and
criteria defined within the relevant business processes. This enables the evaluation of controls
to ensure that appropriate ones are in place fo manage a broad range of risks arising from day-
to-day business activities. Action plans are developed to drive enhancements and progress is
monitored by both the management team and the audit sub-committee.

Occupational health and environmental safety

Guinness Ghana Limited is firmly committed to ensuring the health, safety and welfare of our
People. Everyone plays a critical role in ensuring the quality and safety of the working
conditions. In this regard, all aspects of our operations shall be conducted in strict compliance
with all applicable health and safety laws and regulations, company policies and best practices
pertaining to workplace safety.
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Report of the auditors

We have audited the financial statements on pages 13 to 22, which have been prepared in
accordance with Ghana Accounting Standards We have obtained all the information and
explanations we required.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors ’
These financial statements are the responsibility of the directors. Our responsibility is to
express an independent opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by the directors as weli as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, proper books have been kept and the financial statements, which are in
agreement therewith, comply with the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179} and give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the company at 30 June 2003 and of the results of its
operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

2 G~
Chartered accountants

25 Liberia Road
Accra

O

Dated 26 September 2003
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Balance sheet
Balance sheet . -
at 30 June 2003 - .
- 30 June 2003 & 30 June 2002
Notes 000 $000 $000 $000
Fixedassets =~~~ 8 ... 150,199,858 81,293,722
investments 9 3,346,122 3,346,122
Curentassets
Socks 10 57772381 3640ATI
M Debos 11 19463708 20186907
Cash and bank balances 46,698,630 21,501,375
| . 12394729 0 78093020 0 -
Current liabilites
Bank overdraft 12 15,994,528 ‘ 525,367
Creditors 13 67,961,185 34,881,750
Taxation _ 7 5405576 . 6644243
Dividends 14 21,835803 15272400
Amount due to related 15 47,010,301 9,828,472
companies
158,207,493 . 67,152,232
Net current (34,272,764) 10,940,788
(liabilities)/assets
_ ] 119,273,216 ~ 95580,632
Deferred Taxation 7 (12,777,230) (10,345,554)
Net assets - 106,495,986 85,235,078
Financed by
Stated capital 16 7,686,032 7,686,032
Capital surplus 17 _‘ 2,950,063 . 2,950,063
income surplus ‘ 95,859,891 74,598,983
106,495,986 85,235,078

Dbt [y

o

Director W
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Profit and loss and income
surplus accounts

Profit and loss account - _ : .
for the year ended 30 June 2003 -

{
year ended year ended . . !
_ 30June 2003 30 June 2002 il
Note ¢000 000 “
Tumover .3 362080193 256921901 i
Cost of Sales (214, 814 657) {143,482,110) L
Gross profit _ .. 147265582 113433791 - b
© General administrative and selhng expenses (85, 687 ,958) (66,338,222) | il
Tradingprofit ... 51,577,584 47,101,569 2
Other income 4 3,636,748 1,320,161 . !
Profit before mterest and taxatuon 5 65 214,332 48 421 730
6

Net interest charges (26,104) (248, 889) Al
Proflt before taxatxon : 65, 188 228 48 172 841 il

Taxation mciudlng Reconstructlon Levy . (14 557 350) (12 983,292 292) [ ]
Profit after taxation 50,630,908 35,189,549 |

transferred to income surplus account i

income surplus account
for the year ended 30 June 2003

year ended year ended

30 June 2003 30 June 2002

¢000 ¢000

BalanceattJuy 74598083 50968434
Profit for the year 50,630,908 35,189,549 it
125,229,891 95,157,983 il

Proposed dividend ¢250 (2002: ¢175) per share (29,370,000) (20,558,000)

Balance at 30 June 95,859,891 74,598,983 &

GUINNESS
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Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2003

year endad 30 June 2003 yaarmded30Juno2002
$000 - £000 $000 ¢000
Operating profit (before investment .
retums and servicing of finance) 65,089,207 48,421,730
Depreciation charges . 15,263,488 13,589,317
Increase in stocks (21,367,653) . (9,492,568)
Decrease/(increase) indebtors 723,189 © (9,834,238)
Increase in creditors 33,079,435 15,445,408
Increase/(decrease) In related 37,181,829 " (989,026)
company balances
Profit on sale of fixed assets (793,483) -
64,086,315 8,718,893
Net cash flow from operating activitles 129,146,112 57,140,623

Investment returns and servicing of finance

Dividends paid {22,806,497) (14,047,058)
Dividends received 155,035 -
interest paid (649,223) (839,022)
Interest received 623,119 690,133
(22,677,566) (14,295,947)
Tax pald ' (13,364,311) (3,522,248)
investing activities
Fixed assets purchased (88,096,838) (26,422,138)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 4,720,697 - _
(83,376,141) (26,422,138)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,728,084 12,900,290

Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Balance at 1 July 20,976,008 _ 8,075,718
Net cash inflow 9,728,084 12,800,290
Balance at 30 June 30,704,102 20,876,008

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the balance sheet

Cash and Bank balances _ 46,698.639 21,601,375
Bank overdraft (15,994,528) (525,367}
Balance at 30 June 30,704,102 20,976,008

)

GUINNESS
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Notes forming part of the

financial statements

1. Basis of accounting
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of certain fixed assets.

2. Accounting polic jes
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are
considered material in relation to the company’s financial statements:

a. Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to write off the gross value
of each fixed asset over its estimated useful life. The annual rates generally in use are as follows:

depreciation

%

Leasehoald, fand and buildings o 3.125%
Plantand machinery S 5% - 125%
Motor vehicles and computers -
Fumiture and equipment T T 05%

b, Stocks

Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes all direct expenses incurred in bringing stocks to their present condition and location.
Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at average production cost which includes all
relevant direct costs and production overheads.

c. Debtors
Debtors are stated after providing for specific debts considered to be doubtful.

d. Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Cedis at the rates of exchange
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balances in foreign currencies are translated into Cedis at
the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Differences arising from changes in exchange rates are dealt with through the profit and loss
account.

e. Deferred taxation
Provision is made for deferred taxation using the liability method on material timing differences to
the extent that an asset or liability may crystalise.

f. Post balance sheet events
Events subsequent to the balance sheet date are reflected only to the extent that they relate
directly to the financial statements and the effect is material.

3
3
#
3
4
i



Notes forming part of the

financial statements

3. Turnover

year ended 30 June 2003

year ended 30 June 2002
¢00C 000 £000 000
Gross sales 526,083,955 369,037,225
Less: .
Excise Duty (105,549,983) (71,111,188)
VAT {58,453,773) (41,004,136)
(164,003,756) {112,115,324)
362,080,199 256,921,901
4. Other income
year ended 30 June 2003 year ended 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
Sundry income 2,343,487 798,033
gé{ ;;cﬁange gain 344,743 . 5221 28
Dividends received . 155,035 ;
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 793,483 ;
3,636,748 1,320,161
5. Profit before interest and taxation is stated after charging
year ended 30 June 2003 year ended 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
Auditor's remuneration ‘ 230,000 120,000
Depreciation 15,263,488 13,589,317
Directors' remuneration 1,277,726 865,790
‘Donations. 104,295 14,230
Provision for impairment of fixed assets - 2,027,812

O .

~

'GUINNESS
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Notes forming part of the

financial statements

6. Net interest charges

year ended 30 June 2003 year ended 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
Interest income 623,119 690,133
Interest charges . {649,223) (939,022)
(26,104) (248,889)
7. Taxation
balance at payments charge to balance at
1 July 2002 P&L 30 June 2003
¢000 €000 ¢000 ¢000
Income Tax '
1997/98 (119,107) - - (119,107)
2001/02 v 6,113,893  (5,802,844) - 311,049
2002/03 - (6,078,796) 10,485,938 4,417,142
5,994,786 (11,881,640) 10,495,938 4,609,084
National Reconstruction Levy
2000/01 25416 - - 25,416
2001402 ' 624,041 (730,746) - (108,705)
2002/03 - {751,925) 1,629,708 877,781
6,644,243 (13,364,311) 12,125,644 5,405,576
Deferred Tax 10,345,554 - 2,431,676 12,777,230
16,989,797 (13,364,311) 14,557,320 18,182,806

The tax liabilities are subject to the agreement with Intemal Revenue Service.

National Reconstruction Levy: This relates to a levy imposed on companies by the government
on profits before tax for the years 2001 to 2005. The rate applicable to manufacturing companies

is 2.5%.
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Notes forming part of the

financial statements

8. Fixed assets

leasehold land t
and buildings machinery
¢000 #000

plantand  mator vehicles capital work-in~

progress

¢000 ¢000

furniture and . total
office
equipment
#000 $000

CostNaluatlon

A1 July 2002
Addmons
Dlsposals

Transfers

S 014 825 90, 948 301

27 853 340 853_

573 104 70 505 011

4 569 178 7. 846 430 11 352 499 1”_23_731 233

3 350 800 82 566 848 ‘

(4 309 600) (309 44)

C(71,523,701)

1 810 484 88, 0'96 838
(677) (4 619,681)

© 445,586 ;

At 30 June 2003

5,306,182 161,484,761

Deprecuatlon

At 1July 2002

Charge for the N

year

Release on
Disposal

1_ 980 743‘ 34_ 144 287

184,463 10,672,379

(645,950)  (46517)

7,819,978 18,889,577 13,607,892 207,208,390

2137432 -

1,294,189 -

4,175,049 42,437,511

3 112 457 15 263 488

- (692467)

At 30 Jurie 2003

1,519,256 44,770,149

3,431,621 -

7,287,506 57,008,532

Net Book Value
At 30 June 2003

3,786,926 116,714,612

14,488,357 18,889,577

6,320,386 150,199,858

At 30 June 2002

7,034,082 56,804,014

2,431,746 7,846,430

7,177,450 81,293,722

Certain buildings, plant and machinery were professionally revalued by Nationwide Estate
Services, Real Estate Valuers, Land Surveyors and Estate Managers on 31 December 1992
based on their open market values.

Disposal of fixed assets

at 30 June 2003

at 30 June 2002

¢000 ¢000

Cost of assets disposed off 4, 619, 681 -

Accumulated deprematlon T (692467) o o -

Net book value 7 3, 927 214 -

Proceeds on dlsposal o (4 720, 697) -

Profit on disposal of fixed assets 793,483 -
Deprecation has been charged in the financial statements as foliows:

at 30 June 2003 at 30 June 2002

¢000 ¢000

Cost of sales 10,672,379 8,100, 903

General admmlstran—\_/e and T wmm“p“44,59“l,1~09“< T w4-:;:88 414

selling expenses
15,263,488 13,589,317

4
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Notes forming part of the

financial statements

9. Investments

at 30 June 2003 at 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
Trade investments 3,346,122 3,346,122

This relates to investments in the ordinary shares of a listed company and is shown at cost.

10. Stocks
at 30 June 2003 at 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
Raw and packaging materiais 46,544,074 29,161,242
Work-in-progress 1,619,866 1,064,496
Finished products 1,980,915 1,092,339
Engineering and consumables 7,627,536 5,086,661
57,772,391 36,404,738

11. Debtors

at 30 June 2003

at 30 June 2002

¢000 #000

Trade debtors 8,281,383 12,966,620
Sundry debtors 11,182,325 7,220,287
19,463,708 20,186,907

12. Bank overdraft

This represents amounts drawn by the company under facilities granted by its bankers to support
its working capital requirements. Unutilised facilities at the year-end amounted to ¢59,005 miliion

(2002: ¢69,475 miillion).

13. Creditors

at 30 June 2003 at 30 June 2002

$000 ¢000

Trade creditors 12,613,142 9,310,700
Sundry creditors 7,901,090 8,654,749
Accruals and provisions 47,446,953 16,916,301
67,961,185 34,881,750

~
)




Notes forming part of the

financial statements

14. Dividends

at 30 June 2003

at 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
?alance at 1 July - 15,272 409 , 8 760 458
Proposed Dlwdends 29, 370 000 20 559 000
e easa2800 2031948
Payments durmg the year (22,806,497) (14 047 058)
Balance at 30 June 21,835,903 15,272,400
15. Amounts due to related companies
at 30 June 2003 at 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
Matenals and equupmer_mt_ o ) _43 676,638 o »G$920 545
Royalty and technical service fees 3,333,663 2 907,927
47,010,301 9,828,472
16. Stated capital
Number of shares Proceeds
2003 2002 2003 2002
‘000 000 ¢000 ¢000
Authorlsed = e
Ordlnary shares of no par value ‘: 150, 0(\)0 150,000
For cash e 24,208 24,208 4,935,584 4,935,584
Transfer from surplus 93,2712 93,272 2,750,448 2,750,448
1 17,480} 117,480 . 7,686,032 7,686,032
There is no share in treasury and no call or instalment unpaid on any share.
17. Capital surplus
2003 2002
¢000 ¢000
Balance at 30 June 2,950,063 2,950,063

’

GUINNESS
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Notes forming part of the
financial statements

18. Capital commitments

: Capital commitments authorised but not expended at the balance sheet date, amounted to ¢69,833
. million (2002: ¢44,500 million). '

19. Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities, in respect of possible claims and lawsuits at the year-end, amounted to ¢894
| million (2002: ¢ 704 million).
- . 20. Related party transactions
i.  The ultimate holding company is Diageo plc, a company registered in the United Kingdom.
Diageo is the beneficiary holder of the shares in Guinness Overseas Limited and Atalantaf -

Limited.

ii. Raw materials costing ¢ 128,205,438,325 were procured from Guinness Overseas Limited.

ii. Included in cost of sales is an amount of ¢15,494,083,822 in respect of technical and
management services fees payable to Guinness Overseas Limited.

SSHNNI(1Y)

Malta buinnss
upr?




Statement of value added

year ended year ended

.30 June 2003 30 June 2002
¢000 % ¢000 %

Gross Sales Proceeds 526,083,955 369,037,225

Excise Duties (105,549,983) (71,111,188)

Sales Tax/VAT (58,453,773) (41,004,136)

Turnover 362,080,199 256,921,901

Other Income 4,259,867 2,010,204

Bought in Materials & Services (270,246,386) (186,124,819)
Value added 96,093,680 100% 72,807,376 100%

Applied as follows:

To pay employees salaries, wages & benefits 14,992,741  16% 10,106,196  14%
To provide for Depreciation ’ 15,263,488  16% 13,589,317 19%
To pay for Taxation" 14,557,320  15%  12,983.292  18%
To pay Dividends 29,370,000  30% 20,559,000  28%
To pay Interest charges 649,223 1% 939,022 1%
Retained for company growth 21,260,908  22% 14,630,549  20%
96,093,680 100% 72,807,376  100%

a0 ' « .17

DISCOVER TRUE

SMO

OTHNESS.

GUINNESS
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Shareholder information

Directors shareholding

number of shares
. David HC Hampshire . 4,000
Total . 4,000

Analysis of shareholiding

number of shares number of haldings % number of holders . %

1-1,000 517,441 0.44% 1,661 55.53%

n 1,001 - 5,000 1,463,711 1.25% 540 18.05%
5,001 - 10,000 3,810,194 3.24% 475 15.88%

) . 10,001 and over 111,688,654 95.07% 315 10.53%

117,480,000 100.00% 2,99 100.00%

20 largest shareholders

number of holdings %

1 Guinness Overseas Ltd ‘ 55,590,088 47.32%

2 Social Security & National Insurance Trust 18,151,032 15.45%

3 Atalantaf Limited 15,331,140 13.05%

4 BBGN/Chase Manhattan 5,161,037 4.39%

5 BBGN/Chase Manhattan Offshore ) 3,906,408 3.33%

8 D M Ventures 1,931,265 1.64%

7 Daniel Ofori 1,343,578 1.14%

8 BBGN/Epack Investment Fund Ltd. 1,132,424 0.96%

9 Ghanaian Employees of Guinness 1,050,374 0.89%

10 BBGN/Boston Safe Deposit & Trust Co 634,277 0.54%

11 BBGN/Unilever Ghana Managers Pension 633,470 0.54%

12 BBGN/Unilever Ghana Provident Fund 548,059 0.47%

' 13 State Insurance Company Limited 400,000 0.34%
Q 14 Ghana Reinsurance Organisation 329,900 0.28%
c 15 Enterprise Insurance Company Limited 200,000 0.17%
Yo 16 BBGN/GTP Provident Fund 162,500 0.14%
2 17 Dr.RH.M.Nanka-Bruce 156,669 0.13%
' Z 18 Teachers Fund 143,800 0.12%
m 19 RETCO Company Limited 1_05.600 ) 0.09%
m 20 W A Wiafe 91,080 0.08%
m Total 107,002,701 91.07%
Others 10,477,299 8.93%

Grand total . 117,480,000 100.00%




e

Five year financial summaries

2003 20_02 2001 2000 1999

¢000 ¢000 ¢000 ¢000 ¢000
Results
Turnover 362,080,199 256,921,901 190,643,212 125,360,500 96,517,325
Profit before Taxation 65,188,228 48,172,841 26,388,895 11,149,452 33,993,104
Taxation  (14,557,320) (12,983,292) (8,030,110)  (704,956) (13,083,646)
Profit after Taxation 50,630,908 35,189,549 18,358,786 10,444,496 20,909,458
Dividends (29,370,000) (20,559,000) (10,573,200) (8.223,600) (8,223,600)
Retained earmings 21,260,908 14,630,549 7,785,586 2,220,806 12,685,858
Balance sheet
Fixed Assets 150,199,858 81,293,722 66,460901 67,976,504 47,599,867
Investments 3,346,122 3346122 3,346,122 3,346,122 3,346,122
Cash & Cash Equivalents 46,698,630 21,501,375 16,492,599 40,404,530 36,339,965
Other Currents Assets ' 77,236,000 56,501,645 40,523,306 48,110,107  25,923.962
Total Assets » 277,480,709 162,732,864 128,822928 159,837,265 113,209,916
Total Liabilities ~ (170,984,723) (77,497,786) (58,218,399) (97,018,322) (52,611,869)
Net Assets 106,495,986 85235078 70,604,529 62,818,943 60,598,047
Share Capital 7,686,032 7,686,032 7686032 7,686,032 7,686,032
Capital Surplus 2,950,063 2950063 2,950,063 2,950,063 2,950,063
Income Surplus 95,859,891 74,508,083 59,068,434 52,182,848 49,961,952
Shareholders Funds 106,495,986 85235078 70,604,529 62,818,943 60,598,047
Revenue collected for Government
Excise Duties 105549983 71,111,188 57,317,924 37,758,825 34,066,483
Sales Ta/VAT 58,453,773 41,004,136 30,995142 16,500,078 13,258,592
Total 164,003,756 112,115,324 88,313,066 54,348,903 47,325,075
Statistics
EPS (¢) 430.97 299.54 156.27 88.90 177.98
Dividend pershare (¢) 25000 17500  90.00 7000 70.00
NetAssetspershare ()  906.50 72553 60099 53472 51582
Current ratio T oasa 1.16:1 1.2:1 0981 1361
Return on shareholders fund (%) 47.54 41.26 26.00 1663 451
Return on net sales value (%) 1398 1369 9.63 8.33 2166

'GUINNESS
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Proxy form

Annual General Meeting to be held at

For Company's Use
10 a.m. on 25 November 2003 at the

~ 7

. h
Prempeh Assembly Hall, Kumasi. hlumber of shares
Resolution For Against
1. Todeclare a dividend
lfwe 2. Tore-elect Mr K Sarfo-Mensah

san .' ........................ % ..... : ....................... 3. TO re.e‘w Mr D J Armstmng
Being a Member(s) of Guinness Ghana %4 Torocloct Prof J W

Limited hereby appoint: Acheampong
. . _ 5. Toapprave Directars’ Fees
""""" To fix remuneration of the

Auditors

- Or faiting him the Chairman of the Meeting Prasss dicate wilh o 3 T the eprepia —
. inaicate n appreopriate square
as my/our Proxy to vote for me/us and on you wish your votes ta be case on the resolutions set out

my/our behalf at the Annual General above, Unless otherwise instructed the Proxy will vote or
Meeting of that Company to be held on 25 | abstain from voting at their discretion.

November 2003 and at any and every
adjournment thereof.

Date this .......... dayof........cooini 2003

..........................................................

This proxy form should not be sent to the secretary if the Member will be
attending the meeting

Notes:

1. AMember (Shareholder) who is unable to attend the Annual General Meeting is allowed by
law to vote by proxy. The abhove Proxy Form has been prepared to enable you to exercise
your vote if you cannot personally attend.

2. Provision has been made on the Form for the Chairman of the Meeting to act as your
proxy but, if you wish, you may insert in the blank space marked * the name of any
person whether a Member of the Company or not, who will attend the Mesting to vote
on your behalf instead of the Chairman of the Meeting. :

3. In the case of joint holders, each holder should sign.

4, if executed by a Corporation, the Proxy Form should bear its Common Seal or be
signed on its behalf by a Director.

SSANNIND

5. Please sign the above Proxy Form and post it to us at the address page 27 not later
than 10 a.m. on 24 November 2003.

6. The Proxy must produce the Admission Card sent with the Notice of the Meeting to O 3 2
obtain entrance to the Meeting.




Notes

The Company Secretary
Guinness Ghana Limited
P. O. Box 1636
kumasi
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GUINNESS




035



ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 2001-2002

£

D wny gy



GUINNESS GHANA LIMlTED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30TH JUNE 2002

037



Board of Directors 2

' Year in Summary ‘ 3
Board of Directors, Officials and Registéred Ofﬁce- 4
Notice of Annual ngeral Meeting | _A 5
Report of the Directors | o ‘ 6 . 7 )
Chairman's Statement o | 3-10

Report of the Auditors ‘ . 1“1‘
Profit and Loss and Income Surplus Accounts o 12
Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Statement'
Notes forming part of the Financiél Sta'terjje_ﬁt'sf'
Statement of Value Added
Shareholders Information

Five year Financiai Summaries -

Proxy




BOARD OF DIRECTORS B

D.H.C. Hampshire
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THE YEAR IN SUMMARY

 JUNE, 2002.

2002 2001 %

¢’000 - ¢'000 Change
Turnover 256,921,901 190,643,212 KL
Profit before Tax 48,172,841 26,388,896 83
Taxation 12,983,292 8,030,110 €2
Profit after Taxation 35,189,549 18,358,786 92
Dividends 20,559,000 10,573,200 94
Retained Profit 14,630,549 7,785,586 88
Capital Expenditure 26,422,128 10,016,167 164
Depreciation 13,580,317 9,480,264 43
Shareholders Fund 85,235,078 70,604,529 21
Earnings per Share 299.54 156.27 92
Dividend per Share 175.00 80.00 94
Net Assets per Share 725.53 600.99 21

Elmina 2002 Management Conference.
Aligning employees -
behind business objectives.

' Bullding Trade Pariners.
Key Distributers Conference,
Etmina 2002

The Guinness Action Hero, Michael Power
meets Hon. Osel Kwaku, Minister of Sports




BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICIALS
AND REGISTERED OFFICE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS David Herbert Campbell Hampshire (Chairmaﬁ)
Deviin Hainsworth (Managing)
Joseph Woahen Acheampong
Frank Cudjoe Damali
Paul Victor Obeng
Augustine Kwame Addo
David James Armstrong <
John Wheelhouse
Robert Njoya Kinuthia {Appointed 20/05/02)
Pamela Djamson-Tettey (Appointed 20/05/02)
Christopher Ojareda Enase (Resigned 15/03/02)
Francis Wussar-Narh (Resigned 31/12/01)

SECRETARIES Sena Chartered Secretaries Limited
3rd Floor, Mobil House
Liberia Road
P. O. Box 5520
Accra

REGISTERED OFFICE Guinness Brewery
Industrial Area, Kaasi
P. O. Box 1536
Kumasi

AUDITORS KPMG
Chartered Accountants
2nd Floor, Mobil House
Liberia Road
P. O. Box 242
Accra

REGISTRARS Merchant Bank {Ghana) Limited
57 Examination Loop
North Ridge
Accra

SQULICITORS Sam Okudzeto & Associates
3rd Floor, Mobil House
Liberia Road
£. 0. Box 5520
Accra

e

BANKERS Barclays Bank of Ghana Limited
Ecobank Ghana Limited
Ghana Commercial Bank Limited
SSB Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited
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NOTICE is hereby given that the next Annual General Meeting of
Guinnes Ghana Limited wilt be held at Prempeh Assembly Hall,
Kumasi on 19 November, 2002 at 11 o'clock in the forenoon for

the following purposes.

AGENDA

1. To receive the Report of the Directors, Balance Sheet as at 30
June 2002 together with the Profit and Loss and Income Surplus
Accounts for the year ended on that date and the Report of the
Auditors thereon.

To declare a Dividend.

To elect Directors in place of those retiring.

To approve Non-Executive Directors’ Fees.

To approve the terms of appoimtment of two Directors.

To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

BN R N

A Member of the company entitled to attend and vote is entitled to
appoint a proxy o attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not
also be a Member.

A form of proxy is attached and for it to be valid for the purpose of the
Meeting it must be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

Dated 11 October, 2002.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD Registered Office:

SENA CHARTERED SECRETARIES LTD. Guinness Brewery
Kaasi Industrial Area
P.O. Box 1536
Kumasi.

DIVIDEND WARRANTS

If the dividend recommended is approved, payment will be made on
18 December, 2002 to the holders of shares whose names are registered
in the Register of Members on 8 October, 2002.




PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company continue to be
brewing, packaging (Product Supply), marketing and sale
(Product Demand) of Foreign Extra Stout, Maita Guinness
and Gordon's Spark. .

TURNOVER

The Company's sales performance for the year was
impressive when considered against the competitive envi-
ronment in which it operated.

Turnover (net of taxes) grew year on year by 35% from
¢190.6 billion to ¢256.9 billion.

TRADING PROFIT :
The Company earned an operating profit before tax of
¢48 billion; that is, a year on year increase of 82,5% and
the highest in the Company's history.

The increase in profit was due mainly to effective cost and
working capital control, improved performance of our
brands, which recorded a 24% volume growth over the pre-
vious year.

TAX
Guinness Ghana Limited paid a total of ¢112 billion in
Excise Duty and VAT during the year, an increase of 27 %
over the previous year. Additionally, the Company paid ¢ 4
billion in corporate tax including National Reconstruction
Levy.

DIVIDENDS

In view of the satisfactory results, the Directors are
pleased to recommend to Members, the payment of a final
dividend of ¢15,272,400,000 that is ¢130 per share
before deduction of tax at source at the appropriate rate.
This added to the interim dividend paid in April 2002 would
make a total dividend of ¢20,559,000,000, which is ¢175
per share, that is, 94.4%, increase over the previous year.

BOARD CHANGES

Since the Annual General Meeting held on 20 November
2001 Messrs F Wussar-Narh and C O Enase resigned
from the office of Director of the Company and Mr Robert
Njoya Kinuthia and Mrs Pamela Djamson-Tettey were
appointed to fill the casual vacancy arising thereof.

Mr F C Damali, our former Marketing Director was
appointed to the post of Deputy Managing Director with
effect from 1 January 2002.

in accordance- with the Regulations of the Company
Messrs R N Kinuthia, F C Damali and Mrs P Djamson -
Tettey retire at the Annual General Meeting and being eli-
gible, offer themselves for re-election.

The names of the Directors who were in office during the
year under review are as published in this Annual Report.
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AUDITORS

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Code
1983, the Auditors, KPMG, continue in office as Auditors of
the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

DS

( D. M. Hainsworth )
Director

b

( F. C. Damali)
Director

in billions of cedis in thousands of hectolitres

EPS in cedis

Carporate, Sales Volume {1998 - 2002)

Profit before Tax
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- CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT ‘
GUlNNESS GHANA ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
July 2001 - June 2002
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Distinguished shareholders, Nananom, ladies
and gentlemen, on behalf of the Board of
Directors, | am delighted to weicome you to the
30th Annual General Meeting of your company.
| shalil present to you, this moming, the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the finan-
cial year, 1st July 2001 to 30th June 2002.

THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT.

Though Ghana's economy has shown a greater
degree of stability during the year under
review, the Cedi devalued by 18% over the
twelve months and has continued to decline
against major currencies.

Wwith Bank of Ghana prime lending rate at
24.5%, interest rates appear to have stabilised
andthe rate of domestic price inflation has start-
ed to come down. Notwithstanding these posi-
tive developments, the cost of running our oper- T

ations has increased by 36.5%, driven by the

continuing devaluation of the Cedi and high ' GUIVVESS
inflation. Allowing, for increased volumes, the
underlying cost inflation is running at 10.5%. brings out the Power in you!

In view of the economic environment, we decid-
ed against increasing prices in fine with inflation.
Our operating margins, subsequently, came
under significant pressure.

THE BEER & MALT DRINKS INDUSTRY,

Severe competition for volume in the retail trade
also restrained prices for beer and malt drinks
trom rising with the double digit inflation in the
period under review. The resulting creation of
value to the consumer grew total beer volumes
up 6.2% and mait drinks up 41.0%.

Despite severe attack from cheaper stout
brands, your Company invested significantly
and successfully in very creative marketing ini-
tiatives. This secured for the Guinness Stout
brand a volume growth of 5.1%, a volume share
of 26.3% and a value share of total beer of
40.0%, up 2.0 share points over the same peri-
od last year. This was an excellent performance.

Malta Guinness volumes were up 43.0% on the
same period last year. The brand recorded a
volume share aof circa 90% of total malt sales.
- The creation of very competitive consumer
vaiue through quality, stable prices and ease of
access through our network of vending points
will continue to drive the growth of this brand.

After an exhaustive research into new drinker
needs, your company in May 2002 launched a
new brand, Gordon’s Spark into the Ready to
Drink category of the Ghana alcoholic beverage

market. Consumer reception has been out- Fee‘ 900d every day
standing. Gordon’s Spark, from consumer feed-
back, is already a market leader in its category. l




OUR PERFORMANCE & DIVIDEND
PROPOSAL

In the year under review, the Management and
Staff of your- Company built on the strong per-
formance of the year before. Gross turnover
(net of taxes) was up 35% principally due to a
combined volume growth of 24%.

Our decision not to raise prices in line with inflation
has resuited in erosion to our margins.
Fortunately, prudent controls on costs and work-
ing capital, increased productivity arising out of
further investment in technology and an out-
standing sales performance have resulted in a
substantial increase in earnings.

| would like to emphasize, at this peint, the
excellent sustained performance that all of our
employees have shown. This has delivered an
outstanding vear in a very difficult and competi-
tive market.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is an active part of the local com-
munity and believes in its responsibility as a
good corporate citizen. We continue to support
projects involving the environment, health, edu-
cation, sports and culture.

ENVIRONMENT

Guinness Ghana is upgrading its environmental
controls to fully comply with international best
practice. As an initial step, your company has
acquired an Environmental Monitoring Unit,
AQUASCAN, for installation at the Kaasi Plant.
Additionally a new Effluent Treatment Ptant will
soon be commissioned. The EPA continues to
monitor all aspects of your companies opera-
tions regularly.

HEALTH.

Your company has continued to provide support
to the Cardio-Thoracic Unit at the Korle-bu
Teaching Hospital. This support and that of
some other areas in the national health delivery
will continue in the years ahead.

EDUCATION

The bulk of our support for education is now
channelled through the Otumfuo's Education
Fund. In addition, under the Chevening
Scholarship, which is supervised by The British
High Commission, your Company, supported by
its parent company, Diageo, has offered post-
graduate training in the United Kingdom for 2
Ghanaians.

SPORTS

This year, we have maintained our support for
the National Soccer Team, The Black Stars, We
have also sponsored the prestigious National




Challenge Gold Cup, the Guinness Golf Open, and the Guinness Football Gala. All these events were immensely suc-
cessful. , . i

CULTURE . .
Your company is proud of its Ghanaian identity and has supported a wide range of cultural activities in the year under
review. The Amanakrom Odwira Festival, Bakatue, Kloyo Mountain Climbing, Kontonkyi and Ga Homowo, are some of
these.

OPERATIONS

PRODUCT SUPPLY.

Your company achieved a
record output last year.
Production efficiencies, qual-
ity management and operat-
ing practices . continue to
deliver first world standards.
Qur aim is to ensure that we
continue to be the highest
quality and lowest cost pro-
ducer in Ghana.

Your company has initiated a
pilot sorghum project in
Northern Ghana to develop
local sources of raw material
for our brewing operations
and generate new business
and job opportunities for
Ghanaians. The investment
is approximately six billion
Cedis.

{ 128
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Aligning Employees behind Corporate Goals.

TRADE DEVELOPMENT: MD reviewlng performance at Management Conterence

Accessibility of our brands
for all consumers in order to secure sustained growth has been a major area of focus for our sales operations. Your
Company has invested behind the development of a trade parinership scheme, which seeks to build the capabilities of our
key distributors and retailers to enhance distribution and improve both service quality and consumer satisfaction. This proj-
ect is delivering good results with mutual benefits to your company and our trade partners. We shall continue to exploit
new opportunities in this area.

TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT.

People are key to our success. Our objective is to
release the best in every employee. Coaching is seen
as a critical factor and the development of coaching
skills has been given priority. We link our reward strate-
gies to skill, competencies, correct job behaviours and
good performance. These schemes are instrumental in
driving the record performance that your company con- .
tinues to deliver.

PROSPECTS.
Distinguished shareholders, the Board of Directors, .,
thanks all of you sincerely for your continuing confi-
dence in the Company. The focus of the Board is to
create increasing value for our shareholders. We have
achieved a good result in 2001/02 and intend to main-
tain this trend.

Thank you.

Buliding Trade Partnership.

! Director of Sales presenting the Distributor of the Year Prize

David Hampshire, : O 4 7




REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS

GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements on pages 12 to 19, which have been prepared in accordance
with Ghana Accounting Standards. We have obtained all the information and explanations we required.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

These financial statements are the responsibility of the directors. Our responsibility is to express an
independent opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence sup-
porting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, proper books have been kept and the financial statements, which are in agreement
therewith, comply with the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179) and give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the company at 30th June 2002 and of the results of its operations and cash flows
for the year then ended.

4

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
2ND FLOOR, MOBIL HOUSE
LIBERIA ROAD

P. 0. BOX 242
ACCRA

13th September 2002
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2002

2002 2001
Note ¢'000 ¢'000
TURNOVER 3 256,921,901 190,643,212
Cost of Sales (143,482,110) {104,276,807)
GROSS PROFIT 113,439,791 86,366,405
General Administrative and
Selling Expenses (66,338,222) (49,403,824)
TRADING PROFIT 47,101,569 36,962,581
Other income 4 1,320,161 239,785
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST
AND TAXATION 5 48,421,730 37,202,366
Net Interest Charges 8 (248,889) {10,813,470)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 48,172,841 26,388,896
Taxation including Reconstruction Levy 7 {12,983292) (8,030,110)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
transfered to Income Surplus Account 35,189,549 18,358,786
INCOME SURPLUS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2002
2002 2001
¢'000 ¢'000
Balance at 1st July 59,968,434 52,182,848
Profit for the year 35,189,549 18,358,786 -
95,157,983 70,541,634
Proposed dividend ¢175
(2001: ¢90) per share (20,559,000) (10,573,200)
Balance at 30th June 74,598,983 59,968,434

049
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BALANCE SHEET AT 30TH JUNE 2002

FIXED ASSETS
INVESTMENTS
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks

Debtors

Taxation
Cash and Bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank Overdraft
Creditors

Taxation

Dividends
Amount due to related companies

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Deferred Taxation

NET ASSETS

FINANCED BY:
STATED CAPITAL
CAPITAL SURPLUS

INCOME SURPLUS

DIRECTOR

Note

8

9

10
11

12
13

14
15

18

17

36,404,738
20,186,907

21,501,375

78,093,020

525,367
34,881,750
6,644,243
15,272,400
9,828,472

2002
¢'000

81,293,722

3,346,122

95,580,632

(10,345,554)

7,686,032
2,950,063

74,598,983

85,235,078

26,912,170
10,352,669

3,258,467
16,492,599

8,416,881
19,436,342

8,760,458
10,817,498

2001
¢'000

68,460,901

3,346,122

81,391,749

(10,787,220)

7,686,032
2,950,063

58,968,434

70,604,529

ed 1 L.



Operating profit (before investment
returns and servicing of finance)
Depreciation charges

Profit on sale of fixed assets
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors
Increase in creditors

Decrease in related company balances

Net cash flow from operating activities

Investment returns and
servicing of finance
Dividends paid
Dividends received
Interest paid

Interest received

Tax paid

Investing activities
Fixed assets purchased
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

13,589,317

(9,492,568)
(9,834,238)
15,445,408

(989,026)

(14,047,058)

(939,022)
690,133

(26,422,138)

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in cash and
cash equivalents during the year
Balance at 1st July

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

Balance at 30th June

Analysis of balances of cash and cash

equivalents as shown in the balance sheet

Cash and bank balances
Bank Overdraft

Balance at 30th June

' CASH FLOW STATEMENT
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2002

2002
¢'000

48,421,730

8,718,893

57,140,623

{14,295,947)

(3,522,248)

(26,422,138)

12,900,290

8,075,718
12,900,290

20,976,008

21,501,375
{525,367)

20,976,008

9,480,264
(102,091)
5,385,777
881,374
9,097,028
(37,982,338)

(12,897,212)
86,131

(11,413,189)
599,699

(10,016,167)
153,589

2001
¢'000

37,116,235

(13,239,986)

23,876,249

(23,624,551)

(2,943,287)

(9,862,568)

(12,554,157)

20,629,875
(12,554,157)

B

8,075,718

16,492,599
(8,416,881)

8,075,718

5



' NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =~

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2002

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
certain fixed assets.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are
considered material in relation to the company’s financial statements:

a. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to write off the gross value of each fixed asset
over its estimated useful life. The annual rates generally in use are as follows:

Leasehold, Land and Buildings - 3.125%
Piant and Machinery - 6.5% - 12.5%
Motor Vehicles and Computers - 25%
Furniture and Equipment - 12.5%
Wooden Pallets - 16.67%

b. Stocks

Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all direct
expenses incurred in bringing stocks to their present condition and location. Work-in-progress and finished goods are
valued at average production cost which includes all relevant direct costs and production overheads.

c. Debtors

Debtors are stated after providing for specific debts considered to be doubtful.

d. Foreign Exchange

Transactions dencminated in foreign currencies are transiated into cedis at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Balances in foreign currencies are translated into cedis at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date.

Differences arising from changes in exchange rates are dealt with through the profit and loss account.

e. Deferred Taxation

Provision is made for deferred taxation using the liability method on material timing differences to the extent that an asset
or liability will crystalise.

f. Post Balance Sheet Events

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date are reflected only to the extent that they relate directly to the financial
statements and the effect is material.

3. TURNOVER
2002 2001
. ¢'000 ¢'000
Gross Sales 369,037,225 278,956,278
Less: Excise Duty 571,111,188) (57,317,924)
VAT 41,004,136) (30,995,142)
(112,115,324) (88,313,066) '
256,921,901 190,643,212




4. OTHER INCOME

Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Sundry income

Exchange Gain

Dividends received

5. PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST
AND TAXATION is stated after charging:

Auditor's remuneration

Depreciation

Directors’ remuneration

Donations

Net exchange gain

Provision for impairment of fixed assets

6. NET INTEREST (CHARGES)/INCOME

Interest iIncome
Interest Charge

7. TAXATION

income Tax
1997/98
1998/99
1999/00
2000/01
2001/02

National Reconstruction Levy

2000/01
2001/02

Deferred Tax

Balance
at 01/07/01
¢°000

(119,107)

(759,010)
(3,700,000)
1,294,234

(3,283,883)

25,416

10,787,220

——————————— e

7,528,753

798,033
522,128

120,000

13,589,317

865,790
14,230
(522,128)

2,027,812

690,133
(939,022)

(248,889)

Payments
¢'000

(2,949,996)

(2,949,996)

(572,252)

(3,522,248)

The tax liabilities are subject to the agreement with Internal Revenue Service.

National Reconstruction Levy: This relates to a levy imposed on companies by the government on profits before tax for the years

2001 and 2002. The rate applicable to manufacturing companies is 2.5%.

102,091
51,563

86,131
239,785

100,000
9,480,264
510,478
35,651
(892,866)

599,699
(11,413,169)

(10,813,470)

Charge
toP&L
¢'000

759,010
2,405,766

9,063,889

1,196,293

13,424,958
(441,666)

-- —m——vwscsans

12,983,292

Balance
at 30/06/02
¢'000

(119,107)

(1,294,234)
1,294,234
6,113,893

emesescedamemmne

5,994,786

25,416
624,041

10,345.554

s tmaca -

16,989,797




8. FIXED ASSETS

Cost/Valuation
At 1/7/01
Additions
Transfers

At 30/6/02

Depreciation

At 1/77/01

Charge for the year
At 30/6/02

Net Book Value

At 30/6/02

At 30/6/01

Furniture
Leasehold Capital Equipment/
Land & Plant Motor Work in- Wooden
Buildings Machinery Vehicles Progress Pallets Total
¢’000 ¢’000 ¢’000 ¢’000 ¢’'000 ¢’000
4,770,280 . 75,765,335 3,003,045 11,706,552 2,063,883 97,309,095
120,164 264,144 1,666,133 19,540,056 4,931,641 26,422,138
4,124,381 14,918,822 - (23,400,178} 4,356,975 -
9,014,825 90,948,301 4,569,178 7,846,430 11,352,499 123,731,233
1,234,991 25,043,384 1,322,961 - 1,246,858 128,848,194
745,752 9,100,803 814,471 - 2,928,191 13,589,317
1,980,743 34,144,287 2,137,432 - 4,175,049 42,437,5.11
7,034,082 56,804,014 2,431,746 7,846,430 7,177,450 81,293,722
3,535,289 1,680,084 11,706,552 817,025 68,460,901

50,721,951

Certain buildings, plant and machinery were professionally revalued by Nationwide Estate Services, Real Estate Valuers, Land

Surveyars and Estate Managers on 31st December 1992 based on their open market values.

Disposal of fixed assets

Cost of assets disposed off
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Proceeds on disposal

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Depreciation has been charged In the financial statements as follows:-

Cost of sales

\

General, administrative and selling expenses

9. INVESTMENTS

Trade investments

2002
¢'000

9,100,903
4,488,414

3,346,122

e

This relates to investments in the ordinary shares of a listed company and is shown at cost.

2001
¢'000

408,713
(357,205)

51,508
153,599

8,470,361
1,009,903

9,480,264

054

3,346,122



10. STOCKS

2002 2001
¢'000 ¢'000
Raw and packaging materials 29,161,242 ' 10,992,784
Work-in-progress 1,064,496 425,175
Finished products 1,092,339 4,286,053
Engineering and consumables 5,086,661 5,067,814
Goods in transit - 6,140,344
36,404,738 26,912,170

11. DEBTORS
Trade debtors ’ 12,966,620 6,653,408
Staff debtors 97,196 28,223
Sundry debtors 7,123,091 3,671,038
20,186,907 10,352,669

The maximum amount due from officers of the company during the year was ¢97 million (2001: ¢41 mitlion).

12. BANK OVERDRAFT

This represents amounts drawn by the company under facilities granted by its bankers to support its working capital require-
ments. Unutilised facilities at the year-end amounted to ¢69,475 million (2001: ¢61,583 mitlion). '

13. CREDITORS

2002 2001
¢'000 ¢'000
Trade creditors ' 9,310,700 1,172,781
Sundry creditors , 8,654,749 8,402,647
Accruals and provisions 16,918,301 9,860,914
. 34,881,750 19,436,342
14, DIVIDENDS
Balance at 1st July ' 8,760,458 11,084,470
Proposed Dividend 20,559,000 10,573,200
29,319,458 21,657,670
Payment during the year (14,047,058) (12,897,212)
Balance at 30th June 15,272,400 8,760,458
15. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES
Materials and equipment 6,920,545 8,661,934
Royalty and technical service fees 2,907,927 2,155,564

9,828,472 10,817,498

- 055
MEE :




16. STATED CAPITAL

Number of Shares Proceeds
2002 2001 2002 2001
‘000 ‘000 ¢’000 ¢’000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of no par value 150,000 150,000
lssued
For Cash v 24,208 24,208 : 4,935,584 4,835,584
Transfer from Surplus 93,272 93,272 2,750,448 2,750,448
117,480 117,480 7,686,032 7,686,032

o e

There is no share in treasury and no call or installment unpaid on any share.

17. CAPITAL SURPLUS

2002 2001
¢'000 ¢'000
Batance at 30th June 2,950,063 © 2,950,063

18.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital oommitmemsvaumorised but not expended at the balance sheet date, amounted to 44,500 million (2001: ¢13,200 miliion).
19. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities, in respect of possible claims énd lawsuits at the year-end, amounted to ¢704 million {2001: ¢650 million).
20, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

i. The company is a subsidiary of Diageo plc, a U.K. registered company. Diageo is the beneficial holder of the shares in
Guinnness Overseas Limited and Atalantaf Limited.

ii. Raw materials costing ¢103,808,553,921 was procured from Guinness Overseas Limited.

{il. Included in cost of sales is an amount of ¢11,219,406,390 in respact of technical and management services fees payable
to Guinness Overseas Limited.

Michael Power at the brewery Launching Gordon's Spark,
the new product in our premium range




- VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30~ JUNE, 2002

2002 2001 '
¢'000 % ¢'000 % ;;
Gross Sales Proceeds 369,037,225 278,956,278
Excise Duties (71,111,188) (57,317,924)
Sales Tax/Vat (41,004,136) (30,995,142)
Turnover 256,921,901 190,643,2_1 2
Other Income 2,010,294 839,484
258,932,195 191,482,696
Bought in Materials & Services (186,124,819) (138,539,803)
VALUE ADDED 72,807,376 100 52,942,893 100
Applied as follows
To pay employees salaries
Wages & benefits 10,106,196 14 5,660,564 "
To provide for Depreclation 13,588,317 19 9,480,264 18
To pay for Taxation 12,983,292 18 . 8,030,110 15
To pay Dividends 20,559,000 28 10,573,200 20
To pay Interest charges 939,022 1 11,413,169 22
Retained for company growth 14,630,549 20 : 7,785,586 14 ]
72,807,376 100 52,942,893 100 '
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SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION |
JUNE,2002 - |

DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS
David H.C.Hampshire 4,000
TOTAL 4,000

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

no.of shares no.of holdings % no. of holders %

1-1000 459,782 0.39 1477 54.26
1001-5000 1,277,715 1.09 457 16.79
5001-10000 3,891,915 3.31 480 17.63
10001 and over 111,850,588 g5.21 308 11.32
Totals 117,480,000 100.00 2722 100

20 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

GUINNESS OVERSEAS

SSNIT

ATALANTAF LIMITED

BBGN/CHASE MANHATTAN OFFSHORE

BBG NOMINEE./CHASE MANHATTAN ONSHORE
CAL MERCHANT BANK LTD

DM VENTURES

BBG NOM.LTD/CHASE MANHATTAN

BBG NOMINEE./CHASE MANHATTAN ONSHORE
GHANAIAN EMPLOYEES OF GUINNESS

MIHL NOMINEES/BOSTON SAFE DEPOSIT&TRUST
BBG NOM. LTD/SSB GEN. ELECTRIC

MIHL NOMINEES/BROWN BROTHERS HARRIMAN
BBG NOM. LTD/SSB CALVERT AFRICA

GHANA REINSURANCE ORGANISATION
BBGN/UNILEVER GHANA MANAGERS

EPAC INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED
BBGN/UNILEVER GHANA PROVIDENT FUND
RETCO COMPANY LIMITED

MR S ODURO - MINTAH

TOTAL
Others
GRAND TOTAL

55,590,088
18,151,032
15,331,140
3,906,408
3,050,979
2,184,683
1,931,265
1,903,737
1,606,810
1,050,374
634,277
447,300
432,827
339,800
329,800
224,480
113,705
109,000
105,600
99,900

107,543,405
9,936,595
117,480,000

%
47.32
15.45
13.05

3.33

2.60

1.86

1.64

1.62

1.37

0.89

0.54
0.38
0.37
0.29
0.28
0.19
0.10
. 0.08
0.09
0.08

91.54
8.46
100.00
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RESULTS
Turnover
Profit before Tax

Taxation

Profit after Tax
Dividends

Retained eamings

BALANCE SHEET

Fixed Assets

Investments

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Other Current Assets

Total Assets
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Stated Capital
Capital Surplus

Income Surplus

Shareholders Funds

REVENUE COLLECTED
FOR GOVERNMENT

Excise Duties
Sales Tax/Vat

Total

STATISTICS

Eps (¢)

Div. per share (¢)

Net assets per share {¢)
Current ratio

Retum on Shareholders fund (%)
Return on net sales value (%)

'FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARIES
JUNE, 2002.

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
¢'000 ¢’000 ¢'000 ¢'000 ¢'000
256,921,901 190,643,212 125,360,500 96,517,325 68,178,796
48,172,841 26,388,896 11,149,452 33,993,104 20,702,190
(12,983,292)  (8,030,110) (704,956)  (13,083646)  (3,001,934)
35189549 18,358,786 10,444,496 20,909,458 17,700,256
(20,559,0000  (10,573,200)  (8,223,600) (8.223,600)  (4,699,200)
14,630,549 7,785,586 2,220,896 12,685,858 13,001,056
81,293,722° 68,460,901 67,976,504 47,599,867 28,244,916
3,346,122 3,346,122 3,346,122 3,346,122 1,623,507
21,501,375 16,492509 40,404,530 36,339,965 23,371,684
56,591,645 40,523,306 48,110,107 25923962 22,270,223
162,732,864 126,822,928 159,837,265  113,209916 75,510,330
(77,497,786)  (58,218,399)  (97,018,322)  (52,611,869)  (27,598,141)
85,235,078 70,604,529 62,818,943 60,598,047  47.912,189
7,686,032 7,686,032 7,686,032 7,686,032 7,686,032
2,950,063 2,950,063 2,950,063 2,950,063 2,950,063
74,598,983 59,968,434 52,182,848 49,961,952 87,276,094
85235078 70604529 62,818,943 60,598,047 47,912,189
71,111,188 57,317,924 37,758,825 34,066,483 30,379,699
41,004,136 30995142 16,590,078 13,256,592 14,769,771
112,115,324 88,313,066 54,348,903 47,325,075 45,149,470
299.54 156.27 88.90 177.98 150,67
175.00 90.00 70.00 70.00 40.00
725.53 600.99 534.72 515.82 407.83
1.16:1 1.2:1 0.98:1 1.36:1 1.90:1
41.26 26.00 16.63 34.51 36.94
13.69 19.63 8.33 21.66 25.96
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING to be held at 11 a.m.
on19 November 2002 at the Prempeh Assembly Hali,
Kumasi.

Or failing him the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our Proxy to
vote for mefus and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of that Company to be held on 19 November, 2002
and at any and every adjournment thereof.

Date this ....ccccoermriieines day of ............ 2002

Shareholder's Signature

For Company's Use

Number of Shares

Resolution For Against

. To declare a dividend

. To re-elect Mr R N Kinuthia

. To re-elect Mrs P Djamson-Tettey

. To approve Directors' Fees

1
2
3
4. To re-elect Mr F C Damali
5
6

. To approve the terms of
appointment of twa Directors

7. To fix the remuneration of the
Auditors

Please indicate with an 'X' in the appropriate square
how you wish your votes to be cast on the resolutions
set out above. Unless otherwise instructed the proxy will
vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

THIS PROXY FORM SHOULD NOT BE SENT TO THE SECRETARY IF THE MEMBER

WILL BE ATTENDING THE MEETING.

Notes:-

1. A Member (Shareholder) who is unable to attend the Annual General Meeting is
allowed by faw to vote by proxy. The above Proxy Form has been prepared to
enable you to exercise your vote if you cannot personally attend. ’

2. Pravision has been made on the Form for the Chairman of the Meeting to act as
your proxy but, if you wish, you may insert in the blank space marked * the name
of any person whether a Member of the Company or not, who wilt attend the
Meeting and vote on your behalf instead of the Chairman of the Meeting.

3. In the case of joint holders, each holder should sign.

4, if executed by a Corporation, the Proxy Form should bear its Common Seal or be
signed on its behalf by a Director. '

5. Please sign the above Proxy Form and post it so as to reach the address shown
overleaf not later than 10 a.m. on 18 November, 2002. O 6 O

6. The Proxy must produce the Admission Card sent with the Notice of the Meeting

to obtain entrance to the Mseting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7

Members of the Board Of Directors:

From left; F. Wussar-Naahr, Deputy Managing Director, D. M. Hainsworth, Managing Director, D. H. C. Hampshire, Chairman,
P, V. Obeng, Director, J. W. Acheampong, Director. Standing from left; J. Wheelhouse, Director, F. C. Damali, Marketing Director,
D. J. Armstrong, Director, C. O. Enase, Product Supply Director, S. K. Gollo, Secretary to the Board. '
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THE YEAR IN SUMMARY suxe 2001

Turnover

Profit before Tax
Taxation

Profit after Taxation
Dividends

Retained Profit
Capital Expenditure
Depreciation
Shareholders Fund
Earnings per Share
Dividend per Share

Net Assets«er Share

30\6\01
£000
190,643,212
26,388,896
8,030,110
18,358,786
10,573,200
7,785,586
10,016,167
9,480,264
70,604,529
156.27
90.00
600.99

30\6\00
¢000
125,360,500
11,149,452
704,956
10,444,496
8,223,600
2,220,836
27,712,724
7,083,180
62,818,943
88.90
70.00
534.72

) %
change
52

137
1,039

76

29
251
(64)
34
12
76
29
12

Safety is at the heart of all operations. The Guinness Fire Brigade on parade
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICIALS

& REGISTERED OFFICE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARIES

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITORS

REGISTRARS

SOLICITORS

BANKERS

GUINNESS
GHANA
LIMITED

David Herbert Campbell Hampshire (Chairman)
Devlin Marc Hainsworth (Managing)

Dr. Joseph Woahen Acheampong

Frank Cudjoe Damali

Paul Victor Obeng

Francis Wussar-Narh

Augustine Kwame Addo

David James Armstrong

Christopher Qjareda Enase

JohnWheelhouse {Appointed 15/2/01)
Christopher John Emptage (Resigned 15/2/01)

Sena Chartered Secretaries Limited
3rd Floor, Mobil House

Liberia Road

P 0.Box 5520

Accra

Guinness Brewery
industrial Area, Kaasi
P 0O.Box 1536
Kumasi

KPMG

Chartered Accountants
2ndFloor, Mobil House
Liberia Road

P O.Box 242

Accra

Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited

57 Examination Loop

North Ridge . o
Accra > L

Sam Okudzeto & Associates
3rd Floor, MobilHouse

" Liberia Road

P 0O.Box 5520
Accra

" Agricultural Development Bank

Barclays Bank of Ghana Limited

CAL MerchantBank

Ecobank Ghana Limited

Ghana Commercial Bank Limited

SSB Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the next Annual General Meeting of Guinness Ghana Limited will be held at The
International Conference Centre, Accra, on 20 November, 2001 at 11 o'clock in the forenoon for the following
purposes,

AGENDA ’

1. Toreceive the Report of the Directors, the Balance Shest ae at30 June 2001 together with the Profitand Loss
and Income Surplus Accounts for the year ended on that date and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. Todeclare a Dividend.

3. ToelectDirectorsinplace ofthﬁse retiring.

4. Toapprove Non-Executive Directors' Fees.

5. Toauthorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

6. Topassthefollowing as an Ordinary Resolution:

“That in accordance with Section 59 {b) of the Companies Code, 1963 and Regulation 11.1{a) of the Company's

Regulations the Company is hereby authorised to purchase its own shares up to a maximum of 10% of the
number of sharesissued.”

A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote instead of
him. A Proxy need not also be a Member.

A form of proxy is attached and for it to be valid for the purpose of the Meeting it must be completed and
depaosited atthe Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the Mesting. '

Dated 18 Octaber, 2001

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD v
SENACHARTERED SECRETARIES LTD.

Registered Office:
Guinness Brewery
Kaasi Industrial Area
P 0.Box 1536
- Kumasi.

DIVIDEND WARRANTS

if the dividend recommended is approved payment will be made on 18 December, 2001 to the holders of shares
whose names are registered in the Register of Members on 9 October, 2001

N— _ GUINNESS
g : GHANA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

TO THE MEMBERS GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company continue to be the brewing,
packaging {Product Supply), marketing and sale {Product Demand)
of Foreign Extra Stout and Malta Guinness.

TURNOVER

The Company's sales performance for the year was impressive
when considered against the competitive environment in which it
operated.

Turnover (net of taxes) grew year on year by 52% from ¢ 125 biliion to
¢190 biltion.

TAX

Guinness Ghana paid a total of ¢88 billion in excise duty and VAT
during this year. Additionally the Company paid ¢ 8.98 billion in
customs duties and corporate tax. '

TRADING PROFIT

The Company earned an operating profit before tax of ¢26.3 billion,
thatis, a year onyearincrease of 136.6%.

The increase in profit was due mainly to effective cost and working
capital control, improved performance of our brands, especially
Foreign Extra Stout which recorded a 4% volume growth, and the
stability of the cedi during the second half of the year.

DIVIDENDS

tn view of the satisfactory resuits,— the Directors are pleased to
recommend to Members, the payment of a final dividend of
£5,874,000,000 that is ¢50 per share before deduction of tax at
source at the appropriate rate. This added to the interim dividend
paid in April 2001 will make a total dividend of ¢10,573,200,000
which is ¢90 per share, thatis, 29% increase over the previous year.

BOARD CHANGES

Since the Annual General Meeting held on 22 November, 2000 Mr. C.
J. Emptage resigned from the office of Director of the Company on
15 February, 2001 and Mr John Wheelhouse was appointed to fill the
casual vacancy arising thereof. :

In accordance with the Regulations of the Company Messrs J.
Wheelhouse, P V. Obeng and DHC Hampshire retire at the Annual
General Meeting and being eligibie, offer themselves for re-elaction,

" 160 4
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS.

TO THE MEMBERS GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED (Cont}

The names of the Directors who were in office during the year
under review are as published in this Annual Report

COMPANY'S REGULATIONS

. As you must have read from the Agenda for this meeting the

. Directors are seeking Members' authority for the Company to
purchase_its own shares up to a maximum of 10% of the
number of sharesissued. We believe that the directors should
have the authority to consider this option if the conditions are
suitab_le.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Dt

{D. M. Hainsworth)
Director

( F. Wussar- Narh)
Director

3

EPS in cedis

Dividends in cedis

EARNINGS PER SHARE
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CHRAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Distinguished shareholders, invited guests, Nananom, ladies and
gentlemen, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | welcome you to
the 29" Annual General Meeting of your company. | shali present
to you this morning, the Annual Report and Financial Statements
forthe July1, 2000 to June 30, 2001 financial year.

THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT.

The 2000 calendar year was very challenging. Inflation rose to
40.3% from 13.8% in 1999. The Cedi depreciated 49% against the
Dollar compared to 32.7% the previous year and interest rates
climbedto over50.0%.

However, since the beginning of 2001, there has been a change in
economic policy. Tight money stabilisation measures have David Hampshire reviews business issues with the
reduced the rate of decline in the value of the Cedi. in the six  president of the Republic of Ghana

months to June 2001 this was at 4.0% against 32.0% for the same

period last year. The rate of price inflation has declined to 32.0% at Though signs of improvement
end of August against over 49% atthe end qf 2000. Interesf rates are starting to show with a
have, however, remained high and the private sector finance

needs continue to be crowded outin the capital market. Sairly Sta.bl.e exdzange rate:
' and declining inflation,
Though signs of improvement are starting to show with a fairly the operational and financial

stable exchange rate and declining inflation, the operational and
financial costs of running the business have remained high. Thisis
the result of the current cost of foreign exchange, double digit
interestrate charges and a relatively high excise duty rate on beer.

costs of running the business
have remained high.

THE BEER & MALT DRINKS INDUSTRY.

Total beer sales recorded a moderate growth
of about 3.8%. Malt drinks sales and the whole
carbonated soft drinks category suffered a
double digit decline.

In spite of very difficult competitive
circurmstances Guinness Stout recorded very
good sales and grew in line with the total beer
market. The strong performance during the
yearwas driven by substantial new investment
behind the Guinness Stout brand and very
creative consumer initiatives that continue to
sustain the brand in its leadership position.

Though the whole non alcoholic drinks category is in decline,
Malta Guinness is outperforming the category. The brand is
benefiting from stable prices and enhanced marketing support
andthese initiatives have significantly reinforced the brand.

!

¥
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT o

OURPERFORMANCE.

Distinguished Shareholders, ladies and gentlemen, our financial
year to June 30, 2001 has recorded a significant “ bounce back”
after the foreign currency difficulties of the year before. Net
Turnover was C190.0bn, up 52.0% delivering a profit before tax
figure of C 26.3 billion up 136.6% on the previous year.

This resuit was driven by the strength of our brands, enhanced
commercial and technical efficiencies, exceptionally prudent
operational management by the Executive Board and the
commitment of the entire management and staff, and was
facilitated by a relatively stable exchange rate in the second half of -

the year. Delivering timely support to the Cardio-Thoracic

Centre Korle-Bu Teaching Hospital
DIVIDEND. P r— ‘

In view of the improved results, the Directors are pleased to
recommend to Members, the payment of a final dividend of

¢5,874,000,000 that is ¢50 per share before deduction of tax at Supporting
source at the appropriate rate. the pride

of the Nation,
This added to the interim dividend paid in April 2001 will bring the - The Black Stars.

total dividend pay out to ¢10,573,200,000 i.e. ¢90 per share, up
29% overthe previous year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY.

Your Company continues to play its role as a responsible

' corporate citizen . We shall continue our policy of putting back into
the communities where we operate part of our profits to improve
the quality of life in those communities. We focus on the
environment, education, health, culture andsports.

Environment. .

Your company is committed to a policy of “ cleaner environment.”
We have accessed the latest in technology and operational
practice available to ensure that our business operations impact
on our environment positively and constructively. We have
assisted communities close to our plant with funding, technology
and management skills to improve on their management of solid
waste. .

Health : Building partnership with the trade. Guinness Staff
Your company has provided support for the Cardio -Thoracic Unit  interact with Key Distributors at a Distributor

and the Burns and Re-Constructive Plastic Surgery Centre atKorle-  Conference, dda.

bu Teaching Hospital to leverage their health care services.
Guinness Ghana defivered timely support when disaster struck at
the Accra Sports Stadium.

Education

We have, through the Otumfuo’s Education Fund provided
support for needy students, and we continue to provide
equipment and facilities to the Chirapatre Community Library to
service the 72 community schoals.

Sports

For four years running, Guinness Ghana has supported the Ghana
National Soccer Team in trying times and stood by them in their
bleakest hour. We believe in their future success. Our role in
enhancing the game of Golf is well known and acknowledged.
Under the distinguished Patronage of His Excellency President J.
A. Kufuor, Guinness Ghana sponsored the prestigious National
Challenge Gold Cup , Ghana's Ascot!

Culture o
We shall continue to support a wide range of cultural activities in
the years ahead.

Supporting the development of

Ghanaian culture O 7 3 s e,

GUINNESS
9 GHANA
LIMTED
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT o

OPERATIONS
PRODUCT SUPPLY

Your Company's market place competitiveness gained

considerably from significant cost savings during the year. In

- particular these were created through enhanced line yields and

" step change reductions in utility usage rates. Our plan is to

- continue to. improve and ensure we maintain world class
7 “standards. '

. INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

Your Company has made substantial investment in bringing world ~ Aligning employees behind the corporate strategy.
class technology into information management. Your business  The MD welcoming GGL Managers at GGL

now benefits from automated business processes, a state of the  “Be 4 Hero” Conference - Elmina.

art local area network, voice and data networking and satellite
linkage to the Guinness International Network. Lead time on data -
capture, analysis and business decision making has shrunk §
substantially.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT.

Sustained top quality performance depends on the quality of our
peogple. The development of our human resources is a top priority.
We are committed to forging a high performance culture and
employee reward structures that inspire exceptional performance.

We have implemented a communication strategy that has built . , , .
supportive management - employee relations and an a  leam review atthe “Be A Hero” Conference - Elmina.
conducive industrial relations environment. Employee motivation
and morale is good. This has clearly contributed to record
breaking results in the year.

PROSPECTS.

Distinguished shareholdérs, as we celebrate the good results of
the last financial year,"we thank you for your confidence and
support . Your Board of Directors have full confidence in the
strength of your company and will continue 10 take every step
necessary to grow valuefo:ourshareholders.

Thank You.
D HCHampshire Colin Storm (right) - MD Guinness Ltd., retires
GOVERNMENT REVENUE SALES VOLUME
450 -
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

TO THE MEMBERS GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements on pages 12 to 18, which have been prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standards. We have obtained all the information and explanations we required.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors ‘ ,

These financial statements are the responsibility of the directors. Our responsibility is to express an independent
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We belisve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, proper books have been kept and the financial statement, which are in agreement therewith,
comply with the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 178) and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
company at 30th June 2001 and of the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS -
2ND FLOOR, MOBIL HOUSE
LIBERIAROAD

P O.BOX 242

ACCRA

6th September, 2001

GUINNESS
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

TO THE MEMBERS GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements on pages 12 to 19, which have been prepared in accordance with
international Accounting Standards. We have obtained all the information and explanations we required.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors , -

These financial statements are the responsibility of the directors. Our responsibility is to express an independent
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financiat statements are free from
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assevssing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion.

Opinion
in our opinion, proper books have been kept and the financial statement, which are in agreement therewith,

comply with the Companies Code, 1963 {(Act 179} and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
company at 30th June 2001 and of the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended.,

LS
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
2ND FLOOR, MOBIL HOUSE
LIBERIAROAD
P 0.BOX 242
ACCRA
6th September, 2001
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2001

TURNOVER

CostofSales

GROSS PROFIT

General Administrative and Selling Expenses
TRADING PROFIT

Other income

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST ANb TAXATION
Netinterest {Charges)/income

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation including Reconstruction Levy

PROFITAFTERTAXATION
transferred to Income Surplus Account

Note

2001 2000
¢'000 ¢'000
190,643,212 125,360,500
{104,276,807) {58,543,889)
86,366,405 66,816,611
149,403,824} (60,157,989)
36,962,581 6,658,622
239,785 11,572
37,202,366 6,670,194
{10,813,470) 4,479,258
26,388,896 11,148,452
(8,030,110} (704,956)
18,358,786 10,444,496

INCOME SURPLUS ACCOUNT ron e vean ene sors sune 2001

Balance at 1stJuly

Profitforthe year

Proposed dividend ¢90 {2000: ¢70) per share

Balance at 30th June

2001 2000

¢'000 ¢'000
52,182,848 49,961,952
18,358,786 10,444,496
70,541,634 60,406,448
(10.573,200) (8,223,600)
59,968,434 52,182,848

r7 ~
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ALAN@E SHEET AT 30TH JUNE 2001

2000

2001
Note ¢'000 ¢'000
FIXED ASSETS 8 68,460,901 67,976,506
INVESTMENTS 9 3,346,122 3,346,122
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 10 26,912,170 32,297,947
Debtors 1 10,352,669 11,234,043
Taxation 7 3,258,467 4,578,117
Cash and Bank balances 16,492,598 40,404,530
57,015,905 88,514,637
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank Overdraft 12 8,416,881 19,774,655
Creditors 13 19,436,342 10,339,314
Dividends 14 8,760,458 11,084,470
Amount due to related companies 15 10,817,498 48,799,836
47,431,179 89,998,275
NET CURRENT ASSETS /
{LIABILITIES) 9,584,726 (1,483,638)
81,391,749 69,838,890
Deferred Taxation 7 (10,787,220) {7,020,047)
NETASSETS 70,604,529 62,818,943
FINANCEDBY:
STATED CAPITAL .18 7.686,032 7,686,032
CAPITAL SURPLUS 17 2,950,063 2,950,063
INCOME SURPLUS 59,968,434 52,182,848
1
| Dbt
- DIRECTOR
DIRECTOR
70,604,529 62,818,943
e O ?’g GUINNESS
. 5N GHANA
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CASHH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2001

2001 2000
¢'000 ¢'000
Operating profit
(before investmentreturns and servicing of finance) . 37,116,235 6,667,694
Depreciation charges 9,480,264 7,083,180
(Profiti/Loss on sale of fixed assets (102,091) 184,329
Decrease/(Increase) in stocks 5,385,777 {17,183,278)
Decrease/{increase) in debtors 881,374 {424,750}
increase in creditors 9,097,028 717,734
" (Decrease)/Increase in related éompany balances {37,982,338) 27,553,016
Fixed assets written off ’ . 10,226
Nét cash flow from operating activities (13,239,986) 17,940,457
23,876,249 24,608,151
Investment returns and servicing of finance
Dividends paid {12,897,212) {8,154,170)
Dividends received 86,131 2,500
Interest paid (11,413,169} (2,126,297)
Interest received 599,699 6,605,555
{23,624,551) {3.672,412)
Tax paid {2,943,287) (7,339,840)
Investing activities
Fixed assets purchased {10,016,167) (27,712,724)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 153,599 58,350
(9,862,568) (27,654,374}
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (12,554,157) {14,058,475)
Analysis of changes in cash and
cash equivalents during the year
Balance at 1st July 20,629,875 34,688,350
Netcash outflow {12,554,157) (14,058,475)
Balance at 30th June 8,075,718 20,629,875
Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents as shown in the balance sheet )
Cash and bank balances 16,492,599 40,404,530
Bank Overdraft (8,416,881) {19,774,655)
Balance at 30th June 8,075,718 20,629,875
sumss v
GHANA
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2001

1. BASIS OFACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of certain fixed assets.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are considered
material in relation to the company's financial statements:

a. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to write off the gross value of each fixed
assetover its estimated useful life. The annual rates generally in use are asfollows:

Leasehald, Land and Buildings - 3.125%

Plantand Machinery ) - 6.5%-12.5%

Motor Vehicles and Computers - 25%

Furniture and Equipment - 12.5%

Wooden Pallets - 16.67%
b. Stocks

Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costincludes all direct
expenses incurred in bringing stocks to their present condition and location. Work-in-progress and finished
goods are valued at average production cost whichincludes all relevant direct costs and production overheads.

¢. Debtors

Debtors are stated after providing for specific debts considered to be doubtful.

d. Foreign Exchange {

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into cedis at the rates of exchange ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Differences arising from changes in exchange rates are dealt with through the profit
andloss account.

Balances in foreign currencies are translated into cedis at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

e. Deferred Taxation

Provision is made for deferred taxation using the liability method on material timing differences to the extent that
an asset or liability will crystalise. '

f. PostBalance SheetEvents

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date are reflected only to the extent that they relate directly to the
financial statements and the effectis material.

GUINNESS
_ . . GHANA
ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2001 . 15 LIMITED




GUINNESS

GHANA N e
LIMITED 216

NOTES FORMING PART OF

THE HNAN@M STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2001 (Cont|

3. TURNOVER
2001 2000
¢'000 ¢'000
Gross Sales 278,956,278 179,709,403
Less: Excise Duty {57,312,924) {37,758,825)
VAT (30,995,142) {16,590,078)
(88,313,066} (54,348,903)
190,643,212 125,360,500
4. OTHERINCOME
Dividends received 86,131 2,500
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 102,091 -
Sundryincome 51,563 9,072
239,785 11,572
8. PROFITBEFOREINTEREST
6. BTAXATION is stated after charging:
q
Auditor's remuneration 100,000 54,000
Depreciation 9,480,264 7,083,180
Directors' remuneration 510,478 . 288,730
Donations 35,651 47,217
Net exchange {gain}/loss {892,866) 29,577,173
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 184,329
6. NETINTEREST{CHARGES)/INCOME
Interestincome 599,699 6,605,555
Interest Charge {11,413,169) (2,126,297}
(10,813,470} 4,479,258
7. TAXATION
Balance Payments/ Charge Balance
at1/7/00 Transfer toP&L at 30/6/01
: ¢'000 ¢'000 ¢'000 ¢'000
Income Tax
1997/98 1,188,513 {1,307,620} - (119,107)
1998/99 1,572,960 {2,331,970) - (759,010)
1999/00 (7,339,530) 3,639,590 - (3,700,000)
2000/01 - {2,630,336) 3,924,570 1,294,234
Dividend tax - (8,613) 8,613 -
4,578,117} (2,638,949) 3,933,183 (3,283,883)
National Reconstruction Levy - (304,338) 329,754 25,416
(4,578,117) (2,943,287) 4,262,937 {3,258,467)
Deferred Tax 7,020,047 - 3,767,173 10,787,220
2,441,930 {2,943,287) 8,030,110 . 7,528,753

The tax liabilities are subject to the agreement of Internal Revenue Service.

National Reconstruction Levy: This relates to a levy imposed on companies by the government on profits before

tax for the years 2001 and 2002. The rate applicable to manufacturing companies is 2.5%.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF
THE HNAN ST ATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2001 (Cont}

8. FIXEDASSETS

Furniture

Leasehold Capital Equipment/

Land & Plant Motor Workin- Wooden
Buildings  Machinery Vehicles Progress Pallets Total
¢'000 ¢'000 ¢'000 ¢'000 ¢'000 ¢'000

Cost/Valuation '

At1/7/2000 © 4,770,280 75,583,503 1,932,213 3,660,773 2,087,616 88,034,385
Additions - 292,772 1,365,050 8,140,209 218,136 10,016,167
Disposals - (110,940) (294,218) - {3,555) {408,713)
Transfers . . . - - {94,430) 94,430 -
Write-off ) - - - - (332,744) {332,744}
At 30/6/2001 4,770,280 75,765,335 3,003,045 11,706,552 2,063,883 97,309,095

Depreciation

At 1/7/2000 . 1,085,240 16,683,954 1,099,088 - 1,189,597 20,057,879
Charge for the year 149,761 . 8,470,370 466,583 393,660 9,480,264
Release on disposals - (110,940) (242,710) {3,555) (357,205)
Release on write off - - : {332,744) (332,744)

At.30/6/2001 1,234,991 25,043,384 1,322,961 1,246,858 28,848,194

Net Book Value
At 30/6/2001 3,535,289 50,721,951 1,680,084 11,706,552 817,025 68,460,901

At 30/6/2000 3,685,040 58,899,549 833,125 3,660,773 898,019 67,976,506

Certain buildings, plant and machinery were professionally revalued by Nationwide Estate Services, Real Estate Valuers,

Land Surveyors and Estate Managers on 31st December 1992 based on their open market values.

Disposal of fixed assets

2001 2000
¢'000 . ¢'000
Cost of assets disposed off 408,713 1,798,137
Accumulated depreciation . (357,205) (1,5655,458)
Net book value 51,508 242,679
Proceeds on disposal . 153,599 58,350
Profit/(Loss) on disposal of fixed assets ' 102,091 (184,329)
Depreciation has been chargedin
the financial statements as follows:-
Costofsales . 8,470,361 6,341,636
General, administrative and selling expenses 1,009,903 741,544

9,480,264 7,083,180

GUINNESS
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NOTES FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ron tve vean enoe som sune 2001 comt

9. INVESTMENTS

2001 2000
¢'000 ¢'000
Tradeinvestments 3,346,122 3,346,122

This relates to investments in the ordinary shares of a listed company and is shown at cost.

10. STOCKS

2001 2000
3 -¢‘QOO ¢'000
Raw and packaging materials 10,992,784 17,882,915
Work-in-progress : 425,175 1,078,498
Finished products 4,286,053 3.812,244
Goods in transit 6,140,344 5,375,883
Engineering and consumabies 5,067,814 4,148,407
26,912,170 32,297,947

11.. DEBTORS
Trade debtors 6,653,408 . 8,952,188
Staff debtors : 28,223 23,129
Sundry debtors i 3,671,038 2,258,726
10,352,669 11,234,043

The maximum amount due from officers of the company during the year was ¢41 million (2000: ¢56 million}.

12. BANKOVERDRAFT

This represents amounts drawn by the company under facilities granted by its bankers to support working capital
requireme_nts. Unutilised facilities at end of the year amounted to ¢61,583 million (2000: ¢58,225 million).

13. CREDITORS

2001 2000

¢'000 ¢'000

Trade creditors . 1,172,781 2,958,992
Sundry creditors 8,402,647 4,101,139
Accruals and provisions 9,860,914 3,279,183
19,436,342 10,339,314

083
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" NOTES FORMING PART OF
T[H]E FHNANCHAL ST ATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2001 (Cont)

14. DIVIDENDS

2001 2000
¢£'000 ¢'000
Balance at 1stJuly 11,084,470 11,015,040
Proposed dividend ' 10,573,200 8,223,600
21,657,670 19,238,640
Paid during the year ‘ (12,897,212) (8,154,170)
Balance at 30th June ' 8,760,458 11,084,470
15. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES
Materials and equipment 8,661,934 48,962,178
Rovalty and technical service fees - 2,155,564 (162,342)

10,817,498 48,799,836

16. STATED CAPITAL

Number of Shares Proceeds
2001 2000 2001 2000
‘000 ‘000 ¢'000 . - ¢'000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of no par value 150,000 150,000
Issued
For Cash 24,208 24,208 4,935,584 4,935,584
Transfer from Surplus 93,272 93,272 2,750,448 2,750,448
117,480 117,480 7,686,032 7,686,032

There is no share in treasury and no calior installment unpaid on any share.

17. CAPITAL SURPLUS .
2001 2000

¢'000 ¢'000

Balance at 30th June 2,950,063 2,950,063

18. CAPITALCOMMITMENTS

Capital commitments authorised but not expended at the balance sheet date, amounted to ¢13.2 billion (2000:
Nil)

19.  CONTINGENTLIABILITIES

There are contingent liabilities amounting to ¢650 million (2000: ¢172m} in respect of possible claims on law
suits. :

, 084
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED suse. 201

{In Thousands Of Cedis)
30\6\01 ’ 30\6\00
¢' 000 % ¢' 000 %
Gross Sales Proceeds 278,956,278 179,709,403
Exicise Duties (57,317,924) (37,758,825)
Sales Tax/Vat {30,995,142) {16,590,078)
Turnover : 190,643,212 125,360,500
Other Income 839,484 6,617,127
191,482,696 131,977,627
Bought in Materials & Services {138,539,803) {107,729,833)
VALUE ADDED v _ 52,942,893 100 24,247,794 100
Applied as follows
To pay employees salaries, wages & benefits ’ 5,660,564 11 3,888,865 16
To provide for Depreciation ’ 9,480,264 18 7,083,180 29
To provide for Taxation 8,030,110 18 704,956 3
To pay Dividends 16,573,200 18 - 8,223,600 34
To pay Interest charges 11,413,169 22 2,126,297 9
Retained for company growth 7,785,586 14 2,220,896 9
52,842,893 100 24,247,794 100
BOUGHT IN MATERIALS & SERVICES
Cost of Sales : 104,276,807 . 58,543,889
Selling,Gen. & Admi.Expenses 49,403,824 . 60,157,989
153,680,631 118,701,878
Less:
Staff Costs 5,660,564 3,888,865 .
-Depreciation Charge - 9,480,264 7,083,180
Interest Charge/(income) ' 15,140,828 10,972,045

138,539,803 107,729,833

085
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SHAREHOLDER'S ﬂNF@[RMATU@NMEM

DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS

David H.C.Hampshire 4,000

£ Wussar-Narh ; 4,421

TOTAL XA
ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

No. of holdin )

No. of shares . gs % No. of holders

14000 459,782 0.39 1477

1001-5000 1,277,715 1.09 457

5001-10000 3,891,915 3.31 480

10001 and over 111,850,588 95.21 308

Totals 117,480,000 100.00 2722
20. LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
1. GUINNESS OVERSEAS 55,590,088
2. SSNIT - 18,151,032
3. ATALANTAF LIMITED 15331140
4. BBGN/CHASE MANHATTAN OFFSHORE 3,906,408
5. BBG NOMINEE./CHASE MANHATTAN ONSHQORE 3,050,979
6. CALMERCHANT BANK LTD 2,184,683
7. DM VENTURES 1,931,265
8. BBG NOM.LTD/CHASE MANHATTAN 1,903,737
9. BBG NOMINEE./CHASE MANHATTAN ONSHORE 1,606,810
10. GHANAIAN EMPLOYEES OF GUINNESS 1,050,374
11, MIHL NOMINEES/BOSTON SAFE DEPOSIT&TRUST 634,277
12. BBG NOM., LTD/SSB GEN. ELECTRIC 447,300
13. MIHL NOMINEES/BROWN BROTHERS HARRIMAN 432,827
14. BBG NOM. LTD/SSB CALVERT AFRICA 339,800
15. GHANA REINSURANCE ORGANISATION 329,800
16. BBGN/UNILEVER GHANA MANAGERS 224,480
17. EPAC INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED 113,705
18. BBGN/UNILEVER GHANA PROVIDENT FUND 109,000
19. RETCO COMPANY LIMITED 105,600
20. MR S ODURO - MINTAH 99,800

TOTAL 107,543,405

Others 9,936,595

GRAND TOTAL 117,480,000

%
54.26
16.78
17.63
11.32

100

47.32
15.45
13.056
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Shareholders at GGL's Annual General Meeting
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARIES sune 2001

(In Thousands Of Cedis)
12 mths to 12 mths to 12 mths to
30\6\01 30\6\00 3016199
¢000 ¢000 ¢000
RESULTS
Turnover 190,643,212' 125,360,500 96,517,325
Profit before tax 26,388,896 11,149,452 33,993,104
Taxation {8,030,110) (704,956) (13,083,646)
Profit after tax 18,358,786 10,444 496 20,909,458
Dividends (10,573,200) (8,223,600) (8,223,600)
Retained eamings 7,785,586 2,220,896 12,685,858
. BALANCE SHEET
Fixed Assets 68,460,901 67,976,506 47,599,867
Investments 3,346,122 3,346,122 3,346,122
Cash & Cash Equivalents 16,492,599 40,404,530 36,339,965
Qther Current Assets 40,523,306 48,110,107 25,923,962
Total Assets 128,822,928 159,837,265 113,209,916
Total Liabilities (58,218,399) (97,018,322) (52,611,869)
Net Assets 70,604,529 62,818,943 60,598,047
Stated Capital 7,686,032 7,686,032 7,686,032
Capital Surplus 2,950,063 2,950,063 2,950,063
Income Surplus 59,968,434 52,182,848 49,961,852
Shareholders Fund 70,604,529 62,818,943 60,598,047
REVENUES COLLECTED FCR GOVERNMENT
Excise Duties 57,317,924 37,758,825 34,066,483
VAT / Sales Tax 30,995,142 16,590,078 13,258,592
Total 88,313,066 54,348,903 47,325,075
STATISTICS ¢ ¢ ¢
Eps (¢) 156.27 88.80 177.98
Div.per share (¢) 90.00 70.00 70.00
Net assets per share (¢) 600.99 534.72 515.82
Current ratio (%) 1.2:1 0.98:1 1.36:1
Return on shareholders fund (%) 26.00 16.63 34.51
Return on net sales value (%) 9.63 8.33 21.66
LIMITED 22

12 mths to
3016198
¢000

68,178,796
20,702,190
(3.001,934)
17,700,256
(4,699,200)
13,001,056

28,244,916
1,623,507
23,371,684
22,270,223
75,510,330
(27,598,141)
47,912,189
7,686,032
2,950,063
37,276,094
47,912,189

30,379,699
14,769,771
45,149,470

¢
150.67
40.00
4Q07.83
1.80:1
- 36.84
25.96

12 mths to -

30\6\97
¢000

51,063,807
16,018,880
(1,607,390)
14,411,480
(2,937,000)
11,474,490

25,484,656
1,615,193
3,916,879

27,578,819

58,595,547

{20,088,908)

38,506,639
7,686,032
2,950,063

27,870,544

38,506,639 -

25,619,100
11,481,968
37,101,068

122,67
25.00
327.77
1.65:1
37.43
28.22
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PROXY

Annual General Meeting to be héld at 11.00 a.m on 20th November

2000 atInternational Conference Centre, Accra. FOR COMPANY'S USE

No. of Shares ......cceunesnssnsens

LW 1vsteiavanssssestsmsssssaian snsat et b eSO bbbt aes RESOLUTIONS FOR | AGAINST

{Insertfull namels)

1. To declare a dividend

i of Guiness Ghana Limited hereby appoint:-
Being member(s) Y appoint: 2. To re-elect Mr. Wheelhouse

3. To re-elect Mr. P V. Obeng

........................................................................................................

(Insertfull name) 4. To re-elect Mr. Hampshire

5. To approve Directors’ fees

Or failing him, the Chairman of the Meeting as my / our Proxy to
vote for me/us on my/our behaff at the annual General meeting of
the Company to be held on 20th November, 2001 and at any and

every adjournment thereof. 7. To fix the remuneration of
the Auditor *

6. To authorise the Company
to purchase its own shares

Dated this .....coeevrcemrcrcvaerennenns day of it 2001
Please indicate with an ‘X’ in the appropriate
square how you wish your votes to be cast on
he resolutions set out above. Unless otherwise
instructed, the proxy will vote or abstain from
voting at his discretion.

Shareholder’s SIgnature v —.—.—.

THIS PROXY FORM SHOULD NOT BE SENT TO THE SECRETARY IF THE MEMBER WILL BE ATTENDING THE MEETING

NOTES:

1. A member who is unable to attend the Annual General Meeting is allowed by law to vote by proxy.
The above Proxy Form has been prepared to enable you to exercise your vote, if you cannot personally attend.

2. Provision has been made on the form for the Chairman of the Meeting to act as your proxy but, if you wish you may
insert in the blank space marked * the name of any person whether a member of the Company or not, who will attend
the Meeting and vote on your behalf instead of the Chairman of the Meeting.

3. In the case of joint Shareholders, each holder should sign.

4. If executed by Company/Corporation, the Proxy Form should bear its Common Seal or be signed on its behalf by
a Director.

5. Please sign the above Proxy Form and post it $0 as to reach the address shown overleaf not later than 10.00a.m.
on 18th November, 2001.

6. The Proxy must produce the Admission card sent with the Notice of the Meeting to obtain entrance to the Meeting.

GUINNESS
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Net Turnover ' 241,614 T70.258]  41.9%
Cost of sales (155,192) (109,027) 42.3%
Gross Profit 86,422 61,232 41.1%
General, Administrative (46,638) (29,523)

Operatig o B R e

Other Income {890} 105

Exceptional ltems 6,031 0

i S e e TR A
Financial Charges (Net) (10,597) 71| -14975.9%

T Ty SV s i e s T T T

Taxation /National Reconstuction (7,098)

Balance as at 1st July 74599
Transfer from Stated Capital 0 0
Profit /{Loss) for the Period 26,489 24,687
Interim Dividend (6,814) (6.814)
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Balance Sheet As At 31 Dec

FIXED ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks

Debtors

Bank and Cash Balances

Total Current Assets

Less:

CURRENT LUIABILITIES
Creditrors

Taxation

Dividend

Bank Overdraft

Bank Loans

Short Term Loan

Total Current Liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

REPRESENTING:
STATED CAPITAL
CAPITAL SURPLUS
INCOME SURPLUS

statements, misleading facts or omit material facts

D. Hainsworth
Managing Director

A e T R T DRI

203,505

77,407
39,098
4,208

120,711

(86.160)
(8,739)
(6,814)

(48,555)

(35,000)

0

(185,268)

(64,556)

(12.777)

S A 2B

7,686
2,950
115,535

To the best of our Knowledge, the Financial Statements do not contain untrue

L Turnbull
Finance Director

80,533

37,655
20,543
65,813

124,011

(65,8386)
(7,522)
(15.292)
(2,440)
0

0

{91,090)

32,921

(10,346)

7,686
2,950
92,472
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Depreciation 8,837 7,461
Other Income 890 (105)
Decrease/increase in Stocks (13.502) 774
Decrease/increase in Debtors (29,623) (7.367)
Decrease/increase in Creditors (16,318) 6,059
Net Cash inflow From Operations (9,932) 38,432
Financial Charges Interest Received 170 326
interest Paid {10,769} (255)
(10,599) 71
Net Cash Outflow from Re-investments and Servicing
Tax Paid (4,736) (6,450)
Dividend Paid (21,836) (22.556)
Investing Activities
Fixed Assets Purchase (62,142) {5,382)
Proceeds from Sale of Investme 9,377 0
Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (99.868) 4,115
Net Cash Flow before Financing (109,801) 42,547
Financing
Deposit for shares Purchase
Proceeds form Rights issues
Bank Loan (Paid)/ Received 35,000 0
Short-Term Loan Paid
Medium-Term Loan Paid
Net Cash Inflow/ (Qutflow)
Analysis of changes in Cash
Equivalents during the year
Net Financing 35,000 0
Balance as at 1st Jaunary 30,453 20,826
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow (74,801) 42 547
Balance at 31st December (44,347) 63,373
Analysis of cash and Cash
Cash at Bank 4,208 65,813
Bank Overdraft (48,555) (2,440)
Balance at 31st December (44,347) 63,373
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GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31ST DECEMBER 2003
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF
GHANA EREWERIES LIMITED

The Direcrors have plea ure in submitting  the members their Anonal Repart rogether with the Financial
Statements of the Compiv y for the year ended 31st December 2003,

TRADING RESULTS

Profit afier wxation for '} ¢ year was ¢26,879 million as against a loss of ¢12,644 million in 2002,
The Directors do not re:x mmend the paymeat of dividend 1o mergbers.

NATURE OF BUSINT S

The principal activities » “the Coxmpany canrimie (o be brewing and marketing of beer and soft drinks.
CAPITAL RESTRUC] URING

A courr ordev was grac's d sanctioning the special pesolurion passed by the boatd on April 13, 2005 to write off
tbsde&mcnﬂ:zmmueswplm account through a3 transfer wo Stated CzpmJAmzmuspartofa:zpﬂal

restruchring exexcise,
CORPORATE CHAM( (ES

Initiatives bave been tken by Heioeken (majority sharebolder in Ghana Breweries Limited) and Diageo
(amjority sharchalder r Guippess Ghana Limited) o merge Ghsua Brewaries Limited with Gznm Ghana

Limited, subject to regyl] rtory approvals.
BOARD OF DIRECT URS

The Directors t retin: :ymhmnmmmdmcemmkeguhm&ofrhekegxummdthe&mpmym
Messrs. W. Kusi-Atan-z 3, LE. Yamson, E.M. Boye snd O.S. Adebanji.

The retiring Directars 1y ing eligible are seeking re-election.

Messrs ThA. d® Man 314 H.van Klompenbirg who were appointed to the board following the last AGM offer
themselves for approvil by the board at the next AGM in sccordance with the company’s regulations. |

AUDITORS
In ascordance with Sec jon 134(S) of the Companies Coge, 1963 (Act 179), Messts. KPMG continue in office

as Auditars of the Cong any.
BY ORDER OF THY: 80ARD ;

P T T TN T ST e R N T

DIBECTORS
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
TO THE MEMEERS OF
GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED

We have audited thi: foumcial statements of Ghana Breweries Limited for the vear ended 31*
December, 2003 as 51 out an pages § to 17, and have obtained all the information and explanations

we requiired.

Respective Responsit ilities of Directors and Anditors

The directors are resyv nsible for preparing these financial statements. Our respansibility is to express
an opinion on these 1 ancial statements based on aur audit,

Basis of Opimion

‘We conducted our an lit in accordance with Ghana Standards on Audivng. These stapdards require
that we plan apd perd srm the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance whether the finencial statements
are free from matecal misstatement. An audit includes examiving, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amowg ts and disclosures i the financial statements. I also inclndes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors, ss well &s evaluating the
overall presentation «f the financial statements, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our apipiou.

Opinion

In our opinion, proix r books have been kept and the financial statements, which are in agreement
therewith, and prepwmed in accordance with Ghana Accounting Sumdards comply with the
Companies Code, 1¢63 (Act 179) and give 2 true and fair view of the financial position of the
company at 315t Dsc xmber 2003 end of the results of its operations and cash flows for the vear then

ended.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
25 LYBERIA ROAD
P.0. BOX 242
ACCRA, GHANA

rassnreannensasnros o 2004
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GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER, 2003

2003
Note f'm
Turnover 2 206,674
Cost of Sales ] {119,478)
Gross Profit 87,196
General, Administrati' €
and Selling Expen:i s (57,478)
Trading Profit/(Lous ! 3 25,718
Other Incame 4 6,782
Profit/(Loss) befor: lzceprional Items 36,500
aund Net Fimancial (7 arges
Exceptional Iicms 12 (7,147)
Profit/(Loss) befors: Vet Financial Charges 29,353
Net Financia! Chargz 1 5 (1,785)
Profit/(Loss) befor:: Faxation 27,568
Texation 6 (689)
Profit/(Loss) after Y axation Transferred
to Income Surplus ¢ ccount 26,879
o ————

INCOME SURFPLUS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2003

Balance at 1* Januer 1 (40,589)
Transfer from Swated Capital 13 40,589
Profit/(Loss) for the: year 26,879
Transfer from Capit | Surplus 15 1,540

Loss on Assets Writ en-Off 7c (1,521) ]
Balance at 31st Dei: mber 26,398

——e

EEQ/800°d  902-) BEOVBRZIVIDFYH HOZSE(D TRdN-HOYS

2002
¢'m

136,109
(78,511)

—

57,598

(58,362)
(764)

550

(214)

(3,010)

—ct

(3.224)
(9,420)
(12,644)

-

———nen.

(12,644)

(27,945) -

(27,945)
(12,644)

. 100

P -

(40,589)

e m——
==
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GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST DECEMERER, 2003
2003 2002
Note f'm ¢'m
FIXED ASSETS 7 115,135 101,363
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks g 672,577 43,702
Debtors 9 27,112 21,366
Taxation (4] 573 918
Bank and Cash Balanees 4}],893 25,926
137,138 22412
[ - — =] [ ———
CURRENT LYARILIIIES .
Creditors 11 57,151 26,694
Bank Overdrzft 18(a} il 470
Bank Lozu 10(b) - 2,500
Short-texm Loan 10(c) 3,086 4,596
60,248 34260
i~ — 1 L_— —
NET CURRENT LAR ILITIES 76,907 58,152
152,042 160,015
LONG TERM LIABII ITIES
Deferred Tax (454) (454)
NET ASSETS 191,588 159,561
FINANCED BY:
STATED CAPITAL 14 144,043 74.9441
CAFITAL SURPLUS 15 20,647 32,187
INCOME SURPLUS 26,891 (40,589)
DEPOSIT FOR SHAI E PURCHASE 16 - 103,522
..... ; ’] O ']
) DIRECTORS
)
191,588 159,561
G SR, fr— ————3
Net Assets Per Share ¢57323 ¢5,517.71
Esminps Per Share £80.42 (¢437.24)
01E-4 EEO/500°d  802-L BEOWBYZ(VIOVYY MOBSE (0 THdN-A0E4 8S:80 Y0-30~11
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GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2003
2003
¢'m
Opaerating Loss/Profbit ( 1efore
Invesonent Retwrns n 1 Servicing of Finemce) 28,353
Add/(Less).
Depreciation 14,784
Profit on Disposal of Fix :d Assets (252)
Increase in Stocky (23,875)
Increase/(Decrease) in ) shrors (5,246)
(Increase)/Decrease 1 [ editars 30,457
15,868
Net Cash Infiow from ( iperations 45221
Returns an Investmerpt apd Serviting
of Finance:
Interest Received 230
Interest Charges (2,015)
(1,785)
Taxation
Tax Paid (344)
Invegting Astivifies
Additions to Fixed Agse s (29,662)
Proceeds from Disposi | of Fixed Assets 137
(29,329)
Financing Artivitles
Deposit for Share purchise -
Proceeds foom rights iis 12 6,669
Loap released to Depor t agaiast shares -
Bank Loap paid (2500)
Short Term Loan (1,5109)
2,659
Net Increase In Cask 1 nd Cash
Equivalents 16,426
Balance at 1* Jamary 25,456
Balance at 31¥ Decexbor 41,882
Anglysis of Cash and.. bank Balauces:
Cagh at Bagk and an YT 2d 41,893
Back Overdraft (n
41,882

EE0/0(0°d  802-1 BEQPBYZiRI0YYS
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10,024
457
(1,226)
4937
(35,697)

(9,440)

(16,803)
457

Spe—

103,522

(10,687
2,500

—

102

85:80

ten. tod 14 2]

2602

(3,229

(22,419)

————

(25,643)

(9,420

(28)

(16,346)

95,335

——

43,898
(18,442)

—

25,456

=

25,926
(470)

25,456

¥0-90-21
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GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED
N(7 'ES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2003

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accous tng policies bave been adopted and applied consistently in dealing with items
which are consjdered naterial i relation to the Company’s financial statements.

(a)  Basis of Aco unting

These financial statea xents have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of cer ain fixed assets.

®) Depreciation

Depreciation is calci lated on the siraight-line basis using the following annual retes which are
expected to write of ™ he gross value of each fixed asset over its estimated useful life:

Yo

Land and Buildings Leasehold Land and
Buildings 250
Plant and Machinery Bottling 6.67
Brewing ' 3.33
Utilities 6.67
Workshop 10.00
Motor Vehicles Forklift/Trucks 20.00
Trucks and Road Vehicles 3333
Furniture and Equapn ent - 20,00
Packaging Materials: 12.50
© Stocks

Stocks are valued . a first in first out basis at the Jower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes all direct ¢ xpenses incurred iv bringiog the stocks to their current stare nder normeal

operating coodition:, _
G Debtors 1 O 5
Debtors are stated £f or making provision for debts considered to be doubtful.

0le-9  EE0/LID 4 802-L 8EOPSYZIVI0YPe ROBSE(Y THdN-HON4 8580 $0-490-21
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{e) Foreign Xixcl ange

Transactons denomb ated ip foreign currencies are translated into cedis at the rates of exchange
ruling at the dates o he transactions. Balances are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. [ esultant exchange translation differences are recognized in the profit and loss
account.

o Sales

Sales represent the wdue of goods invoiced to customers in the year pet of returns, trade discounts
and value added tax.

(8). Deferred Ti:

Provision is made i1 deferred tax by reason of capitsl allowances exceeding the comesponding
depreciation charges : nd other timing differences. ‘

2. TURNOVEI.

2003 2002
¢'m ¢'m
Gross Sales Value 316,219 218,678
Less: VAT/Excise T uty (109,545) (82,569)
206,674 136,109
3.  TRADING |'ROFIT/(LOSS) is stated after charging:
Depreciation 14,784 ' 10,024
Directors’ Remuner ion 1275 1,326
Auditors' Remunerzt on 240 190
Donaticns 174 119
Exchange Differency s (Net) | - 6,530

104
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4 OTHER IN{ OME comprises:

Sundry licome

Profit on Sale of Fix 2 | Assets (Note 7b)
Rental Income

Realised Exchange (5 dn

S. NET FINAN CYAL CHARGES

Interest Received
Interest Charges
6(a) TAXATION
Balance
1/1/03
Income Tax
Pre 1998 an
1998 (555)
1999 G317
2001 (37N
Capital galas Tax
1959 108
National R wnstructiog Levy
2001 (72)
2002 (28)
2003 -
(918)

_—

Payments
During
the Year

(348)

(344)

e}

2003
f'm

27

252

70
6,433

6,782

230
(2,015)

(1,785)

_—

for the Year

639

— p——

689

——
P

The above tax pasiti 1 is subject to agreement with the Internal Reveaue Service.

®) Deferred 1o x
At 31" Dec» nber

454

10.

2002

20
(8,440)

9,420)

1

Balance
3171203

(17)
(555)
@17

GN

108

(72)
(28)
345

(573)

——e
p———1

Deferred taxes on 10 aterial wermporary differences results in deferred tax assets for which there is nio

reasonable mrobebili y of realisaion in the near future.

EEQ/EIOd  902-L BEOPBYZIVIDPPS
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7. FIXLD ASSE) §
a)

Gruss Yalue

Az 15t Jaguary 2003

At 31st Decerpber 2003

Comprising:

Cost of Assets
Revalued

Surplus/(Deficit) on
Revalmaticn

At Revalnation

Cost of Assets
Not Revalued

Accunmlated Deprexi tiop
At 1 January 2003

Charpe for the year
Releaged op Disposal
Re-classifications

At 31st Decembexr 2001

Net Book Valne
Ar 31 December 2003

At 31% Decanber 2007

PLLIA BRI G | LG L/ RIS LY LA YeNUIs NR, IS1 Vi
11.
Leasshold Plant Furniture Capital
Langd and and  Packaging and Motor Workin

Buildings Machinery Equipment Equipment Vehicles Progress Total

¢-m ﬂ‘m ¢m ¢lm ¢'m ¢|m ;'m
50,742 118,472 12,063 13,465 8513 537 208,625
299 4,025 12,314 2,961 4,851 5212 29,662

(3,623} - - (548) - (4,169)

151 1,207 - 57 - (1,415) -
51,192 120,081 24,377 16,483 12,818 9,167 234,118
2,278 20,546 - 252 37 - 25,847
40,174 58,335 . (56) 76 - 98,739
42,652 75,331 . 156 47 - 122,586
8,540 40,750 24,377 16,327 12,37) 9,167 111,552
51,192 120,081 24377 16,483 12,318 9,167 234,118
25,001 63,049 2,246 5,868 5,597 - 106,762
902 5,291 4,778 1,98¢ . 1827 - 14,784

- (2,102) - - (461) - (2,563)
25903 71,238 7,024 7,855 6,963 - 118,983
25,289 48,343 17,353 8,628 5855 9,167 115,135
25,741 50,423 9,817 7,596 2916 5,370 101,863
Leasehold Land apd 13 diding a5 well as Plant and Mociinery were revalued by Directocs as at 31st December 2000
by means of indices de ived from statistics of increases i prices over periods prior to the dare of the revaluauon.
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12
7() Disposal of f ixed Assets:
2003 2002
fm ¢’'m
QGross Vahue 546 1,002
Less: Accumulated Dey reciation (4s1) (1,0023
Net Book Value 85 -
Proceeds on disposal 337 457
Profit on Disposal 252 457
7(c)  Fixed Asset; Written Off:
Previously revalued 8 isets no longer considered usefill were writien off as follows:
Gross Value 3,623 ‘ -
Less: Accomulated Dy reciation (2.102) -
Luoss an Asgers Writtz: ff 1,521 -
—_— L=~
8. STOCKS
Raw and Packaging ! [aterials 42,091 26,689
Beer and Ma)t in Prix ess 4,655 3,656
Finished Products 251 177
Consurnables and Tin bmcal Spares 20,580 13,180
67,577 43,702
9. DEBTOR
Inter Company 3,362 778
Trade Debtors 17,859 13,326
Due from Officers cf the Company 1,776 749
Prepayments 796 B49
Sundry Debrors 3,319 6,164
27,112 21,866

The rmaximum amott ¢ due from officers of the company during the year amounted to approximately
#1,776m (2002 §745 m).

107
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13.

10. BORROWI]L(GS
@) Overdraft iz :ilities

The company had zt 31* December, 2003 approved overdraft facilities of ¢10 billion (2002:¢35
Dbillion) of which ¢1 {; aillion (2002: ¢470 miltion) bad been drawn at the balance sheet date.

() BankLean
This relates 1o the o' standing balamce on lozns wsken from the bank.

© Short-term 1 oan

Classified a3 short-tz m loan is a local curvency loan from an associated company.

1L CREDITO!1S

2003 2002
¢f’'m £m
Trade Creditors 6,959 6,580
Accrued Liahlities 1,063 1,767
VAT/Excise Duty -12,740 8,368
Other Creditors 5120 574
Dus to Associated Cc mpanies 24,122 9405
Staff Gratuity and P ision provision 7,147 -
57,151 26,654
——S— ]
12. EXCEPTIO VAL ITEMS
@ Staff Gratuit * and Pension provision 7,147 -
(i)  Redundancy ost provision - (3.010)
7,147 (3,010)

s —
p———y

13. REDUCTICN OF STATED CAPITAL

By a special resohutii m passed on April 15, 2003 and supported by & court ander dated Jime 16, 2003 the
company was autho s sed o reduce its staied capital by ¢40,589million. The reduction in the company’s
stated capital was 3 bllows:

Transfer from Ordire ry Share Capital . 32,297 -
Transfer from Prefe.o nce Share Capital 8,292 .
40,589 -

SR _—

WS

108
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14,  STATED C4 PITAL

Ordinary Shares  Preference Shares
‘000 ‘000
No of Shares Issned!
Balance brought for'y ard 28918 420
Subscription/Convess ion - (342)
Issued during the yex- 305,305 -
Total Balance carricd forward 334,223 78
Consideration ’m £m
Balance bronght fora ard 32441
Reduction in Steted ( apital (32,297)
Proceeds from rights lssue 105,956
Proceeds from Zevo ( oupon Bond 10,687
Additional Conversio a of Preference Shares 21,298
138,085
e — - | —_——
This is represented : s follows:
2003
‘000
Ordinary Shares
For Cash 55,365
For Considerati i other than Cash 82,720
138,085
Preference Shares
For Consideratiy i other thag Cash 5,958
As per Balmce Sher 144,043

42,000
(8,292)
(6,452)

(21,238)
5,958

R, 984

14

Total

£'m

74,441
(40,583)
99,504
10,687

144,043

f ]

2002
‘000

6,657
25,744

32,441

42,000

74,441

—

During the year, the ' umber of z2uthorised shares was fncreased from 30 million to 1,000 million by a

special resclution.

Thets are no shares i1 treasury apd no call or installment unpaid oo any shares.

The terms of the Pr1 srence Shares g1e as follows:

Breweries i nited,

Linrited as 51 fined in the Share Purchase Agreement.

- No dividend will be payable if none is declared on the ordinary shares.

EED/2I0°d  802-L BEOPBPZIYI09Y+
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They are red zemable 10 years after the date of conversion or earlier at the choice of Ghana

Non-curmulitf tve dividend will be equal to 12.5% of the Free Cash Flow of Gbana Breweries

109
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15, CAPITAL S{RPLUS
2003 2002
¢lm .¢|m
Balance at 1st Japuary' 22,187 22,137
Less:  Transfer to lil ome Surplus.
Revaluations aurplus seleased (1,540 -
Balance at 315t Decetd er 20,647 22,187
——— pmaem——— 1
16. DEPOSIT 41 :AINST SHARE PURCHASE
Cash Depasi: - 42,000
Inter-Compat ' Debt Bond - 10,687
Coaversion r1 IRECOR, HTS and HI deht - 50,835
- 103,522
f——— [ " —
17. CONTINGI ] IT LIABILITIES
Legal Suits 1,092 817
Excluded five 1 these fimancial statemenss is a yet-to-be-determined Peasion Fuad Liability of ¢2,524
million.
18. RELATED ? ARTY TRANSACTIONS
0] Raw mmteris] and technical gpares pars worth ¢80,617 million were purchased from IBECOR a
subsidiary of t e paren company.
(i) Included m co ditars is an amount of ¢17,73 Imillion in respect of Technical service fecs due to Hoineken
Technical Ser iees, a subsidiary of the parent campany. ’
19, DIRECTOX! ' SBAREHOLDING
The Direcrory nxmed b tlow hold the following atumber of shares in the Cornparny:
2003 2002
Ishmasel] Evans Yamsia 36,805 7.361
Ebenezer Magaus Boy 70,000 6,956
Martin Eson Benjarmia 31,721 4,721
Sir. (Dr), Kwame Doy or Fordwor 220,000 3,346
Darothes Plantenga-}h gewonig 20,000 .

110
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16.

20. CAPITAL C{ MMITMENTS
Commitments i resped of capital expenditure amounted 1o ¢6,692m (2002: ¢N) at the balance shect datz,

21. POST BALA! [CE SHEET EVENTS
Irntiadves have beea ¢} en by Heineken (rosjosity shareholder s Ghena Breweries Limited) and Dizgeo

(axajority shareholder i Guinness Ghana Limited) 1o merge Ghana Breweries Linited with Guinness Ghana
Limited, subject to regn atory approvals,

22. EXCEANG!I CONTROL
All repoittances Srom (i ana are subject to the approval of the exchange coatrol autharities.

111
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17,

23, ANALYSI: OF SHAREHOLDING

Distribution Schadul + of Equity Security a5 st 31" December, 2003

Class of Equity Number of Shareholders | Total Holding | Percentage of Holding

Within Range Y]

1-1,000 1,275 567,379 0.17
1,001-5000 447 1,131,969 034

5,001 - 10,000 46 335,677 010

10,00} = 9,999,999 9% 77 332,188,080 5939
TOTAL 1,845 334,223,105 100,50

NAME NO. OF SHARES %

1. Heinekea Inpemation il 248,711,074 74.41
2. SSNIT 62,377,222 18.66
3.D. Ofari 6,204,111 1.86
4. Lirnbe Ghana Limite | 3,911,791 117
S. GCS Account/P. Per folio 2,688,008 080
6. CFAO Liverpoal 747,890 0.22
7. E- N. Szfo-Nyame 678,041 0.20
8. KBL Co-op. Credit { 'nion Led. 600,005 0.18
9. CDH Asset Managez sent Ltd 510770 0.15
10. Falcan QP LP 472,002 0.14
11, MIHL Nominces A C9 450,000 0.13
12. GBL Employee ST; 12 Option 388,000 0.12
13, PZ Cussons Ghan) _td. 311,633 0.05
14, Merban lavestnere Holdings Limited 288,500 0.0
15. MIHL Nominees .z C 12 255,000 0.08
16. G.B. Otoo 250,722 0.08
17. Nstanal Trust Hel ing Conpany Ld 248,080 0,07
1R DBL Trading Accin ar. 246,676 007
19. L. Prempeh 236,000 .07
20. Sir Dr. E.D. Fords o 220,000 0.07
Reparted Totals 329,785,525 95.67
Not Reportzd 4,437,580 133
Cormpany Tota! 334,223,108 100.00 119
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NOT]CE is hereby given that the next Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Ghana Breweries Limited will be held at the Prempeh Assembly Hall, Kumasi on
Tuesday 8th July, 2003 at 11 o’clock in the forenoon for the following purposes:-

AGENDA

1. To receive the Report of the Directors, Financial Statements of the company
for the year ended 31st December, 2002 and the Report of the Auditors
thereon.

2. To re-elect Directors.
3. To approve Directors’ Fees.

4. To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not also be a member. A form of proxy
is attached.

All forms of proxy should be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting to be valid
for the purposes of the meeting.

Dated this 16th day of May, 2003.

By Order of the Board

Eer—

Joe Aboagye Debrah
Secretary

Registered Office:

Ghana Breweries Limited
Mile 7, Accra-Nsawam Road,
P. O. Box AH114,

Achimota, Accra.
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Turnover

Loss Before Tax
Loss After Tax
Dividend

Operating Cashflow
Shareholders' Funds

Capital Expenditure

Per Ordinary Share Data

2002

¢'M

136,109

(12,644)

(12,644)

NIL

(25,643)

159,561

16,803

2001
¢M
109,463
{10,633)
(10,633)
NIL
12,083
68,683

12,423

% Change

243

(18.9)

(18.9)

(312.2)
132.3

35.3




Dear Shareholder,

1t gives me pleasure to welcome vou to the
5th Annual General Meeting of our company
and the second meeting in the year following
the Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM)
in April 2003. The meeting in April was very
successful as you approved far-reaching
decisions that would impact positively on the
future of our company.

The Circular regarding the Capital
Restructuring has been sent to vou and ]
expect that by now you have considered the
need to subscribe to your rights. Permit me
to emphasise that the Capital Restructuring
exercise is necessary to reverse the weak
capita) structure of your company. 1t will assist
to reduce foreign exchange exposure and
eliminate the high interest burden.
Additionally, it will allow for the write-off of
the deficit on Income Surplus Account against
Share Capital and pave the way for the
payment of dividend to shareholders in the
near future.

The results of your company in 2002 were
negative as a result of high foreign exchange
losses and inlerest burden. However, the
commitment made bv the majority
shareholder, Heineken, to put in fresh capital
and to convert inter-company debt into equity,
together with the significant contribution
from management and staff, have already
resulted in a reversal of the poor performance
last year. Already in the first quarter of 2003,
a net profit of ¢3.8bn has been recorded.

Economic Environment

The Ghanaian economy recorded relative
macro-economic stability in 2002. Interest
rates declined from an average of 45% in 2001
to 28% in 2002. Inflation also dropped from
21.3% in December 2001 to 15.2% at the end
of December 2002. Although this was below
the Government's target of 13%, it was a good
achievement. The depreciation of the cedi

against major international currencies during,
the year was higher than 2001. The euro and
the dollar depreciated by 36% and 13% in
2002, compared to the 2.9% and 3.7% recorded
in 2001 for.both currencies respectively.

Operating Enviromment

Compelition in the brewed products markel
remained fierce throughout 2002. This induced
the brewed products market to grow by 27.2%,
compared to the mere 2.5% growth recorded
in 2001.

Inspite of the significant growth achieved by
the industry, the results of your company did
not reflect this improvement, due mainly to
the sharp depreciation of the Cedi against the
Euro in 2002 and the high interest burden on
borrowed funds. The impact of the Cedi
depreciation was two-fold: costs of imported
raw/ packaging materials and spare parts
went up sharply while our euro-denominated
debts attracted huge exchange losses.

Financial Highlights

Net turnover was ¢136 bn in 2002,
representing an increase of 24% over 2001.
Operating profit (before foreign exchange
losses and redundancy costs) improved
significantly from negative ¢2.8bn in 2001 to
¢6.3bn in 2002. This reflects strategies
implemented by management to control costs
and improve sales revenue.

120



In 2002, your company implemented the first
phase of a restructuring plan. This resulted
in a 20% reduction in staff strength. The
exercise was executed after negotiations with
the industrial & Commercial Workers Union
leading to mutually satisfactory terms for the
redundant staff. To fund these redundancies
in 2002, your company set aside ¢3bn, in
addition to the ¢5.4bn booked in 2001.

Financial Charges declined from ¢11.4bn in
2001 to ¢9.4bn. Although interest rates
dropped from an average of 45% in 2001 to
28% in 2002, your company had to rely on
additional bank borrowings to finance
working capital requirements and capital
expenditure.

The strong performances at the turnover and
operating profit levels and the lower interest
charges notwithstanding, net loss increased
from ¢10.6 bn to ¢12.6 bn. This was attributable
to the 36% depreciation of the Cedi against
the Euro during 2002, which led to significant
exchange losses on inter-company debts.

Cash Flow improved as a result of the Euro
5 million Deposit against Shares paid by our
parent company, Heineken, in December 2002.
Euro 3 million of that amount was used in
paying off a major part of the overdrafts and
other short-term loans contracted trom some
Local banks.

VAT /Excise duties paid to government was
¢82.5bn, compared to ¢75.2bn in 2001, and
represented an increase of 9.7% compared to
2001.

Capital Investment

The late start in implementing the Capital
Restructuring Programme for the business
also delayed major capital investments. A total
of ¢16.8 bn was however invested in essential
plant and equipment during the year.

These investments were needed to enhance
production efficiencies, enlarge cost-savings,
to improve product quality and enhance
overall productivity.

Dividend

As a result of the negative balance on our
Income Surplus Account and the legal
restrictions under Section 71(b) of the
Companies Code 1963 (Act 179), the Board
deeply regrets its inability to recommend the
payment of dividend for 2002. As already
explained, the elimination of this deficit on
the Income Surplus Account forms part of the
Capital Restructuring Exercise currently
underway.

Community Relations

We continued to discharge our social
obligations to civil society as part of our
corporate social responsibility programme.
The areas of special interest 1o vour companv
were water conservation, environmental
protection, education and healthcare. Qur
focus was on programmes and activities that
would prove beneficial to many people in our
host communities,

Our People

In 2002, thanks to the cooperation of staff at
all levels, vour company enjoved a peaceful
and excellent workplace environment.

We continued our focus on building team
spirit and developing employee core
competencies through various training
programmes.

On behalf of the Board, we wish to
acknowledge the contribution of the staff and
to thank them for their commitment to the
vision of the business and to solicit their
continued support and cooperation with
management to ensure that the companyv
returns to profitability.
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Prospects

Following your approval of the Capital
Restructuring Plan at the recent EGM, we are
well placed to resolve the major operational
challenges of strengthening the very weak
balance sheet and improving cash-flow to
meet working capital requirements and
accelerate value-creation. At the end of the
exercise, overdrafts and the euro-denominated
debts would be reduced considerably.

Management is taking every step to ensure
that there is adequate production capacity
available to meet market requirements. In the
short-term, we shall focus on volume growth
and the improvement of turnover and
operating profit. This will be achieved through
"affordable products, a strong relationship with
the trade at all levels and by ensuring stringent
cost management. The major thrust of our
treasury management activities in 2003 would
be to restrict Bank borrowing / short-term deb!
and to rely on internally generated funds to
meet cash flow needs. Focus will also be on
managing the Company's forex exposure level
to ensure that exchange losses are minimised.
Operational complexities would continue to
be rationalised, to aliow for a better focus on
value-creating activities.

Environmental protection activities, including,
lower energy and lower water utilisation and
the improvement of employee safety and
health will continue to engage our attention.
As ] have already indicated, the first signs of
the improvement in the fortunes of your
business are already evident in the operating
profit recorded in the first quarter of this year.
1 am confident that we can sustain this trend
throughout the year and close 2003 with a
positive result, thereby enabling your
company pay dividend in 2004.

Conclusion

With the expected completion of the Capital
Restructuring exercise this year, your company
would be on course to take advantage of the
growth in the brewery industry. This would
enable us to focus on enlarging shareholder-
value and improving return on our
investments. In the short-term, we foresee
considerable challenges on the socio-economic
horizon. Nevertheless, we firmly believe that
our investments aimed at upgrading the
efficiency of our production, distribution and
marketing systems, together with
improvement in the skills and capabilities of
our people would give us the capacity to
weather the economic storms and capitalise
on opportunities in the market.

Our company is even more resolved to benefit
from the peaceful socio-political environment
and to put behind it the unfortunate shortfall
in our performance in the recent past. The
overriding goal remains to return the company
to profit and increase shareholder value in the
years ahead.

- h

Martin Eson-Benjamin
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting to the members their Annual Report together
with the Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended 31st December 2002.

Trading Results
Net Loss after taxation for the vear was ¢12,644 million as against a loss of ¢10,633 million
in 2001.

The Directors are unable to recommend the pavment of a dividend to members in view of
the deficit on the Income Surplus Account and in accordance with Section 71(b) of the
Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179).

Nature of Business

The principal activities of the Company continue to be brewing and marketing of beer and
soft drinks.

Board of Directors
Mr. Stephen Jansen resigned as a member of the Board on 24th December, 2002.

The Directors to retire by rotation in accordance with Regulation 64 of the Regulations of
the Company are Messrs. J. H. van Mameren, C.]. G. Nouwens and Mrs Door Plantenga-
Hogewoning. The retiring Directors being eligible are seeking re-election.

Auditors

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Code, 1963 Messrs. KPMG continue in
office as Auditors of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

M. Eson-Benjamin (Chairman) )

g{ \ } Directors

O. S. Adebanji (Managing)

LG

Accra, 14th April, 2003.

124




We have audited the financial statements on pages 11 to 19 which have been prepared
in accordance with International Accounting Standards and Ghana Accounting
Standards. We have obtained all the information and explanations we required.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
These financial statements are the responsibility of the directors. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and
Ghana Standards on Auditing. These standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 1t also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, proper books have been kept and the financial statements, which are
in agreement therewith, comply with the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179) and give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the company at 31st December 2002
and of the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

N

Chartered Accountants
2nd Floor, Mobil House,
Liberia Road,

P. O. Box 242,

Accra, Ghana.

Date: 14th April, 2003
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER

Turnover
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit

General, Administrative and
Selling Expenses

Operating Loss

Other Net Income

Exceptional Items

(Loss)/ Profit before Financial charges
Financial Charges (Net)

Loss before Taxation

Taxation

Loss transferred to
Income Surplus Account

¢MILLIONS

2002 2001
NOTES
2 136,109 109,463
(76,511) (64,114)
57,598 45,349
(58,362) (48,639)
3 (764) (3,290)
', 550 485.
P
(3,010) 3,554
(3,224) 749
5 (9,420) 11,382
(12,644) (10,633)
6(c) - -
(12,644) (10,633)

INCOME SURPLUS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER

Balance as at 1st January

Prior Year Adjustment

Balance at ist January re-stated
Loss for the year

Transfer from Capital Surplus
Loss on Assets Written-Off

Balance as at 31st December

The notes on pages 14 10 19 form part of these Financial Statements.

Auditors’ report on page 10

(27,945) (31,369)
13 - 2,217
(27,945) (29,152)
(12,644) (10,633)
14 - 18,437
7c - (6.597)
40,589) (27,945)




AS AT 315 DECEMBER

NOTES
FIXED ASSETS 7(a)
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 8
Debtors ’ ‘ 9
Taxation 6(c)
Bank and Cash Balances
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors 1
Bank Overdraft 10(a)
Bank Loan 10(b)
Short-Term Loan 10(c)
NET CURRENT ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)
Medium -Term Loan 10(d)
Deferred Tax Liability 6(c)
NET ASSETS
Financed by:
STATED CAPITAL 14
CAPITAL SURPLUS 15
INCOME SURPLUS
DEPOSIT FOR SHARE PURCHASE 16

SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

¢MILLIONS

2002

101,863

92,412

2001

95,084

58,152
160,015 79,824
- (10,687)
454) (454)
159,561 68,683
74,441 74,441
22,187 22,187
(40,589) (27,945)
103,522 -
159,561 68,683

The Financial Statements on pages 11 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors on

14th April, 2003 and were signed on its behalf by:

M. Eson-Benjamin P‘ - ’\_V\
X ¢
O.S. Adebaniji j /

"The notes on pages 14 to 19 form part of these Financial Statemen;:..
Auditors’ report on page 10.

Directors
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T DECEMBER

Operating Profit (before Investment
Returns and Servicing of Finance)

Add/(less):

Depreciation

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Loss on Fixed Assets Written-Off
Increase in Stock

Decrease / (Increase) in Debtors
{Decrease) /Increase in Creditors

Net Cash (Outflow)/Inflow from Operating Activities

Returns on Investment and Servicing of Finance

Interest Received
Interest Paid

Net Cash Qutflow from Returns on
Investment and Servicing of Finance

Tax Paid

Investing Activities
Fixed Assets Purchased
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities

Net Cash flow before Financing

Financing:

Deposit for Share Purchasc

Loan released to Deposit Against Shares
Short-Term Loan

Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow)

A. Analysis of changes in Cash and Cash
Equivalents during the year:
Balance at 1st January
Net Cash inflow / (Outflow}

Balance at 31st December

B. Analysis of Cash and Cash
Equivalents:

Cash at Bank
Bank Overdraft

Balance at 31st December

(16,346)

¢MILLIONS

2002 2001

(3,229 749
10,024 9,439
457) 217)

- 357
(1,226} (5,479)
4,937 (4,946)
(35,697) 12,180
(25,643) 12,083

9,420} (11,382)

(28) (109)

(51,437) (11,614)
303,522 -
{10,687)
2,500
43,898 (11,614)
(18,442) (6,828)
43,898 {11,614)
25,456 (18,442)
25,926 6,292
470) (24,734)
25,456 (18,442)




1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
These Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of certain fixed assets.

Accounting Policies _
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and used in arriving at the
financial information set out in these accounts are as follows:

Fixed Assests Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the following annual rates, which are
expected to write off the gross value of each fixed asset over its estimated useful life:

?ﬂ

l.and and Buildings - Leasehold Land

and Buildings 25
Plant and Machinery - Bottling 6.67

Brewing 333

Utilities 6.67

Workshop 10.00
Motor Vehicles - Forklift/ Trucks 20.00

Road Vehicles 33.33
Furniture & Equipment’s - 20.00
Packaging Materials - 12.50

Stocks
Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower ot cost and nel realisable value. Cost

includes all direct expenses incurred in bringing the stocks to their current state under normal
operating conditions.

Deblors
Provisions are made for specific debts considered to be doubtful.

Foreign Exchange
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into cedis at the rates of exchange

ruling at the date of the transactions. Balances in foreign currencies are translated into cedis
at the rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The resultant gains or losses are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Turnover
Turnover represent the value of goods invoiced to customers in the year net of all returns,
trade discount and taxes collected for the Government.

Deferred Taxation
Provision is made for deferred tax using the liability method on temporary differences to
extent that an assets or liability is probable to crystalise.

Research and Development
Expenditure on research and the development of new products is charged against profits for
the vear in which it is incurred.
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2. TURNOVER
Gross Sales Value

- Less: Taxes collected for Government

Excise Duty
VAT

¢MILLIONS

2002

218,678
(82,569)

(75,206)

2001

184,669

136,109 109,463
3. OPERATING LOSS

Operating loss is stated after charging:-

Depreciation 10,024 9,43¢%

Auditors’ Remuneration 190 175

Director’s Remuneration 1,326 1,021

Charitable Donations 119 94

Exchange Difference (Net) 6,530 341

4. OTHER NET INCOME:
Profit on sale of fixed assets (Note 7b) 457 217

Rental Income 56 4

Other Income 37 264

550 485
5. FINANCIAL CHARGES:
Interest on Current Accounts 20 138
Interest Charges (9,440) (11,520)
{9,420) (11,382)
6. TAXATION
Balance Payments Charge Balance
01/01/02 during the ycar  for the year 31/12/02

(a) Income Tax:

Pre -1998 (17) - - a7
1998 (555) - - (555)
1999 (317) - - 317)
2001 (37} - (37)

(b) Capital Gains Tax:

1999 108 - - 108
(c) National Reconstruction Levy:
2001 (72) - - (72)
2002 (28) (28)
{890) (28) - (918)
The above tax position is subject to agreement with the Internal Revenue Service.

(d) Deferred Tax 2002 2001
At 1st January 454 454
Provision for the year - -
At 31st December 454 454

Deferred taxes on material temporary difference results in deferred 1ax assets for which there

is no reasonable probability of realisation in the near futurc.
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7. FIXED ASSETS

¢MILLIONS

(a) Fixed Assets comprise:-

Gross Value:-

At 1st January, 2002
Additions
Disposals

Transfers
Re-classifications

At 31st December, 2002

Comprising:-

Cost of assets revalued
Surplus /(Loss) arising on
previous revaluation

At revaluation

Cost of assets not revalued
At 31st December, 2002

Aggregate depreciation:

At Ist January, 2002
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Re-classifications

Al 31st December, 2002

NET BOOK VALUE AS AT:

31st December, 2002

31st December, 2001

116,942

6,351

(903)

6,353

{100)

2,278 20,946 - 252 371 - 23,847
40,347 59,936 - (96) 76 - 100,263
42,625 80,882 - 156 447 - 124,110

8117 37,590 12,063 13,309 8,066 5,370 84,515

63,812
4,522

3,294
2,214
903)

50,423

9,817

Lsrny

Leasehold Land and Buildings and Plant Machinery were revalued by the Directors as at 31st December, 2000
by means of indices derived from statistics of increases in prices over periods prior to the date of the revaluation.
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7(b) DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS

GROSS VALUE
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Book Value

Net Disposal Proceeds
Profit on Disposal

7(c) FIXED ASSETS WRITTEN-OFF

Previously revalued assets no longer
considered useful were written off as follows:

Gross Value
Less: Previously Capitalised Exchange Loss

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

8. STOCKS

Raw materials
Beer in process
Finished products
Other stocks

9. DEBTORS

Debtors are stated after doubtful debts provision.

Inter-Company Receivables

Trade Debtors

Due from Officers of the Company
Prepayments

Other Debtors

The maximum amount due from Officers of the Company during the year was

¢749 million (2001: ¢848 million).

10. BORROWINGS
(a) Overdraft facilities :

¢MILLIONS

2002 2001
1,002 364
1,002 364
0 0
457 217
457 217
- 25,591
- 6,606
- 18,985
- 12,031
- 6,954
26,689 26,839
3,656 3,840
177 1,273
13,180 10,524
43,702 42,476
778 -
13,326 12,269
749 848
849 850
6,164 12,836
21,866 26,803

The Company had as at 31st December, 2002 approved overdraft facilities of ¢26 billion
(2001: ¢35 billion) on which ¢470 million {2001:¢24.7 billion) had been drawn at the

balance sheet date.

{b) Bank Loan:

This refers to the outstanding balance on loans taken from the bank.

(c} Short-term Loan :

Classified as short-term loan is a local currency loan from an Associated Company.

(d) Medium-term Loan :

Medium-term joan constitutes an amount of ¢10,687 million from the Parent Company
in the form of zero coupon convertible bonds with the option to convert into Equity. The
Heineken Board has approved a resolution to exercise the option of converting the bond
into equity shares with effect from 10th March 2003. Consequently, the bond has been
transierred to Deposit for share purchase awaiting completion of necessary formalities

for the share issue.




11. CREDITORS

Trade Creditors

Accrued Liabilities

Excise Duty/ VAT

Other Creditors

Due to Associated Company

12. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

(i) Provision for bad debt no longer required
(ii) Redundancy cost provision

13. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

14. SHARES & STATED CAPITAL
(a) Shares

The Number of authorised shares (thousands):
Preference Shares

Number of issued shares:

Fully paid for cash

For consolidation other than cash (by capitalisation
of surplus) .

Number of issued Preference Shares:
For consideration other than cash

(b) Stated Capital

Value of Ordinary shares:

Fully paid for cash

For consolidation other than cash
{by capitalisation of surplus)

Value of Preference shares:
For consolidation other than cash

There are no shares in treasury and no call or instalment unpaid on any shares.

The terms of the Preference Shares are as follows:

a. They are redeemable 10 years after the date of conversion or earlier at
the instance of Ghana Breweries Limited.

b. Non-cumulative dividend will be equal to 12.5% of the Free Cash flow

2002

6,580
1,767
8,368

574
9,405

26,694

cm

6,697

25,744
32,411

42,000
74,441

of Ghana Breweries Limited as defined in the Share Purchase Agreement.

<. No dividend will be payable if there are no dividends on the ordinary shares.

15. CAPITAL SURPLUS
Balance at 1st January
Add: Revaluation Surplus released

This consists of an adjustment on foreign exchange losses on short-term loan.

7,020

21,898
28,918

420

6,697

25,744
32,441

42,000
74,441.




16. DEPOSIT FOR SHARE PURCHASE 2002 2001
Cash component of (Euro 5 million) 42,000
Inter-Company Debt conversion of (Euro 7.5 million) 50,835
Zero Coupon Convertible Bond 10,687 -

103,522 -

17. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 2002 2001
Legal Suits 817 655

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
)] Raw material and technical spares parts worth ¢44,727 million were

purchased from IBECOR a subsidiary of the parent company.

(it) Included in creditors is an amount of ¢3,690 million in respect of
Technical Service fees due to Heineken Technical Services, a subsidiary
of the parent company and ¢2,424 million in respect of royalties for Gulder

and Amstel.

19. DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING

The Directors named below hold the following number of shares in the company:

Martin Eson-Benjamin
Ishmael Evans Yamson
Ebenezer Magnus Bove

Dr. Kwame Donkoh Fordwor

20. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

2002
4,721
7,361
6,956
3,346

2001
4,721
7,361
6,956
3,346

There were no capital commitments as at 31st December 2002 and at

31st December 2001.




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 DECEMBER

Turnover
Other Income

Less: v
Bought-in-materials and services

VALUE ADDED

Applied as follows:
1. Employees Remuneration
2. Income Tax to Government
3. Providers of Capital:
(a) Overdraft Interest
(b) Shareholders
4. Reinvested in the Business:

Depreciation
Profit Retained

VALUE ADDED - 2002

10
20
30
40 -

Employess Ovararatt Seprecizten Prellt
. | Remunerstion | irtarest fatained
(8%  s0 18 30 138)

M M
136,109 109,463
550 485
136,659 109,948
103,255 75,207
33,404 100 34,743 100
26,604 80 24,553 71
9,420 28 11,382 33
10,024 30 9,439 27
(12,644} (38)  (10,633) 31)
33,404 100 34,741 100

VALUE ADDED - 2001

20
30
0
Emplayses - Oeardratt Prettl
fommerstion | bersst | DOTOHIN | g
(s% 33 27 31
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

1.

Turnover including Sales Tax/ VAT and Excise Duty

Excise Duty /Sales Tax/ VAT

NET PROCEEDS OF SALES
Capital Employed

Stated Capital

Capital Surplus

Income Surplus

Deposit against shares
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Represented by:

Fixed Assets

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities)
Long Term Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Profit /(Loss)After Exceptional lems before Tax
Profit /(Loss)After Taxation

Dividends
Earnings per Share (¢)
Dividend per Share (¢)

Net Assets per Share (¢)

. Return on Sharcholders' Funds %

. Return on Sales Value %.

¢MILLIONS

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
95,210 105,142 149,175 184,669 218,678
(41,671) (41,795) (59.841) (75,206} (82,569)
53,539 63,347 89,334 109,463 136,109
66,541 66,541 74,441 74,441 74,441
24,703 - 28,752 40;624 22,187 22,187
(31,347)  (27.831) (31,369) (27,945} 40,589)

. - - 103,522
59,897 67,462 83,6% 68,683 159,561
53,749 66,653 105,660 95,084 101,863

6,602 11,950 (10,823) (15,260) 58,152
(454) (11,141) (11,141) (11,141) 454)

59,897 67,462 83,69 68,683 159,561
1,421 3,038 (3,430) (10,633) (12,644)
1,421 3,038 (3.538) (10,633) (12,644)
65.52 140.07 (122.35) (367.69)  (437.29)

2,761.67  3,110.42 2,894.25 237510 5.517.71

2.4 4.5 4.2) (15.5) (22.6)

26 4.8 (4.0} 9.7) (93)
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10.
11.
12.

14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

NAME

Heineken International B.V

Limba Ghana Limited

SSNIT

Mr. D. Ofori

CFAO Liverpool

GCS Account/Foreign Portfolio
Databank Brokerage Limited
Paterson Zochonis Ghana Limited
Mr. E. N. Safo-Nyame

KBL Co-op. Credit Union Limited
SDC Brokerage Services Limited
National Trust Holding Co. Limited
EBG Stockbrokers Limited
Teachers Fund

Mr. ]. F. Aidoo

Merbank Stockbrokers Limited
Standard Bank Noms (TVL.) (PTY)
Sterling Securities Limited

ESL Main Account

Mr. G. B. Otoo

Reported Totals
Not Reported

Company Total

27,495,117

28,918,218

No. OF SHARES

- 17,946,379
- 3,911,791
- 2,050,393
- 851,048
. 747,890
- 672,002
- 420,809
- 311,633
- 178,041
- 120,001
- 53,001
- 50,300
- 44,999
- 32,187
- 20,861
- 14,730
114,201
- 13,465
- 10,794
- . 10,510

- 27,475,035
- 1,443,183
- 28918218

62.06
13.53
7.09
294
2.59
232
1.46
1.08
0.62
042
0.18
0.17
036
0.1
0.07
0.05
0.05
0.05
0.04
0.04
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Annual General Meeting

To be held at 11.00 am on Tuesday, 8th July, 2003
at the Prempeh Assembly Hall, Kumasi.

{insert full address)

being a member{s} of GHANA BREWERIES
LIMITED, hereby appoint

(insert full name)

or failing him the Chairman of the meeting as
my / our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf
at'the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on Tuesday 8th July, 2003 and at any
and every adjournment thereof.

Dated this......coocvurenne day of e 2003

Shareholder's Signature

NOTES:

" No. of Shares

-For Cqm;.)'"afhy"s U'.se;

RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST

1. To receive the Accounts

2. Tore-elect Mr. J. H. van Mameren

3. Tore-elect Mr. C.J. G. Nouwens
as a Director

!
as a Director !
l
!
|

4. To re-elect Mrs. D. Plantenga-
Hogewoning as a Director

5. To approve Directors fees

6. To Authorise the Directors to fix the [
Remuneration of Auditors [

Please indicate with an "X" in the appropriate square how
you wish your vote to be cast on the resolution referred to
above. Unless otherwise instructed, the Proxy will vote or )
abstain from voting at his discretion.

THIS PROXY FORM SHOULD NOT BE COMPLETED
AND SENT TO THE SECRETARY IF THE MEMBER WILL
BE ATTENDING THE MEETING

1 A member (Shareholder) who is unable to attend an Annual General Meeting is allowed by law to vote
by proxy. The above Proxy Form has been prepared to enable vou to exercise vour vote if you cannot

persanally attend.

2. Provision has been made on the form for the Chairman of the Meeting to act as your proxy but, if yoﬁ
wish, you may insert in the blank space (*) the name of any person, whether a Member of the Company
or not, who will attend the Meeting and vote on vour behalf instead of the Chairman of the Meeting,

3 In the case of joint holders, each joint holder should sign.

=

by a Director.

If executed by a Corporation, the Proxy Form should bear its Common Seal or be signed on its behalf

5. Please sign the above Proxy Form and post it so as to reach the address shown overleaf not later than

10.00a.m. on Monday, 7th July, 2003.

6. The Proxy must produce the Admission Card sent with the Report and Accounts to obtain entrance to

the Meeting.
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Please
affix
Stamp

The Company Secretary,
Ghana Breweries Limited
Mile 7, Accra-Nsawam Road,
P. O. Box AH114,

Achimota, Accra.

Third fold here

First fold here
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“in a new bottle.

look good ...Jeel good

also availal

AMITEIDROUS IR,
15T.i8%0

- Price
— Volume
Rich nourishing goodness

s With Multi-Vitamin-81, B2, B6 & C
» Minerals for a healthier life style 140
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Ghana Breweries Limited

Excellence in Brewing

Frmail: ghilacctr ghanacons
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MISSION STATEMENT

“To build a profitable beer business
with strengths in selected market segments
and leadership in the lager market,
relying on high quality brands,
intimate consumer knowledge and best practices.

We shall create and sustain
a sound and rewarding working environment
for our employees and enhance
our customers, suppliers and shareholders value.

Qur success

will manifest in our ability to bring a deep sense
of satisfaction, joy and fulfilment to Socicty”
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

OFFICIALS AND REGISTERED OFFICE.

Chairman

Managing Director

Secretary

Directors

Auditors

Registered Office

Registrars

.

M. Eson-Benjamin (Appointed 01/11/2001)

O. S. Adebanji (4ppointed 01/11/2001)

J. A. Debrah (4Appointed 01,10/2001)

JL. M. Homé

J. H. Van Mameren cAppointed 14/06/2001)
E.M. Bove

L E. Yamson

K. Donkoh Fordwor

D. Plantenga-Hogewoning (Mrs.)

S. B.]. Jansen

C.]. G. Nouwens (Appointed 30/08/2001)
W. Kusi-Atansah (Appointed 31/12/2001)
F. S. O. Koranteng (Resigned 01/09°2001)
Ernest Thompson (Resigned 31/12/2001)

KPMG

Mobil House,
Liberia Road,

P. O. Box 242, Accra.

Ghana Breweries Limited
Mile 7, Accra-Nsawam Road,
P. O. Box 114, Achimota, Accra.

Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited,
Merban House,

44 Kwame Nkrumah Avenue,

P. O. Box 401, Accra.

Ghans Breweries Limited
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NQOTICE OF MEETING f.
Wit

Ghana Breweries Limited

NoTice is herebv given that the next Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Ghana Breweries Limited will be held at the Prempeh Assembly Hall, Kumasi on
Thursday 13th June, 2002 at 11 o’clock in the forenoon for the following purposes:-

AGENDA
1. To receive the Report of the Directors, the Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2001

together with the Accounts of the Company for the year ended on that date and
the Report of the Auditors thereon.

S

To re-elect Directors.

To approve the terms of appointment of two managers.

- W

To approve Directors’ Fees.

To fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

(6]

A member of the Companv entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not also be a member.
A form of proxv is attached.

All forms of proxy should be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting to be valid
for the purposes of the meeung.

Dated this 24th day of April, 2002.

By Order of the Board

Joe Aboagye Debrah
Secretary

Registered Office:

Ghana Breweries Limited
Mile 7. Acera-Nsawam Road,
PO, Box 114,

Achmota, Acera.
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" FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Sw

Ghana Breweries Limited

2001 2000 % Change

oM eM
" Turnover 109,463 80,334 225
Profit Before Tax (10,633) (3,430) (210.0)
. Profit Aﬁer Tax (10,633) (3,538) (200.5)

Dividend ] _ - -

‘perating Cashflow | - 12,083 29,547 (59.1)
Shareholde;‘s' Funds. : 68,683 83,696 (17.9)
Capital Expenditure 12,423 25,839 (51.9)

Per Ordinary Share Dawa: Cedis Cedis

Dividend per Ordinary Shave -
Earnings per Ordinary Share (367.7) (122.4)

Net Assets per Ovdinary Share 2,375.1 C2.894.3
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

Dear Shareholders

It gives me pleasure to welcome vou to the
4th Annual General Meeting of our company
and my first meeting as Chairman of the
Board of Directors,

You may recall that in the course of the
vear under review, Mr. Ishmael Yamson
relinquished his position as Board Chairman
after taking on additional responsibilities as
Chairman of Unilever's West African Executive
Committee, I was appointed to fill his place
as Chairman while Mr. Segun Adebanji
replaced me as Managing Director.

I wish on behalf of the Board to thank
Mr.Yamson for his contribution to the
company and for agreeing 1o continue to serve
this company as a director.

Economic Environment

The economv in 2001 showed a remarkable
improvement over that of 2000. The verv strict
and focused fiscal and monetary discipline
adopted by the government vielded positive
results. Inflation decreased from 40.5% at
the end of 2000 1o 21.3% at the end of 2001

while the alarming depreciation in the value
of the cedi of 97% and 81% against the dollar
and the euro in 2000, declined to 3.7% and
2.9% versus the dollar and euro respectively.
In line with these improvements, interest rates
also dropped from an average of 45% at the
beginning of the vear to 35% at vear end,
albeit still very high.

Despite these positive trends, 2001 was
another difficult year for our company, as
results fell far below expectation. The period
between 1998 and 2000 had witnessed heavy
investments aimed at rehabilitating ageing
plant and equipment in Achimota to make
adequate capacity available to meet demand
for the companv's products, particularly in
the southern Ghana market. Consequently,
to meet capital expenditure requirements, a
sizeable forex and cedi debt had been
accumulated.

Our expectation to ride on the projected
improvement in the market environment to
grow volume and generate funds to service
our debts could not be realized, as a major
devaluation of the cedi and a sharp increase
in interest rates started during 1999 and
continued through 2000, with a significant
cumulative effect on the cost of our operations.

In the absence of internally generated
cash, the company had resorted to debt to
finance working capital. In 2001, the size of
loans to be serviced remained high. The
impact of the higher interest rates on the
business was exacerbated by the unforeseen
but phenomenal increases in tariffs applicable
to such vital services as water, electricity,
telecommunications and fuel/freight
introduced early in the vear.

Operating Environment

The brewed products market experienced
verv fierce competitive pressures during 2001.
Nonetheless: onlv 2.53% volume growth was
achieved. compared to GDP growth of 4.2%.

{e

Ghana Breweries Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW (cont'd)

The growth in the industry notwithstanding,
the lager segment, dominated by our brands
failed to benefit from the market's
performance. In view of the rising operating
costs, the company adopted a prudent strategy
to increase selling prices to improve cost
recovery, restore margins and bolster
shareholder value. An average of 15% increase
in prices was introduced in June 2001. This
move was however fiercely countered by
competitors, leading to the curtailment of the
pricing strategy after only three months and
significant volume and revenue losses to our
-ompany.

The overall impact of these developments was
the weakened cash flow, the higher incidence
of overdraft and the huge debt-financing
burden which have frustrated the genuine
progress made over the years to rebuild the
company.

Despite these setbacks, our lager brands
continued to lead the segment with 70% market
share, benefiting from substantial investments
in marketing during the last quarter to bring
consumers back to our brands.

Financial Highlights

Net turnover amounted to €109 bn in 2001,
epresenting an increase of ¢20 bn, (23%)
compared to 2000. In spite of the increase in
net turnover, Operating Profit (before foreign
exchange losses) declined from ¢6.97 bn in
2000 1o an operating loss (before foreign
exchange losses) of ¢2.94 bn. Operating
Margin (before foreign exchange losses) fell
from 8% in 2000 to -2.6% in 2001.

Financial charges rose by 148%; from
€4.6 bn in 2000 to ¢11.4 bn in 2001, the effect
of the higher interest rates on increased bank
borrowings. As a result, net loss increased
from ¢3.5 bn in 2000 10 ¢10.6 bn in 2001.

Our results were worsened by the impact
of external pressures, coupled with the effect

of a lower volume, lower margins and higher
bank borrowings to meet our working capital
requirements.

VAT/Excise Duty paid to government
treasury was €75.2 bn, compared to ¢59.8 bn
in 2000, representing 25.7% increase.

Capital Investment

In view of the very weak financial position of
the business, major capital investments planned
for 2001 were delaved. Funds were employed
mainly to speed up conversion to plastic crates
and to enhance operational efficiencies. Small
technical investments were also undertaken
to improve and sustain product quality. A total
of ¢12.4 bn was invested in the business.

Dividend

As a result of the negative balances in our
Income Surplus Account and legal restrictions
under Section 71(b) of the Ghana Companies
Code, 1963 (Act 179), the Board regrets its
inability to recommend the payment of
dividends for 2001.

Community Relations

We continued to discharge some social
obligations to civil society as part of our social
responsibility programme. This has water
conservation, environmental protection
education and healthcare as the areas of special
interest. Mindful of the constraints on our
social responsibility budget in 2001, we gave
priority to programmes and activities that
would prove beneficial to many people in our
host communities.

Our People

In 2001, thanks to the cooperation of staff
at all levels, the company enjoved a peaceful
and excellent workplace environment, enabling
management to execute successfully the first

Ghana Breweries Limited
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: CH‘AIRMAN’S REVIEW (cont'd)

phase of the numbers rationalization exercise
under the major company restructuring
programme. The continued focus on building
‘team spirit and developing -emplovee core
competencies through various training
programmes, engendered a heightened sense
of dedication and lovalty to the business.

With the appointment of a new Company -

Medical Advisor, a proactive HIV/AIDS
Communications programme has been
implemented involving peer educators at all
levels of the business. :

On behalf of the Board, we wish to

_acknowledge and thank the staff for their

commitment to the vision of the business and
to solicit their continued support and
cooperation with the management to pull the
business out of her current difficulties.

Prospects

The management team's preoccupation
would be to restructure the operations and
return the company to profit. The major
operational challenges would therefore remain
the strengthening of the balance sheet and
improving cash flow to meet working capital
requirements and facilitate value creation.

Already a number of actions have been
taken to re-engineer some of the administrative
and control processes in order to reduce costs
and increase value. An efficient treasury
management has therefore taken center stage.

The beer market is not expected to grow
significantly in 2002. Affordability remains a
kev issue for the consumer whose purchasing
power is considerably weak. This would
effectivelv restrain regular price increases to
generate cash and improve margins. To make
our products affordable. attention will continue
1o be focused on rationalizing the company's
cost structure and cost base.

As part of the major r'es‘(ructurin\g
programme, the current product portfolio
would be rationalized, while all business
processes would continue to be reviewed to
increase productivity and enhance efficiency.
Mazjor initiatives are also underway to
restructure the capital base of the-business in
order to reduce dependence on short-term
borrowings and strengthen the balance sheet.

Conclusion

During the year under review, Messrs. F.S.O.
Koranteng, Financial Director and Ernest

" Thompson, SSNIT appointee left the Board.

On behalf of the Board and on your behalf,

-T wish to extend to them our gratitude for

their contribution to the business. We also
welcome the new directors Messrs. CJ.G.
Nouwens and Wilson Kusi-Atansah to the
Board. '

Finally, let me empbhasize that the past vear
has been a very difficult one. For this reason,
we will like to thank all shareholders, trade
partners and our customers for keeping faith
with and remaining loyal to us even as the
company puts in place measures to enhance
shareholder value.

Despite the setbacks suffered by the
company, your Board and the management
remain positive with regard to the long-term
profitability of the business. It should not be
long before our dear shareholders see the real
benefits of management's efforts on their
investments.

Thank You.

M Eson-Benjamin

Ghana Breweries Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting to the members their Annual Report together
with the Financial Statements of the Companv for the vear ended 31st December 2001.

Trading Results
Net Loss after taxation for the vear was €10.633 million as against a loss of ¢3,538 million
in 2000.

The Directors are unable to recommend the pavment of a dividend to members in view of the

deficit on the income surplus account and in accordance with Section 71(b}) of the Companies
Code, 1963 (Act 179).

Nature of Business

The principal activities of the Company continue to be brewing and marketing of beer and
soft drinks.

Board of Directors

Mr. I. E. Yamson relinquished his Chairmanship of the Board effective November 1, 2001. Mr.
M. Eson-Benjamin retired as Managing Director from November 1. 2001 and was appointed
to succeed Mr. Yamson as chairman of the Board. Mr. O. S. Adebanji was appointed Managing
Director effective November 1, 2001. Messrs . H. van Mameren. C. J. G. Nouwens and Wilson
Kusi-Atansah were appointed to the Board on june 14, 2001, 30th August 2001 and 31st
December. 2001 respectively. Messrs F. S. O. Koranteng, the Financial Director and Ernest
Thompson. an appointee of SSNIT also resigned as members of the Board on 1st September
2001 and 31st December 2001 respectively.

These 4 new appointees in accordance with the Ghana Stock Exchange Listing Regulations
retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Directors to retire by rotation in accordance with Regulation 64 of the Regulations of
the Company are Messrs M. Eson-Benjamin, K. Donkoh Fordwor and J-L. M. Homé. The
retiring Directors being eligible are secking re-election.

Auditors
In accordance with Section 134(3) of the Companies Code, 1963 Messrs. KPMG continue in
office as Auditors of the Companv.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

M. Eson-Benjamin (Chairman) 1

} Directors

0. S. Adebanji (Managing)

Wy

Accra, 24th April. 2002,

=
T
W

GB—
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"REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

We have audited the financial statements on pages 12 to 19 which have been prepared in
accordance with International Accounting Standards. We have obtained all the information and
explanations we required.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
These financial statements are the responsibility of the directors. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis,
~vidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
.acludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors,
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion. proper books have been kept and the financial statements, which are in agreement
therewith. comply with the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179) and give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the company at 31st December 2001 and of the results of its operations
and cash flows for the vear then ended.

Thartered Accountants
vnd Floor, Mobil House,
Liberia Road,

P. O. Box 242,

Accra, Ghana.

Date: 24th April, 2002

Ghana Breweries Limited
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT sE

Ghana Breweries Limited

¢MILLIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2001 2000

NOTES
Turnover 2 109,463 89,334
Cost of Sales (64,114) (53.029)
Gross Profit 45,349 36.305
General, Administrative and
Selling Expenses (48.639) (35,429)
Operating Profit 3 (3,290) B76
Other Net Income 4 485 313
Exceptional ltems 12 3.554
Profit before Financial Charges 749 1.189
Net Financial Charges 3 (11,382) (4.619
(Loss)/Profit before Taxation (10,633} {3.430)
Taxation 6 - (108)
{Loss)/Profit after Taxation transferred to [ -
Income Surplus Account (10,633) (3.538)
INCOME SURPLUS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 15T DECEMBER
Balance as at Ist January (31.369) (27.831)
Prior year Adjustment 13 2,217 -
Balance at 1st Januarv re-statec {29,152) (27.831
Profit for the vear (10,633 (3.538)
Transfer from Capital Surplus ‘ 15 18,437
Loss on Assets Written-Of€ ) 7c (6.597)
Bualance as at 31st December (27.945) (31.369)

The notes on pages 15 1o {9 form part of these Financial Statenients.
Auditors’ seport on page 11



BALANCE SHEET

CMILLIONS
AS AT 315" DECEMBER 2001 2000
NOTES

FIXED ASSETS ) 95,084 103.660
CURRENT ASSETS 76,461 06.225
Stocks 8 42,476 36.997
Debtors Q 26.803 21.857
Taxation 6 890 781
Bank and Cash Balances 6.292 6.580
Less:
CURRENT LIABILITIES 91,721 77.048
Creditors 11 62,391 50.211
Bank Overdraft 10(a) 24,734 13,418
Short-Term Loan 10(b) 4,596 13.419
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (15.260) (10.823)

79.824 94,837
MEDIUM -TERM LOAN 10¢¢) (10.687) (10.687)
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 6(d) (454) (454)
NET ASSETS 68,683 83.6496
Representing:
STATED CAPITAL 14 74.441 74441
CAPITAL SURPLUS 1H 22,187 40,024
INCOME SURPLUS (27,945) (31,369
INTEREST OF SHAREHOLDERS 68,683 R3.606

The Financial Stitements on pages 12 10 14 were approved by the Bourd of Directors on
23 April. 2002 and were signed on its behalf by

M. Eson-Benjamin

- ) l/\ Directors
i

Q. 8. Adebanii

il

“Uhe nates on pages 15 0 19 Jurm part of these Finaneial Statenents.
Aeteditens” veport wir peege 11,

n-m—.

Ghana Breweries Limited
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- CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 DECEMBER

Operating Profit (before Investment
Returns and Servicing of Finance)

Add/(less):

Depreciation

Loss on Exchange- loan
Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets
Loss on Fixed Assets Written-Off
Increase in Stock
(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors
Increase in Creditors

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

Returns on Investment and Servicing of Finance

Interest Received
Interest Paid

Net Cash Qutflow from Returns on
Investment and Servicing of Finance

Tax Paid

Investing Activities

Fixed Assets Purchased

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Net Cash QutFlow from Investing Activities
Net Cash Qutflow

Analysis of changes in Cash and Cash
Equivalents during the year:

Balance at 1st January
Net Cash OQuitlow

Balance at 31st December

Analysis of Cash and Cash
Equivalent shown in the Balance Sheet:

Clash at Bank
Bank Overdraft

Balance at 31st December

—Fem
RT3

Ghana Breweries Limited

¢MILLIONS
001 2000
749 1,189
9,439 6,604
- 6.621
(217) (150)
357 -
(5,479) {17,071)
(4,946) 9.317
12,180 23,037
12,083 29,347
138 20
(11,520) (4.639)
(11,382) (4.619)
(109)
(12,423) (25,839)
217 150
(12,206) (25.689)
(11,614) (761)
(6,828) (6.06™)
(11,614) (761)
(18,442) (6.828)
6,292 6.590
(24,734) (13.418)
(18,442) (6,828)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S

Ghana Breweries Limited

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

These Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as madified
by the revaluation of certain fixed assets.

Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and used in arriving at the
financial information set out in these accounts are as follows:

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on a siraight-line basis using the following annual rates, which are
expected to write off the gross value of each fixed asset over its estimated useful life:

(24

“C
Land and Buildings - Leasehold Land
and Buildings 2.50
Plant and Machinery - Bottling 6.67
Brewing 3.33
Utilities 6.67
Workshop 10.00
Motor Vehicles - Forklift “Trucks 20.00
Road Vehicles 33.33
Furniture & Equipment - 20.00
Packaging Materials . 125

Stocks
Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

includes all direct expenses incurred in bringing the stocks to their current state under normal
aperating conditions.

Debtors
Provisions are made for specific debts considered 1o be doubtful.

Foreign Exchange
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are wanslated into cedis at the rates of exchange

ruling at the date of the transactions. Balances in foreign currencies are translated into cedis
at the rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date.

Sales
Sules represent the value of goods invoiced to customers in the vear net of all returns. wrade
discounts and taxes collected for the Government.

Deferred Taxation

Full provision is made for deferred tax by the extent to which capital allowances granted exceed
depreciation charge at the standard income tax rate.

Research and Development
Expenditure on research and the development of new products is charged against profits for
the vear in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

1

¢MILLIONS
2001 2000
2. TURNOVER
Gross Sales Value 184,669 149,175
Less: Taxes collected for Government (75,206) (59,841)
Excise Duty ' (53.535) ! | (43.742)
Sales Tax/VAT (21,671} . « (16,099) .
109,463 89.334
3. OPERATING PROFIT:
Operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciation 9,439 6,604
Directors' Remuneration 1.021 677
Auditors’ Fees 175 130
Donations . - - %4 73
Exchange Difference (Net) 341 6,097
4. OTHER NET INCOME:
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Note 7b) 217 150
Rental Income 4 -
Other Income 264 163
485 313
5. FINANCIAL CHARGES:
Interest on Current Accounts 138 20
Interest Charges (11,520) (4.639)
(11,382) (4,619)
6. TAXATION . .
Balance Payments Charge Balance
01/01/01 during the year for the year 31/12/01
(a) Income Tax:
Pre - 1998 (17) - (17)
1998 (555) (353)
1999 (317) . (317)
2001 . (37 - (37)
(b) Capital Gains Tax:
1999 108 - - 108
{c) National Reconstruction Levy
' 2001 (72) (72)
(781) (109) - (890)

Ghana Breweries Limited

In accordance with section 4(a) of the Income Tax Decree (1975), the Company has unutilised capital
allowances brought forward, therefore no income tax provision is deemed necessary for the vear 2001.

The above tax position is subject to agréement with the Internal Revenue Service.

{d) Deferred Tax 2001 2000
At lst January 454 454
Provision for the vear . -
At 31st December —

454 154




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fcont'd)

Ghana Breweries Limited

7. FIXED ASSETS ¢MILLIONS
Leasehold Plant Packaging| Furniture Motor Capital Total

Fixed omprise:- Land and and Materials and Vehicles | Work in Fixed

(a) ixed Assets ¢ mp: Buildings Machinery Equipment progress Assets

Gross Value:-

At st January. 2000 49.897 138,902 6. 032 5743 5.692 41 206.357

Additions 731 8.141 5,592 608 1.025 1.306 12,423

Disposals . - . . (364) - (364)

Transfers - 490 - - - (490

Revaluation Increase - (23,391) - - - - (25.581)

At 31st December, 2001 116,942 11,624 ' ] . 192,825

Comprising:-

Cost of assets revalued 2278 20.946 - 252 371 - 23847

Surplus arising on previous

Revaluation 45.715 73.164 - {96) 76 - 118.859

At revaluation 47,993 94,110 - 156 447 - 142,706

Cost of assets not revalued 2,635 22.832 11.624 6.195 3,906 907 50.119

At 31st December, 2001 50,648 116,942 - 11,624 - ) : 192,825

Aggregate depreciation:

At Ist January, 2001 23,250 70.648 1.035 2.241 3,523 - 100,697
Charge for the vear 879 5,195 1.136 1.058 1.171 - 9434
Eliminated on disposals . . . (364) . (364)
Eliminated on Write-Offs (12,02)) - (12.031)

At 31st December, 2001 63,812

NET BOOK VALUE AS AT:

31s1 December. 200) 26,519 53,130 9.4533 3.052 2,023 97 95084

31st December, 2000 26,647 : L © 91 105,660

-

Leasehald Land and Buildings and Plant and Machinery were revaiued by the Directors as at 31st December, 2000 by means of
indices derive from statistics of increases in prices over the past year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

m:'

Ghana Breweries Limited

¢MILLIONS
2001 2000
7(b) DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS
GROSS VALUE 364
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 364 512
Net Book Value 0
Net Disposal Proceeds 217 150
Profit on Disposal 217 150
7(c) FIXED ASSETS WRITTEN-OFF
Previously revalued assets no longer considered
useful were written off as follows:
Gross Value 25,591 -
Less: Previously Capitalised Exchange Loss (6,606) -
18,985 -
Less: Accumulated 'Depreci;uion (12,031) .
6,954 .
8. STOCKS
Raw and packaging materials 26,839 18.297
Beer and malt in process 3,840 2,101
Finished products 1,273 2,590
Other stocks 10,524 14.009
42,476 36.997
9. DEBTORS
Debtors are stated after doubtful
debts provision.
Trade Debtors 12,269 13,173
Due from Officers of the Company 848 735
Prepavments 850 230
Other Debtors 12,836 7,719

The maximum amount due from Officers of the Company during the vear
was €848 million (2000: <820 million).

16. BORROWINGS

() Overdraft facilities :
The Company had as at 31st December, 2001 approved overdraft facilities of ¢35 billion
(2000:¢ 20 billion) on which ¢24.7 billion (2000:¢13.4 billion) had been drawn at the balance
sheet date.

(b) Short-term Loan :
Classitied as short-term loan is a local currency loan from an Associated Company.

{¢) Medium-term Loan :
Mediumeterm loan constitutes an amount of €¢10.687 million from the Parent Company
in the form of zero coupon convertible bonds. From 10th March 2001, the bondholder
has the option to exchange the bond or portions of it for equity shares.

11. CREDITORS

Trade Creditors 27,192 27,148

Excise Dutv/VAT 8,619 7.373

Accrued Liabilities 8,828 2,561

Other Creditors 2,819 1,285

Due to Associated Company 14,933 11,844 '] 6 4
: 62,391 50,211



_NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd) o

Ghana Breweries Limited

2001 2000

oM
(i) Provision for bad debt no longer required 8,994
(ii) Redundancy cost provision : (5,440)

3,554

12. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

M

13. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

This consists of an adjustment on foreign exchange losses on short-term loan -

14. SHARES AND STATED CAPITAL

(a) Shares

Number of authorised shares (thousands): 30,000 30,000

Preference Shares 420 420

Number of issued shares:

Fully paid for cash 7,020 7,020

For consideration other than cash

(by capitalisation of surplus) 21,898 14,668

Bonus Issue during the vear . 7.229
28,918 28018

Number of issued Preference Shares:
For consideration other than cash 420 420

(b) Stated Capital
Value of Ordinary shares:

Fully paid for cash 6,697 6,697
For consideration other than cash
(by capitalisation of surplus) 24,756 16,856
Transfer 1o Capiral surplus 988 988
Bonus Issue during the vear - 7,900
32,441 32,441
Value of Preference Shares:
For consideration other than cash 42,000 42,000
74,441 74,441
There are no shares in treasury and no calls or instaiments unpaid on any shares.
The terms of the Preference Shares are as follows:
- They are redeemable 10 vears after the date of conversion or earlier at the choice
of Ghana Breweries Limited.
- Non-cumulative dividend will be equal 10 12.5% of the Free Cash Flow of
Ghana Breweries Limited as defined in the Share Purchase Agreement.
- No dividend will be payable if there are no dividends on the ordinary shares.
15. CAPITAL SURPLUS
Balance at 1st January 40,624 28.752
Add: Transfer to stated capital - (7,900)
Transfer to Income Surplus:
Revaluation Surplus released on .
Fixed Assers Written Off (18,437) -
Revaluation Surplus - ; 19,772
Balance at 31st December 22,187 40,624
16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Legal Suits 655 120

17. CAPITAL COMMITMENT
There were no capital commitments as at 31st December, 2001 and at 31st December, 2000.

18. EXCHANGE CONTROL
All remiuances from Ghana are subject to the approval of the exchange control authorities.
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 DECEMBER

Turnover
Other Income

Less:

Bought-in-materials and services

VALUE ADDED

Applied as follows:

1. Employees Remuneration

2. Income Tax to Government

3. Providers of Capital:
(a) Overdraft Interest
(b) Shareholders

4. Reinvested in the Business:
Depreciation
Profit Retained

VALUE ADDED - 2001

(80)

Eanplovees
Remuneratian

Ovevdrafi
Interest

Depreciation

Prafit
Retained

L

71

33

27

31

{

Ghana Breweries Limited

2001 % 2000 %
¢'M ¢M
109,463 89,334
485 313
109,948 89,647
75,207 66,658
34,741 100 22,989 100
24,553 71 15,196 66
- 108 -
11,382 33 4,619 20
9,439 27 6,604 29
(10,633) (31)  (3,538) (15)
34,741 100 22,989 100
VALUE ADDED - 2000
(70)
(60) 1
(50) 7
(40) 7
(30) gy
(20) EE
4 .
(10) s
o 53
(20)
Remminersiion] imeten\ | Deprecation|  RIUEL
[m% 66 20 29 (15)
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY Note (i)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

1.

Turnover including Sales Tax AT/ Excise Du(y
Excise Durv “Sales Tax VAT

NET PROCEEDS OF SALES
Capital Emploved

Stated Capital

Capital Surplus

Income Surplus
SHAR.EHOLDERS' FUNDS
Represented by:

Fixed Assets

Deferved Expenditure

Net Current Assets 7 (Liabilities)

Long Term: Liabilities

NET ASSETS
1. Profit/(Loss) After Exceptiona] Items before Tax
3. Profit/(Loss) After Taxation
6. Dividends (Note ii)
7. Earnings per lssued Ordinary Share (€ }(Note iii)
8. Dividend per Issued Ordinary Share (¢ )(Note iii)
9. Net Assets per Issued Ordinary Share {€)(Note iii)
10. Return on Shareholders’ Funds %
11. Return on Sales Value %
NOTES:

Ghana Breweries Limited

¢MILLIONS
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
74996 95210 10542  149.175 184.669
(34.018)  (41,671)  (4L.793)  (50,841)  (75.206)
40908 53539 63347 80334  109.463
50435 66541 66541 74.44] 74,441
45966 24703 28752 40,624 22,187
(32.768)  (31,347)  (27.831)  (31.369)  (27.945)
63,633 59,897 67462 83,69 68,683
60,502 53749 66633  105.660 95,084
3.585 6602 11950  (10.828)  (15,260)
(454) (454) (11.141) (11,141) (11,141}
63633  50.807 67462 83696 68,683
(3.880) 1421 5038 (3430)  (10,633)
(10517} 1.421 3,038 (3.538) (10,633)
310
nm. 6552 14007  (122.85)  (367.69)
n.m. -
nm. 276167 311042 280435  2,375.10
(16.5) 2.4 45 (4.2) (15.5)
(25.7) 26 48 (4.0) 9.7

(i) The Five Year Summary is a combination of the results of Ghana Breweries Limited (formerly ABC
Brewery Limited) and former Kumasi Brewery Limited. The Accounting Policies of Ghana Breweries
Limited over the five vear period have been adjusted to reflect the policies of Kumasi Brewerv Limited.

(i1} Dividends paid to the Shareholders of the former Kumasi Brewery Limited.

(iii) n.m. means the result is not meaningful.
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Distribution Schedule of Equity Security as at 31st December, 2001

*' Number of Sharcholders "

“ Class of ]:'.quit}v' i " “Total Holding °
R within range s i

1-1.000 ' 1.321 580.646 2.01
1,001 - 5,000 : ' 312 727,319 2.52
5,001 - 10,000 21 132,693 0.46
10.001 - and over 26 27.477.560 95.02
TOTAL 1,680 28.918,218 100.00

NAME No. OF SHARES %

1. Heineken International 17.946.379 62.06
2. Limba Ghana Limited 3.011.791 13.33
3. SSNIT 2.050.393 7.08
4. CFAO Liverpool 747,890 2.59
3.  B.B.G. Nominees/Chase Manhattan 672,002 2.32
6. Databank Brokerage Limited 440.129 1.52
7. Paterson Zochonis Ghana Limited 311,633 1.O8
8. STD Bank Noms (TVLYPTY) L.TD Krediet 200,237 1.00
9. B.B.G. Nominees. Unilever Managers 263.648 (.91
1. B. B.G.N “Picket & CIF (Africa) 260,270 0.90
11. KBL Co-op. Credit Union Limited 126,00 AR
120 Mr kLN Sufo-Nvame 73.193 .23
13, BBGNUnilever Provident Fund 35.113 (.19
14. SDC Brokerage Services Linnted 33,001 0.8
15. National Trust Holding Co. Limited 48.530 017
168. EBG Stockbrokers Limited 46,020 0.16
17. BBGN Pictet & CIE(Africa) 32.206 0.11
18, Teachers Fund ‘ 32151 0.11
19. FABL Trading Account 28,804 0.10
20. Mr | F. Aidoo 20.861 0.07

Repe-rted Totals .
Not Rgp'orted

'Company Total . .

- 27,404,288

1,513,930
28,918,218

Ghana Breweries Limited
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PROXY FORM

Annual General Meeting

To be held at 11.00 am on Thursday, 13th June,
2002 at the Prempeh Assembly Hall, Kumasi.

(insert full name(s)

1< SR USSP OUOOI
(insert full address)

being a member(s) of GHANA BREWERIES
LIMITED, hereby appoint

(insert full name)

or failing him the Chairman of the meeting as
my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday 13th June, 2002 and at any
and every adjournment thereof.

Dated this...ceveniinrnene day Of i 2002

Shareholder's Signature

 For C‘d‘mpan_y"s-l‘Uséi, V

' RESOLUTION

FOR

AGAINST
1. To receive the Accounts
2. To re-elect Mr. O. S. Adebaniji
as a Director - .
3. Toreelect Mr. C.J. G. Nouwens
as a Director
4, To re-elect Mr. J. H. van Mameren
as a Director
5. To re-elect Mr. Wilson Kusi-.Ataxisah
as a Director
6. To re-elect Mr. M Eson-Benjamin
as a Director
7. Toreeleat Dr. Sir K. Donkoh
Fordwor as a Director )
8. Toreelea Mr. J-L M. Homé
as a Director
9. To approve the terms of appointment
of Mr. O. S. Adebaniji as a Manager
10. To approve the terms of appoinment

of Mr. C. J. G. Nouwens as a Manager

11.

To approve Directors fees

12.

To fix the Remuneration of Auditors

Please indicate with an "X" in the appropriate square how you wish your
vote to be cast on the resolution referred to above. Unless otherwise
instructed, the Proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

THIS PROXY FORM SHOULD NOT BE COMPLETED AND SENT TO
THE SECRETARY IF THE MEMBER WILL BE ATTENDING THE MEETING

NOTES:

1 A member (Shareholder) who is unable to attend an Annual General Meeting is allowed by law to
vote by proxy. The above Proxy Form has been prepared to enable you to exercise your vote if you

cannot personally attend.

2. Provision has been made on the form for the Chairman of the Meeting 1o act as your proxy but, if you
wish, you may insert in the blank space (*) the name of any person, whether a Member of the Company
or not, who will attend the Meeting and vote on your behalf instead of the Chairman of the Meeting.

3 In the case of joint holders, each joint holder should sign.

4. If executed by a Corporation, the Proxy Form should bear its Common Seal or be signed on its behalf

by a Director.

5. Please sign the above Proxy Form and post it to reach the address shown overleaf not later than

10.00a.m. on Wednesday,12th June, 2002.

6. The Proxy must produce the Admission Card sent with the Report and Accounts to obtain entrance to

the Meeting.
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Please
affix
Stamp

The Secretary,

Ghana Breweries Limited
Mile 7, Accra-Nsawam Road,;
P. O. Box 114,

Achimota, Accra.

First fold here
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FROM @ SAS LTD ACCRA GH PHONE NO. @ 233 21 251558 Mar. B2 2004 B5:@SPM F2

Qﬁle -V
“ﬁ@ RECEIVE"
- Tw BANK OF GHANA
%?’ DEPUTY GOVERNOR
_ P.0. BOX 2674
e a7 GRANA
FAX: s64341
OUR REF: DGV/B/23
YOUR REF: DATE: February 17, 2004

The Executive Director
Strategic African Securities Ltd.
P.0. Box KA 16446

Accra

Dear Madam,

PROPOSED BUSINESS COMBINATION OF GUINNESS GHANA LTD.
{(GGL) AND GHANA BREWERIES LTD (GBL) — EXCHANGE CONTROL
NOTIFICATION

We refer to your letter dated January 7, 2004 on the above subject and write
to inform you that

i, the Bank of Ghana has approved your application for a waiver of
paragraphs 2 & 3 of BOG Notice No. BG/EC/93/1 with respect to the
proposed business combination of Guinness Ghana Ltd. and Ghana
Breweries Ltd.; and

ii. approval is hereby granted under the Exchange Control Act, 1961 (Act
71) and all other relevant legislation, to Atlantaf and Guinness
Overseas Ltd. both non-Ghanaian companies to transfer the 60.37%
stake in Guinness Ghana Ltd. held by the two companies above
mentioned, to Diageo Highlands BV, a Dutch registered company.

Yours faithfully,

. ASIEDU-MANTE

DEPUTY GOVERNOR
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FROM : SRS LTD ACCRA GH PHONE NO. : 233 21 251558  Jun. 1B 2004 Beiaoh e

® GHANA | el

P.O. Box 1849

| STOCK ‘ - Accra - Ghany

Tel: 669908/669014/669935

# EXCHANGE I g

June 8, 2004

The Executive Director
Strategic African Securities Ltd.
Accra

Attn: Ms. Abena Amoah

Dear Madam,

RE: TENDER OFFER

Your letter of June 7, 2004, which encloses a copy of the revised Tender Offer by
Guinness Ghana Ltd for Ghana Breweries Ltd (proof 6), refers.

We acknowledge the changes made and subsequent approval granted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). SEC,s approval (including the revisions
leading thereto is not inconsistent with the earlier approval granted by the Ghana
Stock Exchange. '

We are aware of the pendency of a suit in relation to a proposed merger of GGL
and GBL (Daniel Ofori vrs GBL) and the fact that the plaintiff has withdrawn his
application for an interfocutory injunction restraining GBL from proceeding with a
proposed merger with GGL. We are not aware of any legal impediment to the
making of the Tender Offer.

Finally, we write to confirm that we have no issues with the revisions made and that
your client can proceed to print the document.

Yours faithfully,

K.S. YAMOAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR

*ib
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\3
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FROM :JLD LEGAL CONSULTANCY FAX NO. 1@B44 20 7724 9684 17 Jun. 2084 18:45 P2

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Location; gt Floo.r, State Enterprises Commission Bullding
PMB, Ministries Post Office, Accra, Ghane

+233-21-7010477 / 669588 Ernail.«
-nfo@secghana.org Website
—_— P i “www.secghana.org
—— e e e

Tel: +233-21 669019 / 7010476 Fax:

OUR REF: §
EC/CFIM/GGL/001/V 1 17™ June 2004

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
STRATEGIC AFRICAN SECURITIES
2"° RIDGE LINK, NORTH-RIDGE
P.O. BOX KA 16446

ACCRA.

ATTENTION: MS. ABENA AMOAH

» Dear Madam:

RE: PROPOSED OFFER BY GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED TO ACQUIRE THE -
OUTSTANDING SHARES OF GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED (GBL)

We have examined the final offer document by Guinness Ghana L1d-to the
ordinary shareholders of Ghana Breweries Lid.

We are pleased to inform you of the Commission’s approval.
Please ensure that you print for circulation to GBL Shareholders, the final
document that the Commission has approved. You are requested to submit five

(5) copies of the printed offer document to the Commission.

We extend our best wishes with this process.

Yours faithfully,

.

DR. CHARLES ASEMBRI
DIRECTOR-GENERAL
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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES

YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

. Offer
by
Guinness Ghana Limited

to the ordinary shareholders of

Ghana Breweries Limited

to purchase all the outstanding ordinary shares
of Ghana Breweries Limited

The Offer will expire at
17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004

Financial Adviser

First Africa Group Holdings (Pty) Limited

Sponsoring Broker
Strategic African Securities Limited

Dated: 18 June 2004
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GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED
OFFER FOR GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED

Ghana Breweries shareholders who are resident in the United States ("US Ghana Breweries
shareholders") should note that the Offer is being made for the securities of a Ghanaian
company. The Offer is therefore subject to the disclosure requirements of Ghana, which are
different from those of the United States. The financial statements included in this document
have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards that may not be
comparable to the financial statements of United States companies. It may be difficult for US
Ghana Breweries shareholders to enforce their rights and any claim they may have arising
under the United States’ federal securities laws, since the 1ssuer, Guinness Ghana, is located
in Ghana, and some or all of its officers and directors may be residents of a foreign country.
US Ghana Breweries shareholders may not be able to sue Guinness Ghana or its officers or
directors in a foreign court for violations of the United States' federal securities laws. It may
be difficult to compel Guinness Ghana and its affiliates to subject themselves to a United
States court’s judgment. US Ghana Breweries shareholders should be aware that Guinness
Ghana may purchase securities otherwise than under the Offer, such as in open markct or
privately negotiated purchases.
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GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED

OFFER FOR
GHANA BREWERIES LIMITED

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your Ghana Breweries shares, please send this document as
soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom
the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

Neither Guinness Ghana’s representatives nor Guinness Ghana’s advisers makes any recommendation as
to whether Ghana Breweries sharcholders should accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as
appropriate). Ghana Breweries sharcholders must make their own decisions whether or not to accept the
Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate),

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this
document and any information or representation not contained in this document must not be relied upon
as having been autherised by Guinness Ghana, First Africa or Strategic African Securities. Neither the
delivery of this document, nor any disposal made hercunder will, under any circumstances, create any
implication that the information contained in this document is correct as at any time subsequent to its date.
Ghana Breweries shareholders and Guinness Ghana sharcholders will be given notice, published in a
national daily newspaper, of any event that occurs during the Offer Period that materially affects the
accuracy of the information contained in this document.

This document has been sent to all Ghana Breweries shareholders and Guinness Ghana shareholders on
the register of members as at 11 June 2004.

This document has been reviewed and approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance
with Section 9 of the Securities Industry Law (P.N.D.C.L. 333), as amended. In its review, the Sccurities
and Exchange Commission examined the contents of this document to ensure that adequate disclosures
have been made. To ascertain the financial soundness or value of the Offer, Ghana Breweries shareholders
are advised to consult a dealer, investment adviser or other professional for appropriate advice. This
document has also been reviewed and approved by the Ghana Stock Exchange,
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GUINNESS GHANA’S ADVISERS

Offeror:

Company subject to the Offer:

Financial Adviser:

Sponsoring Broker:

Ghanaian Legal Adviser:

Auditors:

Receiving Agent:

Registrars:

Guinness Ghana Limited
Kaasi Industrial Area
PO Box 1536

Kumasi

Ghana

Ghana Breweries Limited
Mile 7, Accra-Nsawam Road
PO Box AH1114

Achimota

Accra

Ghana

First Africa Group Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Inanda Green Business Park

Augusta House

Ground Floor

Albertyn Road

Wierda Valley West

Sandton 2196

Johannesburg

South Africa

Strategic African Securities Limited
2nd Ridge Link, North Ridge

PO Box KA 16446

Acera

Ghana

JLD Legal Consultancy Services
#C881/3

Kanda Highway

North Ridge, Accra

PO Box GP 178

Accra

Ghana

KPMG (Ghana)
Mobil House
Liberia Road
PO Box 242
Accra

Ghana

Strategic African Securities Limited
2nd Ridge Link, North Ridge

PO Box KA 16446

Accra

Ghana

Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited
Head Officc Annex

57 Examination Loop, North Ridge
PO Box 401

Accra

Ghana
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TIMETABLE OF KEY EVENTS

Event Date
Qualifying date for the Offer 11 June 2004
Posting of the Offer Document 18 June 2004
Posting of the notice of the Guinness Ghana extracrdinary general meeting 18 June 2004
Commencement of the Offer Period 09.00 hours (GMT) on 21 June 2004
Closing of the Offer Period 17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004
Guinness Ghana extraordinary general meeting 20 July 2004
Despatch of cheques in respect of the Cash Offer by 3 August 2004
Allotment of new Guinness Ghana shares by 3 August 2004
Despatch of certificates for new Guinness Ghana shares by 10 August 2004
Commencement of trading in new Guinness Ghana shares by 17 August 2004

These dates are subject to change by Guinness Ghana, which reserves the right to extend the period of
the Offer (subject to obtaining the necessary regulatory consents). Any amendment will be published
in a national daily newspaper.
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DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply in this document and the accompanying Form of Acceptance, unless

the context requires otherwise:

“Cash Offer”

“Companies Code”
“Diageo”

“Diageo Highlands”
“First Africa”

“Form of Acceptance”
“Ghana™

“Ghana Breweries”

“Ghana Brewernies board” or
“Ghana Breweries directors”

“Ghana Breweries shares”
“Ghana Breweries shareholders”

“Guinness Ghana”

“Guinness Ghana board” or
“Guinness Ghana directors”

“Guinness Ghana extraordinary

general meeting”

“Guinness Ghana resolutions”

“Guinness Ghana shares”
“Guinness Ghana shareholders”

“Heineken”

the cash offer being made by Guinness Ghana to purchase
Ghana Breweries shares from each Ghana Breweries
shareholder, as set out in this document, including, where the
context so requires, any revision, variation, extension or renewal
of such offer

the Ghanaian Companies Code 1963 (Act 179) (as amended)
Diageo plc

Diageo Highlands BV, a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo
First Africa Group Holdings (Pty) Ltd

the form of acceptance which accompanies this Offer Document
the Republic of Ghana

Ghana Breweries Limited

the directors of Ghana Breweries

outstanding ordinary shares of no par value in Ghana Breweries
holders of Ghana Breweries shares
Guinness Ghana Limited

the directors of Guinness Ghana

the extraordinary general meeting of Guinness Ghana to be
convened for the purposes of proposing the Guinness Ghana
resolutions

the resolutions (1) to approve the Proposals (ii) to increase the
authorised ordinary shares of Guinness Ghana (iii) to grant the
Guinness Ghana directors authority to allot the new Guinness
Ghana shares on a non pre-emptive basis (iv) to amend the
regulations of Guinness Ghana (v} to change the name of
Guinness Ghana to ‘Guinness Ghana Breweries Limited’,
subject to the Offer becoming or being declared unconditional in
all respects (vi) to appoint additional directors to the Guinness
Ghana board, subject to the Offer becoming or being declared
unconditional in all respects and (vii) to authorise Guinness
Ghana to purchase its own shares

ordinary shares of no par value in Guinness Ghana
holders of Guinness Ghana shares

Heineken International BV
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“Heineken Ghanaian Holdings”

“new Guinness Ghana shares”

“Offer”
“Offer Document”

“Offer Period”

“Placing”

“Proposals™
“Rules and Regulations ”

“Securities and Exchange
Commission”

“Share Alternative”

“Strategic African Securities”

“Transaction”

Heineken Ghanaian Holdings BV, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Heineken

the new Guinness Ghana shares to be issuved pursuant to the
Share Alternative and the Placing

the Cash Offer and the Share Alternative
this document

the period commencing at 09.00 hours (GMT) on 21 June 2004
and ending at (i) 17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004 or (ii) such
later time and/or date as Guinness Ghana may determine,
subject to it obtaining the necessary regulatory consents

the proposed placing of up to 15,492,869 new Guinness Ghana
shares with Diageo Highlands

the Offer and the Placing
the rules and regulations of the Ghana Stock Exchange

the Ghanaian Securities and Exchange Commission

the right of Ghana Breweries shareholders to elect to receive
Guinness Ghana shares instead of the cash to which they would
otherwise be entitled pursuant to the Cash Offer, as set out in this
document, including, where the context so requires, any revision,
variation, extension or renewal of such right

Strategic African Securities Limited, corporate brokers to
Guinness Ghana

the proposed acquisition of the outstanding Ghana Breweries

shares by Guinness Ghana by way of the Offer, as described in
this document
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PART I - LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF GUINNESS GHANA

GUINNESS

GHANA

18 June 2004

Dear Ghana Breweries shareholder

Offer for Ghana Breweries Limited

1. Introduction

Following an earlier cautionary announcement, on 19 December 2003, Ghana Breweries and Guinness
Ghana announced that the terms of an offer had been placed before the Ghana Breweries board, by
the Guinness Ghana board, for the purchase of all the outstanding ordinary shares of Ghana
Breweries. After subsequent discussions between the two companies and the Ghana Stock Exchange
and the Securities and Exchange Commission, it was agreed that the terms of the offer should be
revised and a further announcement was made by Guinness Ghana on 29 March 2004 setting out the
terms of the revised offer, which was placed before the Ghana Breweries board on 22 April 2004.

The purpose of this document is to set out the formal terms and conditions of the Offer, to provide
you with background information relating to the Transaction and to supply you with the
documentation required to accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropniate).

Your attention is drawn to the the summary of important considerations set out in Part 111, which should
be carefully read by each Ghana Breweries shareholder.

Ghana Breweries shareholders to whom the Offer is being made should note that you are net legally
required to accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative and will remain a Ghana Breweries shareholder
if you decide not to do so. However, Ghana Breweries shareholders who accept the Cash Offer or the Share
Alternative must do so in respect of their entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares.

2. The Cash Offer
The Cash Offer is hereby being made on the following basis:

for each Ghana Breweries share ¢1,425 in cash

All payments to Ghana Breweries shareholders pursuant to the Cash Offer will be made net of Ghana
Stock Exchange-approved brokerage commissions and levies.

The Cash Offer presents an opportunity for Ghana Breweries sharcholders to realise capital gains. The
Cash Offer price agreed by Guinness Ghana and Ghana Breweries is 67.5 per cent. higher than the
average of the highest weekly Ghana Breweries share prices during the 26 weeks immediately preceding
18 December 2003 (the date on which the boards of Ghana Breweries and Guinness Ghana released a
cautionary announcement that they had entered into discussions in respect of the Transaction) of
¢850.69 per share (see Appendix IV for further details).

GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED
PO Box 1536, Kumasi, Ghana. Telephone (233) 51 26301. Fax (233) 51 20959
PO Box 3610, Accra, Ghana, Telephone (233) 21 777870, (233) 21 777571, (233) 21 775793. Fax (233) 21 778776
Directors: David Herbert Campbell Hampshire (Chairman), Devlin Marc Hainsworth (Managing), Joseph Woahen Acheampong,
Kwaku Sarfo-Mensah, Laurence Alexander Turnbull, John Wheelhouse, Robert Njoya Kinuthia,
Paul Victor Obeng, Pamela Djamson-Tettey
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Confirmation of Financial Resources

KPMG (Ghana), auditor of Guinness Ghana, has confirmed that Guinness Ghana has sufficient cash
resources and facilities at its disposal to satisfy full acceptance of the Cash Offer (taking into account
the Placing and Heineken Ghanaian Holding’s irrevocable undertaking to accept the Share Alternative,
as described below). A copy of the letter of confirmation is set out in Appendix III.

3.  The Share Alternative

Ghana Breweries shareholders may elect to receive new Guinness Ghana shares instead of the cash to
which they would otherwise be entitled under the Cash Offer, on the following basis:

for cach Ghana Breweries share 0.134 new Guinness Ghana shares

Each entitlement to new Guinness Ghana shares under the Share Alternative will be rounded down to
the nearest whole number of new Guinness Ghana shares. No fractions of new Guinness Ghana
shares, or cash in lieu of those fractions, will be issued to Ghana Breweries shareholders that accept the
Share Alternative.

Heineken Ghanaian Holdings has irrevocably undertaken to accept the Share Alternative in respect of
its entire holding of 252,622,865 Ghana Breweries shares.

4. Legal basis and conditions of the Offer

As Guinness Ghana is not currently the registered holder of any Ghana Breweries shares, the Offer is
being made pursuant to regulation 1(4) of the Ghana Stock Exchange Rules on Takeovers and
Mergers. In addition, the Transaction does not constitute an arrangement or amalgamation for the
purposes of Part S of the Companies Code.

Ghana Breweries shareholders may only accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative and may only
accept either in respect of their entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares. No Ghana Brewcries
shareholder shall be entitled to accept beth the Cash Offer and the Share Alternative or to accept either
in respect of less than his entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares. Any purported attempt to do so shall
be treated by Guinness Ghana as an acceptance of the Cash Offer by the relevant Ghana Breweries
shareholder in respect of his entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares.

The Offer is subject to the conditions and {urther terms contained in this document (in particular, those
conditions and further terms contained 1n Part VI, which should be carefully read by each Ghana
Breweries shareholder) and the accompanying Form of Acceptance.

5.  Basis of pricing the Offer

The Transaction is based on the valuations of Guinness Ghana and Ghana Breweries carried out by
their strategic pariners, Diageo and Heineken respectively. In December 2003, Diageo and Heineken
agreed upon the relative valuations for Guinness Ghana and Ghana Breweries having taken into
account the current and future market positions of the two companies and the planned capital
investments to support the growth of the combined business. The valuation method used was
discounted cash flow, which values the business on the basis of the present value of future cash flows.
The valuations were based on ten-year projections. These projections were based in part on observed
trends in the past performances of the companies and business plans.

The Cash Offer price is primarily based on the valuation of Ghana Breweries agreed by Heineken and
Diageo and adopted by Guinness Ghana. The Guinness Ghana board has agreed to offer the Share
Alternative to all Ghana Breweries shareholders at an exchange ratio of 0.134. This share exchange
ratio will remain fixed during the Offer Period and will apply to all Ghana Breweries shareholders who
accept the Share Alternative. The share alternative offered originally solely to Heineken Ghanaian
Holdings was based upon an exchange ratio of 0.127 Guinness Ghana shares for every Ghana
Breweries share. The Guinness Ghana board has agreed to increase the ratio from 0.127 to 0.134 in
order to be able to offer the Share Alternative to all Ghana Breweries shareholders.

185



6. The Offer Period

The Offer opens at 09:00 hours (GMT) on 21 June 2004 and will remain open for acceptance until
17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004. However, subject to obtaining the necessary regulatory consents,
Guinness Ghana reserves the right to extend the period of the Offer beyond such time and/or date.

7.  Delisting and change of name

Following completion of the Proposals (i) Ghana Breweries will apply to the Ghana Stock Exchange
to be delisted and (ii) subject to the approval of Guinness Ghana sharcholders, the name of Guinness
Ghana will be changed to ‘Guinness Ghana Breweries Limited".

Ghana Breweries sharcholders should note that once Ghana Breweries has become an unlisted
company, the liquidity of the market for its shares will be substantially diminished. However, should
any Ghana Breweries shareholders wish to sell their Ghana Breweries shares following delisting,
Guinness Ghana will be prepared to acquire them for cash at the Cash Offer price.

8. Regulatory and shareholder approvals
{a) Ghana Stock Exchange approval

This document has been examined and approved by the Ghana Stock Exchange. The approval was
obtained from the Ghana Stock Exchange on 8 June 2004.

(b) Securities and Exchange Conunission approval

This document has been examined and approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission in
accordance with Section (9) of the Securities Industry Law (PN.D.C.L. 333), as amended. The
Securities and Exchange Commission’s approval was obtained on 17 June 2004. In its review, the
Securities and Exchange Commission examined the contents of this document to ensure that adequate
disclosures have been made.

{¢) Sharcholder approval

The Offer is conditional upon the approval of the Guinness Ghana shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting to be held on 20 July 2004.

(d) Bank of Ghana approval

The Bank of Ghana has granted, in respect of the Proposals, a waiver of paragraphs 2 and 3 of its
Naotice to Banks, Stockbrokers and the Public { BGIEC/93/1), dated 22 June 1993. The total non-resident
foreign ownership of Guinness Ghana shares following the completion of the Proposals may therefore
exceed 74 per cent.

9,  Guinness Ghana shareholders

This document is also being sent to Guinness Ghana shareholders (without the Form of Acceptance)
for information purposes.

10. Action to be taken

In order to accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) in respect of their entire
holding of Ghana Breweries shares, Ghana Breweries shareholders should complete the accompanying
Form of Acceptance in accordance with the instructions set gut in this document and return it,
together with the share certificate(s) for the relevant Ghana Breweries shares and/or other document(s)
of title, to Strategic African Securities at either of the following addresses: (i) Strategic African
Securities, 2nd Ridge Link, North Ridge, PO Box KA 16446, Accra, Ghana (telephone: +233 21
251546 ~9, 7011770) or (i1) Strategic African Securities, c¢/o Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited,
Harper Road Branch, PO Box 1536, Kumasi, Ghana (telephone: +233 51 24234 - 5, 21003). Forms of
Acceptance should be returned as soon as possible but in any event so as to be received no later than
17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004.
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Ghana Breweries shareholders should seek independent advice from a dealer, investment adviser or
other professional in respect of the terms of the Offer and any decision to be taken.

Yours faithfully

ol

David Hampshire
Chairman
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PART II - INFORMATION ON GUINNESS GHANA AND GHANA BREWERIES

1. Information on Guinness Ghana

Background

Guinness Ghana was incorporated as a private company in 1960 and listed on the Ghana Stock
Exchange in 1990. At incorporation, its main objective was to manage the importation and marketing
of Guinness Foreign Extra Stout in Ghana.

In 1971, a brewery was designed and constructed in Kaasi, then a village near Kumasi in the Ashantj
Region of Ghana. Production commenced a year later and, by 1977, the brewery was producing at
maximum capacity.

In May 1995, Guinness Ghana invested ¢18 billion to expand its packaging capacity and commissioned
a ¢40 billion brew house in July 1999. This is a fully automated facility using state of the art brewing
and process control technology. This process allows product testing at every stage of the brewing
process, delivering world class quality, purity and excellence throughout.

In November 2003, Guinness Ghana commissioned a ¢165 billion second packaging line.

Guinness Ghana is 60.37 per cent. owned by Diageo Highlands, with the remaining 39.63 per cent. held
by institutional and individual investors.

Products

Guinness Ghana’s current product range covers beer (stout), malt drinks and “ready-to-drink”
products. It has an installed capacity of 650,000 hectolitres at its single plant in Kumasi (which will be
expanded later this year to a capacity in excess of 700,000 hectolitres) and produced 576,000 hectolitres
of beer, “ready-to-drink” products and malt drinks in the financial year to June 2003. As at 31
December 2003, Guinness Ghana had a volume share (based on hectolitres sold over the previous
twelve months) of 31.3 per cent. of the combined beer and “ready-to-drink” market and 72.7 per cent.
of the malt drinks market (source: AC Nielson).

Financial information

Summary financial information for Guinness Ghana for the three years ended 30 June 2003 (audited)
and the six months ended 31 December 2003 (unaudited) is set out below:

Six months ended ' Year ended
31 December 30 June
2003 2003 2002 2001
(unaudited)
é¢million émillion ¢million é¢million
Turnover 241,614 362,080 256,921 190,643
Trading profit 39,784 61,577 47,101 36,962
Profit before tax 34 328 65,188 48,172 26,388
At Al
31 December 30 June
2003 2003 2002 2001
{unaudited)
émillion émillion émillion émillion
Net assets 126,171 106,495 85,235 70,604
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Notes:
}. The financial information set out above has been exiracted, without material adjustment, from the published

audited accounts ol Guinness Ghana flor the three ycars ended 30 June 2003 and the published unaudited
interim results of Guinness Ghana for the six months ended 31 December 2003.

A comprehensive set of audited financial statements for the three years ended 30 June 2003, and the
published unaudited interim results of Guinness Ghana for the six months ended 31 December 2003,
are set out in Appendix I.

2. Information on Ghana Breweries

Background

Ghana Breweries was incorporated on 30 April 1992 under its previous name, ‘ABC Brewery Limited’.
On 26 October 1994, it acquired the assets of Achimota Brewery Company Limited, a state-owned
enterprise operating at the Achimota site.

In October 1997, Heineken acquired 90 per cent. of the outstanding ordinary shares of ABC Brewery
Limited and subsequently renamed the company ‘Ghana Breweries Limited’. Ghana Breweries then
merged with Kumasi Brewery Limited, a brewing company established in May 1959, with effect from
1 January 1998. Before this merger, Heineken and its wholly owned subsidiary, Limba Ghana Limited,
held 50.26 per cent. of the issued shares of Kumasi Brewery Limited.

In June 2003, Ghana Breweries underwent a capital restructuring exercise involving (i) the conversion
of Heineken’s ¢10.7 billion zero coupon convertible bond into equity, (ii) a renounceable rights offering
of Ghana Breweries shares, at ¢460 per share, in a ratio of four new shares for every one existing share,
{1ii) the conversion of part of the preference shares held by Social Security & National Insurance Trust
into Ghana Breweries shares and (iv) a write-off of the deficit of ¢40.6 billion on the income surplus
account of Ghana Breweries by way of a reduction of stated capital. As a consequence of this
restructuring, the stated capital of Ghana Breweries increased from ¢74.4 billion, as at December 2002,
to ¢144 billion, as at December 2003.

Ghana Breweries is 75.59 per cent. owned by Heineken Ghanaian Holdings, with the remaining 24.41
per cent. held by institutional and individual investors.

Products

Ghana Breweries’ product range covers beer (lager), malt drinks and soft drinks. As at 31 December
2003, Ghana Breweries had a volume share (based on hectolitres sold over the previous twelve months)
of 39.5 per cent. of the combined beer and “ready-to-drink™ market and 23.3 per cent. of the malt
drinks market (source: AC Nielson).

Financial information
Summary financial information for Ghana Breweries for the three years ended 31 December 2003 is set
out below:

Year ended

31 December

2003 2002 2001

émillion émillion ¢million

Turnover 206,674 136,109 109,463
Trading profit 29,718 (764) (3,290)
Profit before tax 27,568 (12,644) (10,633)
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Net assets

Notes:

At
31 December

2003 2002 2001
¢million émillion é¢million
191,588 159,561 68,683

1. The financial information set out above has been extracted, without material adjustment, from the published
audited accounts of Ghana Breweries for the three years ended 31 December 2003.

A comprehensive set of audited financial statements for the three years ended 31 December 2003 are

set out in Appendix 1.
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PART 111 - IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS

Nature of the Transaction

Ghana Breweries shareholders to whom the Offer is being made are not legally required to accept either
the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative and will remain Ghana Breweries shareholders if they decide
not to do so. However, Ghana Breweries shareholders who accept the Cash Offer or the Share
Alternative must do so in respect of their entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares.

Maijor changes to Ghana Breweries’ and Guinness Ghana’s businesses
| g

Following completion of the Proposals, Ghana Breweries will apply to the Ghana Stock Exchange to
be delisted. Ghana Breweries shareholders should note that once Ghana Breweries has become an
unlisted company, the liquidity of the market for its shares will be substantially diminished. However,
should any Ghana Breweries shareholders wish to sell their Ghana Breweries shares following delisting,
Guinness Ghana will be prepared to acquire them for cash at the Cash Offer price.

After the Transaction, Ghana Breweries will become a subsidiary of Guinness Ghana. However, the
companies will operate in Ghana as a single enterprise, with its headquarters based in Kumasi. The
production facilities, procurement and distribution channels, marketing initiatives and management of
the two companies will be consolidated into one business and Guinness Ghana will be renamed
‘Guinness Ghana Breweries Limited’.

There are also proposals for the transfer of Ghana Breweries’ assets to Guinness Ghana, at market
value, at some point following completion of the Transaction. Any such transfer would require the
approval of Ghana Breweries shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution passed pursuant to
section 202(1) of the Companies Code.

Long-term justification for the Transaction

The Transaction is based on unlocking the synergies of the two businesses, including the brand
portfolio, technical capabilities, management approach and company structures. The Guinness Ghana
directors believe that the combined entity should attain high levels of growth and performance, thus
enabling it to build on its contribution to the Ghanaian community and environment.

Ghana is part of the global economy and the Transaction should create a business of international
stature. The Guinness Ghana directors believe that this should help stimulate the business climate and
further investment in Ghana.

15 19]



PART IV - PROCEDURE FOR ACCEPTING THE CASH OFFER
OR THE SHARE ALTERNATIVE

1. Completing the Form of Acceptance

To accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) you must complete the
accompanying Form of Acceptance in accordance with the instructions set out in Appendix VI

Ghana Breweries shareholders may only accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative and may only
accept either in respect of their catirc holding of Ghana Breweries shares. No Ghana Brewerics
shareholder shall be entitled to accept both the Cash Offer and the Share Alternative or to accept either
in respect of less than his entire holding of Ghana Brewerics sharcs. Any purported attempt to do so shall
be treated by Guinness Ghana as an acceptance of the Cash Offer by the relevant Ghana Breweries
sharcholder in respect of his entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares.

2. Returning your completed Form of Acceptance

A properly completed and duly executed Form of Acceptance, together with the share certificate(s) for
your Ghana Breweries shares and/or other document(s) of title, should be returned to Strategic African
Securities at either of the following addresses: (i) Strategic African Securities, 2nd Ridge Link, North
Ridge, PO Box KA 16446, Accra, Ghana (telephone: +233 21 251546 - 9, 7011770) or (i) Strategic
African Securities, ¢/o Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited, Harper Road Branch, PO Box 1536,
Kumasi, Ghana (telephone: +233 51 24234 - 5, 21003). Forms of Acceptance shouid be returned as
soon as possible but in any event so as to be received no later than 17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004.

The method of delivery of the Forms of Acceptance, together with the relevant share certificate(s)
and/or other document(s) of title, is at the election and responsibility of each accepting Ghana
Breweries shareholder. If delivery is by mail, accepting Ghana Breweries shareholders are advised to
use registered mail and ‘obtain appropriate insurance. In all cases, sufficient time must be allowed to
ensure delivery to Strategic African Securities at either of the addresses stated above prior to 17.00 hours
(GMT) on 19 July 2004.

If your share certificate(s) and/or other document(s) of title is/are not readily available or is/are lost,
you should contact Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited, Head Office Annex, 57 Examination Loop,
North Ridge, PO Box 401, Accra, Ghana (telephone: +233 21 251131 ~ 3). Merchant Bank (Ghana)
Limited will prepare a letter of indemnity which you may collect from its offices, provided you present
suitable identification (i.e. a driving licence, passport or other type of formal identification). This letter
of indemnity should then be completed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and
lodged, together with a properly completed and duly executed Form of Acceptance, with Strategic
African Securities at either of the addresses stated above as soon as possible but in any event so as to be
received no later than 17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004.

3. Validity of acceptances

Guinness Ghana shall treat any purported acceptance by a Ghana Breweries shareholder of (i) both
the Cash Offer and the Share Alternative or (ii) either the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative in respect
of less than that shareholder’s entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares as an acceptance of the Cash
Offer in respect of that shareholder’s entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares. Guinness Ghana
reserves the right to treat as valid, in whole or in part, any acceptance of the Cash Offer or the Share
Alternative (as appropriate) which is not entirely in order or which is not accompanied by the relevant
share certificate(s) and/or other document(s) of title. In that event, no payment of cash under the Cash
Offer or allotment of new Guinness Ghana shares under the Share Alternative will be made until after
the relevant share certificate(s) and/or other document(s) of title or an indemnity satisfactory to
Guinness Ghana have been received.
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4. Non-resident Ghana Breweries shareholders

If you receive a copy of this document and/or the accompanying Form of Acceptance in any
jurisdiction other than Ghana, you may not treat it as constituting an invitation or offer to you, nor
should you in any event use such Form of Acceptance, unless in the relevant jurisdiction the Cash Offer
or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) could lawfully be made to, and accepted by, you.

It is your responsibility if you are outside Ghana and/or subject to the laws of any other jurisdiction
and if you receive a copy of this document and/or the accompanying Form of Acceptance and wish to
accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate), to satisfy yourself as to the full
observance of the laws of the relevant jurisdiction in connection therewith, including the obtaining of
any government or other consents and compliance with other necessary formalities, and to pay any
transfer or other taxes or duties required to be paid in such jurisdictions in respect of the Cash Offer
or the Share Alternative (as appropriate).
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PART V - SETTLEMENT, LISTING AND DEALINGS

1. Settlement

Subject to the Offer becoming or being declared unconditional in all respects, settlement of the
consideration to which any Ghana Breweries shareholder is entitled under the Cash Offer or the Share
Alternative (as appropriate) will be effected, in the case of acceptances received, complete in all
respects, by 17.00 (GMT) on 19 July 2004, within 29 days of such date.

All valid acceptances by Ghana Breweries shareholders of the Cash Offer will be settled by the
despatch of cheques for the relevant amount by post (unless the relevant Ghana Breweries shareholder
elects otherwise). All payments to Ghana Breweries shareholders in respect of the Cash Offer will be
made net of Ghana Stock Exchange-approved brokerage commissions and levies.

All valid elections by Ghana Breweries sharcholders for the Share Alternative will be settled by the
despatch of definitive certificates for the relevant number of new Guinness Ghana shares by post
(unless the relevant Ghana Breweries sharcholder elects otherwise).

If the Offer does not become or i1s not declared unconditional in all respects, the share certificate(s)
and/or other document(s) of title in respect of Ghana Breweries shares that have been assented to the
Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate} will be returned by post within 21 days of the
Offer lapsing to the person or agent whose name and address is set out in Box 4 on the accompanying
Form of Acceptance or, if none is set out, to the first-named holder at his or her registered address.

2. Listing and dealings

Application has been made for the new Guinness Ghana shares to be listed on the Ghana Stock
Exchange and Guinness Ghana has received the Ghana Stock Exchange’s provisional approval for
such listing. Trading in the new Guinness Ghana shares will commence by 17 August 2004.

3.  General

Ghana Breweries shareholders are responsible for the safe delivery of all documents sent by or to them
in connection with the Offer. To avoid the risk of any cheques or certificates for new Guinness Ghana
shares issued in their favour being lost, Ghana Breweries shareholders may elect for those cheques or
certificates to be retained by Strategic African Securities for coliection by them. Those Ghana
Breweries shareholders who make such an election will need to present suitable identification (i.e. a
driving licance, passport or other type of formal identification) to Strategic African Securities in order
to collect any retained cheque or certificate. Any individual appointed by a Ghana Breweries
shareholder to collect a cheque or certificate retained by Strategic African Securities will need to
present a duly executed authority note or power of attorney. However, all cheques and/or certificates
retained by Strategic African Securities will only be retained for one month and will thereafter be
returned by post to the relevant Ghana Breweries shareholder(s).
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PART VI - CONDITIONS AND FURTHER TERMS OF THE OFFER

The Offer is governed by Ghanaian law and is subject to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts
of Ghana and to the terms and conditions set out in this document and in the accompanying Form of
Acceptance.

1. Conditions of the Offer
The Offer is subject to the following conditions:

(a) the passing of all the Guinness Ghana resolutions at the Guinness Ghana extraordinary general
meeting;

(b) Guinness Ghana receiving no formal notification, during the Offer Period, of any decision of the
Ghana Stock Exchange (i) not to agree to the listing of the new Guinness Ghana shares to be
issued pursuant to the Share Alternative and the Placing on the First List of the Ghana Stock
Exchange and/or (ii) to impose special conditions in connection with such listing which Guinness
Ghana, acting reasonably, considers to be unduly onerous;

(c) all other authonsations, clearances, undertakings and approvals necessary to implement the
Proposals having been obtained from each appropriate third party and all such authorisations,
clearances, undertakings and approvals remaining in full force and effect and there being no
intimation of any intention to revoke, withhold or modify the same; and

(d) each of Ghana Breweries and Guinness Ghana not having had any material legal proceedings
instituted or threatened against it or been the subject of an order for its winding-up (voluntary or
otherwise) or dissolution or for the appointment of a receiver, manager, trustee or similar officer
or for the appointment of any person to any analogous post or position or for any similar purpose
under the laws of any jurisdiction in respect of its affairs or any of its assets or revenues which in
each case would be material.

Guinness Ghana reserves the right to waive, in whole or in part, conditions (a), (c) and (d). The Offer
will lapse unless all the conditions set out above have been fulfilled or (if capable of waiver) waived or,
where appropriate, have been determined by Guinness Ghana in its reasonable opinion to be or to
remain satisfied by the later of (i) 17.00 hours (GMT) on 3 August 2004 and (ii) such other date as
Guinness Ghana may, with the necessary regulatory consents, decide and which may be notified to
Ghana Breweries shareholders through the Ghana Stock Exchange and a notice in a national daily
newspaper.

2.  Further terms of the Offer

(a) Acceptance period

(i) The Offer will initially be open for acceptance until 17.00 hours (GMT) on 19 July 2004. Although
no extension of the Offer Period is envisaged, Guinness Ghana reserves the right, subject to
obtaining the necessary regulatory consents, to extend the Offer Period beyond such time and/or
date. Any such extension will be notified to Ghana Breweries shareholders through the Ghana
Stock Exchange and a notice in a national daily newspaper.

(i1) The Offer, whether revised or not, shall not be capable of acceptance by a Ghana Breweries
shareholder after the Offer Period and any purported acceptance of the Offer pursuant to a Form
of Acceptance received by or on behalf of Guinness Ghana after the Offer Period (irrespective of
when such form was posted) shall be treated by Guinness Ghana as invalid.

(b} Revision

(i) Although no revision is envisaged, Guinness Ghana reserves the right, subject to obtaining the
necessary regulatory consents, to revise the Offer. If the Offer is revised, the revised offer will
remain open for acceptance for a period of at least seven days.
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(i)

fc)

{d)

(e)

o

(i)

(i)

()

v

Any revised offer made available to Ghana Breweries shareholders will be deemed to have been
accepted by any Ghana Breweries shareholder who has accepted the Cash Offer or the Share
Alternative (as appropriate) in its original or any previously revised form(s), after seven days’
notice of the revised offer, provided such revised offer represents an increase in the value of the
consideration offered.

Announcements

As soon as practicable following the day on which the Offer is due to become unconditional in all
respects or is revised or extended, Guinness Ghana will make an appropriate announcement
through the Ghana Stock Exchange and a notice in a national daily newspaper.

No rights of withdrawal

All acceptances of the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) shall be irrevocable
and any Ghana Breweries shareholder who has accepted the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative
(as appropriate) shall be deemed to have accepted any revised offer made available to Ghana
Breweries shareholders, in accordance with paragraph 2(b) above, provided such revised offer
represents an increase in the value of the consideration offered.

Non-resident Ghana Breweries shareholders

The making of the Offer to Ghana Breweries shareholders who are citizens, residents or nationals
of jurisdictions outside Ghana or to any custodian or nominee of, or trustee for, any such person
may be affected by the laws of the relevant foreign jurisdiction. Each such person should inform
himself of and observe any applicable legal requirements in relation to the Offer.

General

The Offer is capable of acceptance after 09.00 hours (GMT) on 21 June 2004. Copies of this
document and the Form of Acceptance may be collected from Strategic African Securities at
either of the following addresses: (i) Strategic African Securities, 2nd Ridge Link, North Ridge,
PO Box KA 16446, Accra, Ghana (telephone: +233 21 251546 - 9, 7011770) or (ii) Strategic
African Securities, ¢/o Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited, Harper Road Branch, PO Box
1536, Kumasi, Ghana (telephone: +233 51 24234 - 5, 21003), in each case during normal business
hours.

The Offer will lapse unless all the conditions of the Offer have been fulfilled or (if capable of
waiver) waived or, where appropriate, have been determined by Guinness Ghana in its reasonable
opinion to be or to remain satisfied by the later of (i) 17.00 hours GMT on 3 August 2004 and (ii)
such other date as Guinness Ghana may, with the necessary regulatory consents, decide and which
may be notified to Ghana Breweries shareholders through the Ghana Stock Exchange and a
notice in a national daily newspaper.

Without prejudice to any other provision of this Part VI, Guinness Ghana reserves the right to
treat acceptances of the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) as valid if not
entirely in order or not accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) and/or other relevant
document(s) of title. In that event, no payment of cash will be made, or certificate in respect of
the new Guinness Ghana shares despatched, under the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as
appropriate) until the relevant share certificate(s) and/or other document(s) of title or an
indemnity in the form approved by Guinness Ghana have been received.

Each Ghana Breweries shareholder shall be responsible for all communications, notices,
certificates, documents of title and other documents and remittances to be delivered by or to, or
sent to or from, it or its designated agent.

Any omission to despatch this document to, or any failure to receive it by, any person to whom
the Offer is made, or should be made, shall not invalidate the Offer in any way or create any
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(vi)

implication that the Offer has not been made to any such person. The Offer extends to any Ghana
Breweries shareholder to whom this document may not have been despatched.

The new Guinness Ghana shares to be issued to any Ghana Breweries shareholder who accepts
the Share Alternative will be issued credited as fully paid and free from all encumbrances and will
rank equally in all respects with the existing outstanding issued ordinary shares of no par value
in the capital of Guinness Ghana.

(vii) The instructions, authorities, terms and provisions contained in or deemed to be incorporated in

the rest of this document and the accompanying Form of Acceptance constitute part of the terms
of the Offer.

(viii) All references in this document to 19 July 2004 shall (except where the context otherwise requires),

(ix)

(g)

if the Offer Period is extended, be deemed to refer to the expiry date of the Offer Period as so
extended.

The Offer, all acceptances of it, and all contracts arising from or pursuant to any of them and all
action made or taken or deemed to have been made or taken under any term of the Offer shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with Ghanaian law,

Form of acceptance

Each Ghana Breweries shareholder by whom, or on whose behalf, a Form of Acceptance is
executed irrevocably undertakes, authorises, represents, warrants and agrees to and with Guinness
Ghana (so as to bind it and its successors and assigns) that:

(i) 1tisirrevocably and unconditionally entitled to transfer the legal and beneficial ownership of
the Ghana Breweries shares comprised in the acceptance of the Cash Offer or the Share
Alternative (as appropriate) and the Ghana Breweries shares in respect of which the Cash
Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) is accepted or deemed to be accepted are sold
free from all liens, charges, encumbrances, equities and other interests and together with all
rights attaching to them at the time of transfer;

(ii) it has fully complied with the laws of any relevant jurisdiction in connection with the Cash
Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate),

(ili) the execution of the Form of Acceptance shall constitute a valid acceptance of the Cash
Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) in respect of the number of Ghana Breweries
shares inserted, or deemed inserted, in Box 1 or Box 2 of the Form of Acceptance, in each
case on and subject to the terms and conditions set out or referred to in this document and
that such acceptance shall be irrevocable;

(iv) the execution of the Form of Acceptance shall constitute an undertaking to execute all or
any documents and/or give any such further assurance as may be required to enable
Guinness Ghana to obtain the full benefit of the terms of this document and/or to perfect
any of the authorities expressed to be given hereunder;

(v) the execution of the Form of Acceptance constitutes, subject to the Offer becoming or being
declared unconditional in all respects in accordance with its terms, the irrevocable
appointment of any Guinness Ghana director (or other individual(s) appointed in writing by
any Guinness Ghana director) as such shareholder’s attorney and agent, and an irrevocable
instruction and authority to the attorney to:

(aa) complete and execute all or any form(s) of transfer and/or other document(s) (including
deeds or any document required to be signed, sealed and delivered) as may be necessary
or desirable in the attorney’s discretion in relation to the Ghana Breweries shares
referred to in paragraph (g)(i) above in favour of Guinness Ghana or such other
person(s) as Guinness Ghana or its agents may direct;
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(bb) deliver any such form(s) of transfer and/or other document(s) together with the

(cc)

certificate(s) and/or other document(s) of title relating to such Ghana Breweries shares
in the attorney’s discretion for registration within six months foilowing the Offer
becoming unconditional in all respects; and

execute all such other documents and do all such other acts and things as may in the
opinion of such attorney be necessary or expedient for the purpose of, or in connection
with, the acceptance of the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) and to
vest in Guinness Ghana such Ghana Breweries shares.
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(a)

(b)

PART VII - GENERAL INFORMATION

Responsibility

The Guinness Ghana directors accept responsibility for the information contained in this
document. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Guinness Ghana directors (who have
taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this
document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of
such information.

Directors

Guinness Ghana
The Guinness Ghana directors and their respective functions are as follows:

Name Function

David Herbert Campbell Hampshire* Chairman

Devlin Marc Hainsworth* Munaging Director
Joseph Woahen Acheampong Director

Paul Victor Obeng Director

Laurence Alexander Turnbull* Director

John Wheelhouse* ~ Director

Robert Njoya Kinuthia Direcior

Pamela Djamson-Tettey Director

Kwaku Sarfo-Mensaht Direcror

*Recommended by Diageo to be appointed to the Guinness Ghana board

tRecommended by Social Security & National Insurance Trust to be appointed to the Guinness Ghana
board

Guinness Ghana is incorporated in Ghana and its registered office is at Kaasi Industrial Area, PO
Box 1536, Kumasi, Ghana. The company secretary of Guinness Ghana is Simon Kodzo Golio.

Ghana Breweries
The Ghana Breweries directors and their respective functions are as follows:

Name Function
Martin Eson-Benjamin Chairman
Olusegun Samuel Adebanji* Munaging Director
Clément Jean Guillaume Nouwens* Director
Dorothea Plantenga-Hogewoning* Director
Henk van Klompenburg* Director
Ishmael Evans Yamson Director
Thomas Arie de Mani* Director
Jean-Louis Marie Homé Director
Kwame Donkoh Fordwor (Dr.) Director
Ebenezer Magnus Boyet Director
Wilson Kusi-Atansaht Director

*Recommended by Heineken to be appointed to the Ghana Breweries board

tRecommended by Social Security & National Insurance Trust to be appointed to the Ghana Breweries
board

{To be appointed to the Guinness Ghana board following completion of the Proposals

Ghana Breweries is incorporated in Ghana and its registered office is at Mile 7, Accra-Nsawam
Road, PO Box AH1114, Achimota, Accra. The company secretary of Ghana Breweries is Joe
Aboagye Debrah.
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(b)
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(b)

(a)

(b)

Disclosure of interests

As at 11 June 2004 (the last practicable date prior to the posting of this document), the interests
of the Guinness Ghana directors and their immediate families in Guinness Ghana shares were as
follows:

Name Guinness Ghana shares
David Herbert Campbell Hampshire 4,000
Paul Victor Obeng 13,370*
Joseph Woahen Acheampong 145

*Registered in the name of Paros Ltd

As at 11 June 2004 (the last practicable date prior to the posting of this document), the interests
of the Ghana Breweries directors and their immediate families in Ghana Breweries shares and
Guinness Ghana shares were as follows:

Ghuna Guinness

Breweries Ghana

Name shares shares
Martin Eson-Benjamin 31,721
Dorothea Plantenga-Hogewoning 20,000
Ishmael Evans Yamson 36,805
Kwame Donkoh Fordwor 220,000

Ebenezer Magnus Boye 70,000 1,000

Guinness Ghana does not hold or control any Ghana Breweries shares. Save as disclosed in this
paragraph 3 no Guinness Ghana director or any member of his immediate family is interested in
any Ghana Breweries shares or any Guinness Ghana shares.

Ghana Breweries does not hold or control any Guinness Ghana shares. Save as disclosed in this
paragraph 3 no Ghana Breweries director or any member of his immediate family is interested in
any Guinness Ghana shares or any Ghana Breweries shares.

Financing arrangements

It is estimated that acceptance of the Cash Offer by all Ghana Breweries shareholders other than
Heineken Ghanaian Holdings (which has irrevocably undertaken to accept the Share Alternative)
would require the payment by Guinness Ghana of a maximum amount of approximately ¢116
billion in cash. The cash consideration required to implement the Cash Offer will be provided out .
of the funds received from Diageo Highlands pursuant to the Placing and new facilities provided
by Standard Chartered Bank.

KPMG (Ghana) has confirmed that it is satisfied that sufficient resources are available to
Guinness Ghana to satisfy the maximum amount of cash payable under the Cash Offer (taking
into account the Placing and Heineken Ghanaian Holding’s irrevocable undertaking to accept the
Share Alternative). A copy of the comfort letter from KPMG (Ghana), confirming the existence
of adequate funds to pay the maximum amount of cash payable under the Cash Offer is set out
in Appendix III.

Litigation

Guinness Ghana is not and has not been involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings
(including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which Guinness Ghana is
aware) which may have or have had during the twelve months preceding the date of this document
a significant effect on Guinness Ghana’s financial position.

Ghana Breweries is not and has not been involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings
(including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which Ghana Breweries is
aware) which may have or have had during the twelve months preceding the date of this document
a significant effect on Ghana Breweries’ financial position.
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6. General

The letter from KPMG (Ghana) reproduced in Appendix I is included in the form and context in
which it appears with the consent of KPMG (Ghana).

7. Documents available for inspection

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of Guinness
Ghana and at its offices at CDH House, Near Sankara Circle, Independence Close, off Independence
Avenue, Ridge, Accra during normal business hours on any weekday (public holidays excepted), while
the Offer remains open for acceptance:

(a) the published audited accounts of Guinness Ghana for the three financial years ended 30 June
2003 and the published unaudited interim results of Guinness Ghana for the six months ended
31 December 2003;

(b) the published audited accounts of Ghana Breweries for the three financial years ended
31 December 2003;

{c) the letters from the Bank of Ghana, the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Ghana
Stock Exchange containing the regulatory approvals referred to in paragraph 8 of Part I; and

(d) this document.
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APPENDIX I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON GUINNESS GHANA

Part A - Financial statements for the three years ended 30 June 2003

The following information has been extracted without material adjustment from the published annual
report and accounts of Guinness Ghana for the three financial years ended 30 June 2003. Copies of
these annual report and accounts are available for inspection at the addresses referred to in paragraph 7

of Part VII of this document.

Profit and loss account for the three years ended 30 June 2003

Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2003 30 June 2002 30 June 2001
¢000 ¢000 ¢000
Turnover 362,080,199 256,921,901 190,643,212
Cost of sales (214,814,657) (143,482,110) (104,276,807) -
Gross profit 147,265,542 113,439,791 86,366,405
General administrative and selling expenses (85,687,958)  (66,338,222)  (49,403,824)
Trading profit 61,577,584 47,101,569 36,962,581
Other income 3,636,748 1,320,161 239,785
Profit before interest and taxation 65,214,332 48,421,730 37,202,366
Net interest charges (26,104) (248,889)  (10,813,470)
Profit before taxation 65,188,228 48,172,841 26,388,896
Taxation including reconstruction levy (14,557,320)  (12,983,292) (8,030,110)
Profit after taxation
transferred to income surplus account 50,630,908 35,189,549 18,358,786
Income surplus account for the three years ended 30 June 2003
Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2003 30 June 2002 30 June 2001
¢000 ¢000 ¢000
Balance at 1 July 74,598,983 59,968,43¢ 52,182,848
Profit for the year 50,630,908 35,189,549 18,358,786
125,229,891 95,157,983 70,541,634
Proposed dividend: ¢250 per share (2002: ¢175) (29,370,000)  (20,559,000) (10,573,200)
Balance at 30 June 95,859,891 74,598,983 59,968,434
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Balance sheet as at 30 June for the three years ended 2003

At 30 June 2003
¢000 ¢000

Fixed assets 150,199,858
Investments 3,346,122
Current assets
Stocks 57,772,391
Taxation -
Debtors 19,463,708
Cash and bank
balances 46,698,630

123,934,729

Current liabilities

Bank overdraft 15,994,528
Creditors 67,961,185
Taxation 5,405,576
Dividends 21,835,903
Amount due

to related

companies 47,010,301

158,207,493

Net current
(liabilities)/
assets

Deferred taxation

Net assets

Financed by:
Stated capital
Capital surplus
Income surplus

(34,272,764)

119,273,216

(12,771,230)
106,495,986

7,686,032
2,950,063

95,859,891
106,495,986
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At 30 June 2002
¢000 ¢000
81,293,722
3,346,122
36,404,738
20,186,907
21,501,375
78,093,020
525,367
34,881,750
6,644,243
15,272,400
9,828,472
67,152,232
10,940,788
95,580,632
(10,345,554)
85,235,078
7,686,032
2,950,063
74,598,983
85,235,078

At 30 June 2001
¢000 ¢000
68,460,901
3,346,122
26,912,170
3,258,467
10,352,669
16,492,599
57,015,905
8,416,881
19,436,342
8,760,458
10,817,498
47,431,179
9,584,726
81,391,749
(10,787,220)
70,604,529
7,686,032
2,950,063
59,968,434
70,604,529
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Cash flow statement for the three years ended 30 June 2003
Year ended 30 June 2003 Year ended 30 June 2002 Year ended 30 June 2001
¢000 ¢000 ¢000 ¢000 ¢000 ¢000
Operating profit
(before investment

returns and servicing
of finance) 65,059,297 48,421,730 37,116,235

Depreciation

charges 15,263,488 13,589,317 9,480,264
Increase in

stocks (21,367,653) (9,492,568) 5,385,777
Decrease/

(Increase) in

debtors 723,199 (9,834,238) 881,374
Increase in

creditors 33,079.435 15,445,408 9,097,028
Increase/

(Decrease) in

related company

balances 37,181,829 (989,026) (37,982,338)
Profit on

sale of
fixed assets (793,483) - (102,091)

64,086,815 8,718,893 (13,239,986)

Net cash

flow from

operating

activities 129,146,112 57,140,623 23,876,249

Investment

returns and

servicing of

finance

Dividends paid (22,806,497) (14,047,058) (12,897,212)
Dividends received 155,035 - 86,131

Interest paid (649,223) (939.022) (11,413,169)
Interest received 623,119 690,133 599,699

(22,677.566) {14,295,947) (23,624,551)
Tax paid (13,364,311) (3.522,248) (2,943,287)
Investing activities
Fixed assets
purchased (88,096,838) (26,422,138) (10,016,167)

Proceeds from
sale of fixed

assets 4,720,697 - 153,599
(83,376,141) (26,422,138) (9,862,568)
Increase in
cash and cash
equivalents 9,728,094 12,900,290 (12,554,157)
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Year ended 30 June 2003
¢000 €000
Analysis of
changes in
cash and cash
equivalents
during the year
Balance at

Ist July 20,976,008

Net cash

inflow 9,728,094

Balance at

30th June 30,704,102

Analysis of
balances of

cash and cash
equivalents

as shown in

the balance sheet
Cash and Bank
balances

Bank Overdraft

46,698,630
(15,994,528)

Balance at

30th June 30,704,102

Year ended 30 June 2002
¢000 000

8.075,718
12,900,290

20,976,008

21,501,375
(525,367)

20,976,008
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Year ended 30 June 2001
¢000 ¢000

20,629,875
(12,554,157)

8,075,718

16,492,599
(8.416,881)

8,075,718
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Part B — Unaudited interim results of Guinness Ghana for the six months ended 31 December 2003

The following information has been extracted without material adjustment from the published
unaudited interim results of Guinness Ghana for the six months ended 31 December 2003. Copies of
these interim results are available for inspection at the addresses referred to in paragraph 7 of Part VII

of this document.

Profit and loss account for the six months ended 31 December 2003

Net turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
General administrative expenses

Operating profit
Other income
Exceptional items

Profit before financial charges
Financial charges (net)

Profit before taxation
Taxation/national reconstruction

Profit transferred to income surplus account

Income surplus account for the six months ended 31 December 2003

Balance as at 1 July
Transfer from stated capital
Profit /(Loss) for the period
Interim dividend

Balance as at 31 December 2003

30

Six months  Six months
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2003 2002
émillion émillion
241,614 170,259
(155,192) (109,027)
86,422 61,232
(46,638) (29,623)
39,784 31,609
(890) 105

6,031 0
44,925 31,714
(10,597) 71
34,328 31,785
(7,839 (7,098)
26,489 24,687

Six months  Six months
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2003 2002
émillion ¢emillion
95,860 74,599

0 0

26,489 24,687
(6,814) (6,814)
115,535 92,472
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Balance sheet as at 31 December 2003

Fixed assets

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Bank and cash balances

Total current assets

Less:

Current liabilities
Creditors
Taxation
Dividend

Bank overdraft
Bank loans
Short term loan

Total Current Liabilities
Net current assets
Deferred tax hability
Net assets

Representing:
Stated capital
Capital surplus
Income surplus

Interest of shareholders

31

At At
3] December 31 December
2003 2002
¢million ¢million
203,505 80,533
77,407 37,655
39,096 20,543
4,208 65,813
120,711 124,011
(86,160) (65,836)
(8,739) (7,522)
6,814) (15,292)
(48,555) (2,440)
(35,000) 0
0 0
(185,268) (91,090)
(64,556) 32,921
(12,777) (10,346)
126,171 103,109
7,686 7,686
2,950 2,950
115,535 92,472
126,171 103,109



Cash flow statement for the six months ended 31 December 2003

Operating profit

Returns and servicing of
Depreciation
Other income
Decrease/Increase in stocks
Decrease/Increase in debtors
DecreasefIncrease in creditors

Net cash inflow from operations

Financial Charges
Interest Received
Interest Paid

Net cash outflow from re-investments and servicing
Tax paid
Dividend paid
Investing activities
Fixed assets purchase
Proceeds from sale of investments
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash flow before financing
Financing
Deposit for shares purchase
Proceeds form rights issues
Bank loan (Paid)/Received
Short-term loan paid
Medium-term loan paid
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
Analysis of changes in cash
Equivalents during the year
Net financing
Balance as at lst January
Net cash inflow/(outflow)

Balance at 31 December

Analysis of cash
Cash at bank
Bank overdraft

Balance at 31 December
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Six months  Six months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2003 2002
¢million émillion
39,784 31,609
8,837 7,461
890 (105)
(13,502) 774
(29,623) (7,367)
(16,318) 6,059
(9,932) 38,432
170 326
(10,769) (255)
{10,599) 71
(4,736) (6,450)
(21,836) (22,556)
(62,142) (5,382)
9,377 0
(99,868) 4.115
(109,801) 42,547
35,000 0
35,000 0
30,453 20,826
(74,801) 42,547
(44,347) 63,373
4,208 65,813
(48,555) (2,440)
(44,347) 63,373
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APPENDIX II - FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON GHANA BREWERIES

Financial statements for the three years ended 31 December 2003

The following information has been extracted without material adjustment from the published annual
report and accounts of Ghana Breweries for the three financial years ended 31 December 2003. Copies
of these annual report and accounts are available for inspection at the addresses referred to in
paragraph 7 of Part V1I of this document.

Profit and loss account for the three years ended 31 December 2003

Year ended  Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December

2003 2002 2001
é¢million ¢million ¢million
Turnover 206,674 136,109 109,463
Cost of sales (119,478) (78,511) (64,114}
Gross profit 87,196 57,598 45,349
General administrative and selling expenses (57,478) (58,362) (48,639)
Trading profit/(loss) 29,718 (764) (3,290)
Other income 6,782 550 485
Exceptional items (7,147) (3,010) 3,554
Profit/(loss) before net financial charges 29,353 (3,224) 749
Net financial charges (1,785) (9,420) (11,382)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 27,568 (12,644) (10,633)
Taxation (689) - -
Profit/(loss) after taxation transferred to income
surplus account 26,879 (12,644) (10,633)

Income surplus account for the three years ended 31 December 2003

Year ended  Year ended  Yeur ended
31 December 31 December 31 December

2003 2002 2001

émillion émillion ¢million
Balance at | January (40,589) (27,945) (31,369)
Transfer from stated capital/prior year adjustment 40,589 - 2,217
- (27,945) (29,152)

Profit/(loss) for the year 26,879 (12,644) (10,633)
Transfer from capital surplus 1,540 - 18,437
Loss on assets written-off (1,521) - (6,597)
Balance as at 31 December 26,898 (40,589) (27,945)
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Balance sheet as at 31 December for the three years ended 2003

Fixed assets

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Taxation

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities
Creditors

Bank overdraft
Bank loan
Short-term loan

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Long term liabilities
Medium-term loan
Deferred tax liability

Net assets

Financed by:

Stated capital

Capital surplus

Income surplus

Deposit for share purchase

Shareholders’ funds
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Al At At
31 December .31 December 31 December
2003 2002 2001
é¢million ¢million ¢million
115,135 101,863 95,084
67.577 43,702 42,476
27,112 21,866 26,803
573 018 890
41,893 25,926 6,292
137,155 92,412 76,461
57,151 26,694 62,391
11 470 24,734
- 2,500 -
3,086 4,596 4,596
60,248 34,260 91,721
76,907 58,152 (15,260)
192,042 160,015 79,824
- - (10,687)
(454) (454) (454)
191,588 159,561 68,683
144,043 74,441 74,44]
20,647 22,187 22,187
26,398 {40,589) (27.945)
- 103,522 -
191,588 159,561 68,683
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Cash flow statement for the three years ended 31 December 2003
Year ended  Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December

2003 2002 2001
émillion ¢million ¢million
Operating profit (before investment returns and
servicing of finance) 29,353 (3,224) 749
Add/(less):
Depreciation 14,784 10,024 9,439
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (252) 457) 217
Loss on fixed assets written-off - - 357
Increase in stock (23,875) (1,226) (5,479)
Increase/(Decrease) in debtors _ (5,246) 4,937 (4,946)
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors 30,457 (35,697 12,180
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 45,221 (25,643) 12,083
Returns on investment and scrvicing of finance
Interest received 230 20 138
Interest charges (2,015) (9,440) (11,520)
Tax paid (344) (28) (109)
Investing activities
Additions to fixed assets (29,662) (16,803) (12,423)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 337 457 217
Financing activities
Deposit for share purchase - 103,522 -
Proceeds from rights issue 6,669 - -
Loan released to deposit against shares - (10,687) -
Bank loan paid (2,500) 2,500 -
Short-term loan (1,510) - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalences 16,426 43,898 (11,614)
Balance at 1 January 25,456 (18,442) (6,828)
Balance at 31 December 41,882 25,456 (18,442)
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 41,893 25,926 6,292
Bank overdraft (1h) (470) (24,734)
Balance at 31 December 41,882 25,456 (18,442)
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APPENDIX III - KPMG CASH CONFIRMATION LETTER

hcalisc

Audit
PO, Box 242 25. Liberia Road Telephone  +233 (21) 664881 4
Accra Accra. Fax +233 (21) 667908
Ghana. Ghana. kpmg-gh@kpmg.com.gh

The Directors Our ref  G.9IMNADPD

Guirmess Ghana Limited

Kaasi Industrial Area Contact P Owiredu

Kumasi

27 April 2004

Dear Sirs

Offer by Guinness Ghana Limited (“Guinness Ghana™) to acquire all of the
outstanding ordinary shares of Ghana Breweries Limited (*Ghana Breweries”™)

We, as the independent statutory auditors of Guinness Ghana, are issuing this letter in
accordance with the Ghana Stock Exchange's Rules and Regulations in respect of the cash offer,
with a share alternative, to be made to all Ghana Breweries shareholders.

As requested by the board of Guinness Ghana, we have reviewed the banking facilities
established by Guinness Ghana with Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited for the purpose of
supporting the funding requirements of the cash offer. Additonally, we have reviewed the
structure of the transaction {(in particular, the cash offer price of ¢1,425 per share) and the
documentation that establishes the principles of a private placement of shares in Guinness Ghana
to Diageo Highlands BV, the controlling shareholder of Guinness Ghana, at ¢5,400 per share.

We confirm that sufficient resources are available to Guinness Ghana to satisfy the maximum
amount of cash payable under the cash offer (taking into account Heineken Ghanaian Holding
BV's irrevocable undertaking to accept the share alternative).

The above procedures do not constitute an audit. We have not audited any financial statements
of Guinness Ghana as of any date or any period subsequent to 30 June 2003.

This letter is not to be made available to any other party nor is it to be used, circulated, quoted or
otherwise referred to except for the purpose for which it has been issued.

Partner

KPMG a parmership estabishad under
Ghantian law, i a momber of KPMG Internations) J E W Winfu R 8 Perbi € O Asiedo E T Akonor (Jnr)
8 Swisg Associzion N A Dacoo K B Korsan N O Harbiey
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11.
12.
13.

APPENDIX 1V - 26 WEEK SHARE PRICES FOR GHANA BREWERIES SHARES

week ending highest price (¢)
27 June 2003 552
4 July 2003 552
11 July 2003 552
18 July 2003 552
25 July 2003 552
1 August 2003 552
8 August 2003 552
15 August 2003 552
22 August 2003 555
29 August 2003 670
5 September 2003 800
12 September 2003 810
19 September 2003 860

Average: ¢850.69 per Ghana Breweries share
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14.
Is.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21
22,
23.
24,
25.
26.

week ending

26 September 2003
3 October 2003

10 October 2003
17 October 2003
24 October 2003
31 October 2003

7 November 2003
14 November 2003
21 November 2003
28 November 2003
5 December 2003
12 December 2003
17 December 2003

highest price (¢)

860
900
905
905
905
906
1,000
1,000
1,200
1,300
1,300
1,401
1,425
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APPENDIX V - MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUINNESS GHANA AND GHANA BREWERIES

1.  Top 20 Guinness Ghana sharcholders (as at 11 June 2004)

Name

Diageo Highlands BV

Social Security & National Insurance Trust
BBGN/Chase Manhattan

BBGN/Chase Manhattan Offshore

D M Ventures

BBGN/Epack Investment Fund Ltd.
Ghanaian Employees Of Guinness
BBGN/Boston Safe Deposit & Trust Co
Enterprise Insurance Co Lid

State Insurance Company

Ghana Reinsurance Organisation
BBGN/Unilever Ghana Provident Fund
BBGN/Unilever Ghana Managers
BBGN/Gh Textiles Printing Provident Fund
Teachers Fund

Dr R H M Nanka-Bruce

DBL Tracking A/C

Retco Company Limited

NTHC Limited

Mr E N Safo-Nyame

Totals
Others
Tota] Issued Shares

38

Percentage

Number of of issued
Shares capital
70,921,228 60.37
18,151,032 15.45
6,061,037 5.16
3,906,408 3.33
1,931,265 1.64
1,132,424 0.96
1,050,374 0.89
634,277 0.54
500,000 0.43
400,000 0.34
329,900 0.28
300,059 0.26
266,217 0.23
162,500 0.14
162,303 0.14
160,000 0.14
109,800 0.09
105,600 0.09
93,291 0.08
76,676 0.07
106,454,391 90.61
11,025,609 9.39
117,480,000 100.00
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2. Top 20 Ghana Breweries sharcholders (as at 11 June 2004)

Name
Heineken Ghanaian Holdings BV

Social Security & National Insurance Trust

Mr D Ofori

GCS Account/F. Portfolio
CFAO Liverpool

Mr E N Safo-Nyame

KBL Co-op. Credit Union Ltd.
CDH Asset Management Ltd
Falcon QP LP

MIHL Nominees A/C 9

GBL Employee Share Option
PZ Cussons Ghana Ltd

Gold Coast Securities Clients A/C
DBL Trading A/C

MIHL Nominees A/C 12

Mr G B Otoo

Mr L Prempeh

Dr. K D Fordwor

MIHL Nominees A/C 6

Mr J Idun-Ogde

Totals
Others
Total Issued Shares

35

Percentage
Number of of issued
Shares capital
252,622,865 75.59
62,377,222 18.66
6,276,857 1.88
2,688,008 0.80
747,890 0.22
678,041 0.20
600,005 0.18
594,030 0.18
472,002 0.14
450,000 0.13
388,000 0.12
311,633 0.09
288,500 0.09
258,815 0.08
255,000 0.08
250,722 0.08
226,000 0.07
220,000 0.07
200,000 0.06
200,000 0.06
330,105,590 98.77
4,117,515 1.23
334,223,105 100
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APPENDIX VI - INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE FORM OF ACCEPTANCE

Please use block capitals and return the completed Form of Acceptance and the relevant share
certificate(s) and/or other document(s) of title to Strategic African Securities at either of the following
addresses: (i) Strategic African Securities, 2nd Ridge Link, North Ridge, PO Box KA 16446, Accra,
Ghana or (ii) Strategic African Securities, ¢/o Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited, Harper Road
Branch, PO Box 1536, Kumasi, Ghana.

Photocopies of the accompanying Form of Acceptance will not be accepted. Additional Forms of
Acceptance can be obtained from Strategic African Securities at either of the addresses stated above.

Guide 1o completing the accompanying Form of Acceptance for individuals

1. The Cash Offer
To accept the Cash Offer in respect of your entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares, place an ‘X’ in
Box 1.

2.  The Share Alternative

To accept the Share Alternative in respect of your entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares, place an
X’ in Box 2.

If no “X’ is inserted in Box 1 or Box 2 you will be deemed to have accepted the Cash Offer in respect of
your entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares (being the entire holding under the name and address
specified in Box 4 and the names (if any) specified in Box 7).

If an ‘X’ is inserted in each of Box 1 and Box 2 you will be deemed to have accepted the Cash Offer in
respect of your entire holding of Ghana Breweries shares. :

3.  Share certificate(s)

Insert in Box 3A the share certificate number(s) for the relevant Ghana Breweries shares and insert in
Box 3B the number of Ghana Breweries shares represented by each such share certificate.

4. Name and address

Complete Box 4 with the name and full postal address of the sole or first registered holder of the
relevant Ghana Breweries shares, exactly as such name and full postal address appear on the relevant
share certificates(s) and/or other document(s) of title.

If the address of any registered holder has changed, insert in Box 4 the new full postal address of such
registered holder, provided such address has been notified to Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited.

5.  Settlement instructions

If you would like the cash sum to which you are entitled under the terms of the Cash Offer to be paid
into a bank account, complete Box 5A with (1) the bank’s name and branch and (i) the relevant
account number and account name.

All other consideration will be settled by a cheque or certificate for new Guinness Ghana shares (as
appropriate) issued in favour of the sole or first registered Ghana Breweries shareholder at either (1) the
address specified in Box 4 or (in the event of Box 4 not having been completed) at the address specified
on the register of members or (ii) at the election of the relevant Ghana Breweries shareholder (by
placing a ‘X’ in the appropriate section of Box 5B) at either of the addresses of Strategic African
Securities stated above, for collection by that shareholder.
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6. Signature / thumbprint

To accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) the sole or first registered Ghana
Breweries shareholder must sign or place his thumbprint in Box 6. The signature or thumbprint must
be exactly the same as the one used by him when applying for the Ghana Breweries shares in respect of
which he is accepting the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate). By signing or placing
his thumbprint in Box 6, he will be accepting the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate)
in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this document and in the Form of Acceptance.

The Form of Acceptance may be signed by someone else on behalf of the sole or first named Ghana
Breweries shareholder if such person is duly authorised to do so. Any such person must enclose the
original power of attorney (or a copy of it certified by a notary public) appointing him unless he is a
selling agent or financial intermediary and states in the Form of Acceptance the capacity in which he
has signed such document.

Each Ghana Breweries shareholder (or any person authorised to sign on his behalf) must sign in the
presence of a witness. The witness must be over 18 years of age and must not be one of the other joint
registered holders (if applicable).

You should note that proceedings may be initiated against any Ghana Breweries shareholder who
knowingly makes a false declaration.

7. Joint holders

If the relevant Ghana Breweries shares are jointly held, each joint holder other than the first registered
holder must insert his name and sign or place his thumbprint in Box 7. The signature(s) or
thumbprint(s) must be exactly the same as the one used by him when applying for the Ghana Breweries
shares in respect of which he is accepting the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate). By
signing or placing a thumbprint in Box 7, each such joint holder will be accepting the Cash Offer or
the Share Alternative (as appropriate) in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this
document and in the Form of Acceptance.

The Form of Acceptance may be signed by someone else on behalf of a joint holder if such person is
duly authorised to do so. Any such person must enclose the original power of attorney (or a copy of it
certified by a notary public) appointing him unless he is a selling agent or financial intermediary and
states in the Form of Acceptance the capacity in which he has signed such document.

Each such joint holder (or any person authorised to sign on his behalf) must sign in the presence of a
witness. The witness must be over 18 years of age and must not be one of the other joint registered
holders.

If there is insufficient space for each joint holder to complete the Form of Acceptance, Box 7 of an
additional Form of Acceptance (which may be obtained from either of the addresses set out above)
should be completed by the relevant joint holder(s) and affixed to the original Form of Acceptance.

Please do not complete Box 8, which is for the use of Strategic African Securities.

Guide to completing the accompanying Form of Acceptance for Companies

A company which is accepting the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate) should insert
in Box 4 its name and address, as they appear on the relevant share certificates(s) andfor other
document(s) of title. The company’s duly authorised officer(s) must then sign Box 6 and affix the
company’s stamp (if applicable) or otherwise comply with the company’s articles of association or
regulations and other applicable laws. The duly authorised officer(s) must sign in the presence of a
witness. The witness must be over 18 years of age and must not be one of the other joint registered
holders (if applicable). The company should then complete the remainder of the Form of Acceptance
in accordance with the instructions for individuals set out above.

4]
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FORM OF ACCEPTANCE

TO ACCEPT THE CASH OFFER OR SHARE ALTERNATIVE PURSUANT TO THE OFFER
DOCUMENT FROM GUINNESS GHANA LIMITED DATED 18 JUNE 2004

L Acceptance of the Cash Offer 2. Acceptance of the Share Alternative

3A. Share certificate number(s) 3B. Number of shares represented by certificate(s)

(attach additional signed list if necessary)

4. Name and address of sole or first registered holder
(please complete in BLOCK CAPITALS, exactly as the name and address appear on the certificate(s))

NI ittt e te et ae s ere e ess e e s at s eseenasae s s eeesaesabesereetaraessnennsens AGQATESS: coviiveei et et

Bank: Branch: Account Number: Account Name:

5B. Please deliver the cheque for the cash sum or the certificate for new Guinness Ghana shares (as appropriate) to which
1 am entitled to Strategic African Securities at:

2nd Ridge Link, North Ridge, PO Box KA 16446, Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited, Harper Road
Accra, Ghana Branch, Kumasi, Ghana

Declaration: I/'We hereby accept the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative (as appropriate} in respect of the number of Ghana Breweries
shares set out in Box 3B above, on the terms and conditions sct out in the Offer Document dated 18 June 2004 and this form of acceptance.
I/'We warrant that I/we have full power and authority to sell, assign and transfer such shares and that Guinness Ghana will acquire good
and unencumbered title thereto, free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges and encumbrances and that such shares will not be subject
to any adverse claim.

6. Siguned by: Witnessed by
NAME! ..o e

STENATUTEL 1ottt

.......................................................................................... AAFESS: .o
L Signature(s) Thumbprint/Company Stamp

7. Joint Transferors/Authorised Signatories

The sole or first registered holder must complete Boxes 1 1o 6 above. The names of any other joint holder(s)authorised
signatorics must be inseried below in BLOCK CAPITALS and they cach must sign or place their thumbprint in the
appropriate column below against their name.

1/We join this transfer and give the declaration set out above.

Name Signature(s)/ Thumbprint Witnessed by:
Company Stamp
Name: ... Signature: ...
AAIESS: woiiiirii e e
Name: ..o Signature: ........ccoeeeciiennnn
AAIESS! oo
NAMC: oo Signature: ......ooeevieiinnn
AdAIeSS: oo
8. For the use of Strategic African Securities
Name (in full as exactly on certificate(s)) Share(s) in respect of which the Cash Offer or the Share Alternative
Name: has been accepted (attach additional signed list if necessary)
Address: Certificate number(s) Total number of shares
represented by certificate(s)
Signature Stamp
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